
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETING OF THE  
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 5, 2013 
 

4:00 P.M. 
 

 WORKSHOP AGENDA 
 
 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for 
Thursday, December 5, 2013. 
 

2. The City Council will meet in executive session to discuss the impact on the duties of Mayor 
Pro Tem Judy Morales of an investigation by Bell County related to the use of county funds 
and resources for her campaign for public office. No final action will be taken. 
 
Executive Session:  Pursuant to Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, §551.074 – 
Personnel Matter – The City Council will meet in executive session to discuss the duties of a 
public official, the Mayor Pro Tem.   
 
Executive Session: Pursuant to Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, § 551.071 – 
Consultation with Attorney, the City Council will meet in executive session with the City 
Attorney on the matter described above, the public discussion of which could conflict the duties 
of an attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of 
Texas (providing confidential advice to a client). 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING DECEMBER 5, 2013 • Page 1 of 5 

 



 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING DECEMBER 5, 2013 • Page 2 of 5 

 

5:00 P.M. 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

TEMPLE, TX 
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

1. Invocation  
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
  

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting.  
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting.  Please limit comments to 3 
minutes.  No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council.  
 
 

III. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion.  If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered 
separately. 
 
3. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate 

resolutions for each of the following: 
 

Minutes 
  

(A)   November 21, 2013 Special Called Meeting   
(B)  November 21, 2013 Special Called and Regular Meeting 

 
Contracts, Leases, & Bids  
 
(C) 2013-7172-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a three year software support 

agreement and IBM equipment maintenance agreement with Wellington-Royce 
Corporation from Atlanta, Georgia, for the business aviation software engine system 
and wireless aviation fuel inventory system for the Draughon-Miller Central Texas 
Regional Airport in the amount of $29,196.   



 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING DECEMBER 5, 2013 • Page 3 of 5 

 

(D) 2013-7173-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a single-source FY 2014 
annual purchase agreement with Dailey-Wells Communications of San Antonio for the 
purchase and repair of public safety radios in the estimated annual amount of $40,000. 

 
(E) 2013-7174-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of fleet tracking 

monitoring service for FY 2014 through GPS Insight, LLC, of Scottsdale, Arizona, 
utilizing GSA Contract, in the approximate annual amount of $30,000. 

 
(F) 2013-7175-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a single-source FY 2014 

purchase agreement for Toro service and repair parts from Professional Turf Products, 
LP of Euless in the estimated annual amount of $40,000. 

 
(G) 2013-7176-R: 1. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of two Solid 

Waste Collection compressed natural gas powered trucks from various vendors at a 
total cost not to exceed $470,572. 

 
(a) One 2014 Autocar CNG powered Front Loader refuse truck with McNeilus body 

from Chastang Ford of Houston, utilizing a BuyBoard contract, in the amount of 
$271,783. 

 
(b)    One Roll-Off refuse truck: 

 
i. One 2014 Freightliner M2112 cab-chassis from Houston Freightliner of 

Houston, utilizing a H-GAC cooperative contract, in the amount of 
$148,789, and  

ii. One refuse body from a vendor yet to be defined, utilizing a cooperative 
contract, in an amount not to exceed $50,000.  

 
2. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute 

necessary documents associated with the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality, Texas Natural Gas Vehicle Grant Program, upon solicitation of the grant 
and award. 

 
(H) 2013-7177-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a FY 2014 contract in the 

amount of $46,200 and a payment for a prior period adjustment in the amount of 
$81,307.55 with Centrovision, Inc., of Temple for high-speed data services to four City 
Facilities. 

 
(I) 2013-7178-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an emergency contract with 

Matous Construction of Belton for the emergency repair of the influent screw pumps at 
Doshier Farm Wastewater Treatment Plant in the amount of $70,998. 

 
(J) 2013-7179-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a five-year fuel management 

contract commencing February 1, 2014, with Texas Fleet Fuel, Ltd of Austin, utilizing a 
Texas Cooperative Purchasing Network Contract #R5127, in the estimated annual 
amount of $1,320,000.  

 
 
Ordinances – Second & Final Reading 
 



 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING DECEMBER 5, 2013 • Page 4 of 5 

 

(K) 2013-4621: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance amending Chapter 
15, “Garbage and Refuse,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, Texas to 
incorporate residential curbside recycling.  

 
(L) 2013-4622: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance closing and vacating 

the 1st Street railroad crossing (DOT no. 022966C) to vehicular traffic. 
  
 Misc.  
 
(M) 2013-7180-R: A-FY-13-17: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the release of an 

existing 10-foot wide public utility easement being approximately 0.061 acres (volume 
1654, page 299), located on property proposed for the Final Plat of Ramcon 
Subdivision, at the southeast corner of South 39th Street and Ramcon Drive. 

 
(N) 2013-7181-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an offer letter to: 

 
1. Sabre27, LLC for acquisition of a utility easement for the North Loop 363 and IH-

35 utility extension. 
 

2. Frank Mayborn Enterprises, Inc. for acquisition of a utility easement for the North 
Loop 363 and IH-35 utility extension.  

 
(O) 2013-7182-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the submission of a grant 

application for the FY 2013 Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program, through the U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security, for the purchase of training props in the total amount 
of $652,175, with a $293,825 match. 

 
(P) 2013-7183-R: Consider adopting a resolution amending the City of Temple Civil 

Service-Fire and Civil Service-Police Pay Schedules, to be effective March 14, 2014. 
 
(Q) 2013-7184-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the cancellation of the January 

2, 2014, City Council meeting. 
  
(R) 2013-7185-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal 

year 2013-2014. 
 

IV. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
4. 2013-4623: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-13-33: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a zone change from Light Industrial (LI) to Heavy Industrial (HI) with a 
Conditional Use Permit to operate a heat kiln and wood chipper on 19.68 ± acres of the Nancy 
Ferguson Survey, Abstract No. 322, in Bell County Texas, located at 1407 Industrial 
Boulevard. 

 
5. 2013-4624: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-02: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a zone change from a combination of Light Industrial (LI) and 
Commercial District (C) to Multiple Family Dwelling One (MF-1) District to Lots 3 and 4, Block 
12, Northwest Hills, 1st Extension Replat of Blocks 11 & 12, addressed as 2201 and 2205 
Valley Forge Avenue. 



 
6. 2013-4625: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-03: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-
premise consumption where sales will be more than 50% and less than 75% of the gross 
revenue for The Patio On Main Restaurant/Bar, on Lot 15, Block 21, Temple Original Town, 
located at 12 South Main Street. 

 
7. 2013-4626: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 

reestablishing a comprehensive economic development policy for the City of Temple which 
includes the City’s criteria and guidelines for tax abatement, tax increment financing, enterprise 
zones, and strategic investment zones.  

 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
8. 2013-7186-R: P-FY-13-38: Consider adopting a resolution approving the Preliminary Plat of 

Carriage House Trails, a 60.31 ± acres, 195 lot,  residential subdivision, with a developer 
requested exception to the Design Criteria – Residential Subdivision Entrances, related to 
temporary emergency vehicle access and a developer requested exception to Section 8.3.1A 
of the Unified Development Code related to the payment of required park fees located along 
the east side of Carriage House Drive, east of Oak Hills Drive & Trailridge Drive. 

 
    
 

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session 
whenever permitted by the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
3:40 PM, on December 2, 2013. 
 
 
______________________ 
Lacy Borgeson, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 
 
I certify that this Notice of Meeting Agenda was removed by me from the outside bulletin board in front of the City Municipal Building at _________on the 
 
________________ day of __________ 2013. ______________. 

 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING DECEMBER 5, 2013 • Page 5 of 5 

 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(A-B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 

(A) November 21, 2013 Special Called Meeting 
(B) November 21, 2013 Special Called and Regular Meeting 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve minutes as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
November 21, 2013 Special Called Meeting 
November 21, 2013 Special Called and Regular Meeting 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL  

NOVEMBER 21, 2013  

Present:  

Mayor Dunn announced that at this time approximately 1:05 pm, the Temple City
Council would enter into executive session with no final action.

At approximately 3:05 pm, Mayor Dunn announced the Temple City Council would
be adjourned with no final action.

Councilmember Perry Cloud  
Councilmember Timothy Davis  
Councilmember Russell Schneider 
Mayor Pro Tem Judy Morales  
Mayor Daniel A. Dunn  

1. The City Council will meet in executive session to discuss the impact on the
duties of Mayor Pro Tem Judy Morales of an investigation by Bell County
related to the use of county funds and resources for her campaign for public
office. No final action will be taken.

Executive Session:  Pursuant to Chapter 551, Texas Government Code,
§551.074 - Personnel Matter - The City Council will meet in executive session
to discuss the duties of a public official, the Mayor Pro Tem.

Executive Session: Pursuant to Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, §
551.071 - Consultation with Attorney, the City Council will meet in executive
session with the City Attorney on the matter described above, the public
discussion of which could conflict the duties of an attorney under the Texas
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas
(providing confidential advice to a client).

________________________ 

Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

____________________

Lacy Borgeson  
City Secretary  

 

Page 1 of 1Special Called Meeting

11/22/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=533&doc_id=184c7900...



TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL  

NOVEMBER 21, 2013  

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Special Meeting on 
Thursday, November 21, 2013 at 2:30 PM, at the Municipal Building, 2 North 
Main Street, in the 3rd Floor Conference Room.  

Present:  

Councilmember Perry Cloud 
Councilmember Timothy Davis 
Councilmember Russell Schneider  
Mayor Daniel A. Dunn   

Absent:  

Mayor Pro Tem Judy Morales  

Councilmember Schneider noted that he would abstain from item #5(d) on
the Consent Agenda related to the construction contract as well as abstain
from any discussion from item #5 on during Worksession Agenda related
to the Greenfield Initiative.

Mr. Blackburn noted item #7 on the Regular Agenda, related to the closing
of the 1st Street Railroad Crossing. He stated this is the next 'formal' step in
the process.

Mayor Dunn stated this item would be discussed during the Regular
Session at 5:00 p.m.

Traci Barnard, Director of Finance presented the Fourth Quarter Financial

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the
meeting posted for Thursday, November 21, 2013.

2. Discuss purchase of a 15 acre tract of land near the City of Temple's
landfill.

Executive Session - Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code §
551.072 - Real Property - The City Council may enter into executive
session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real
property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which
would have a detrimental effect on negotiations with a third party.

3. Discuss the fourth quarter financial results to include the FY13 Fund
Balance.

Page 1 of 12City Council Meeting

11/22/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=532&doc_id=0ec9ab57...



results to the Council.  She began with an overview of the General Fund 
revenues and expenditures; explaining those revenues that came in greater 
or less than what was budgeted.  Ms. Barnard also provided the sales tax 
revenue for the year of 2013; as well as the Water & Wastewater Fund 
Revenues.  Also discussed the self supporting divisions, which are 
the Summit and the Golf Course.  This is the 3rd consecutive year to 
balance the budget for the Summit, but there are challenges.  One of which 
is to provide state of the art equipment; and class space and equipment 
during the peak time.  Next, she discussed the Golf Course, noting there's 
been an increase in cost recovery rate (92% in FY12; and 95% in FY13).  
Ms. Barnard stated we need to focus on improving course conditions.   
 
Mr. Blackburn noted these two divisions (Golf Course and the Summit) will 
be an area of focus at the Council's retreat in 2014.  He stated goals for the 
next 5-10 years needs to be addressed.  
 
Next Ms. Barnard reviewed the fund balance for FY 2013.  She noted the 
fund balance assigned for Capital Projects (unallocated 09/30/13) to be 
$1,111,138; FY 2013 Addition $858,816 for a Balance as of 10/01/13 to be 
$1,969,954.  At this time it is Staff's recommendation to wait until early in 
the fiscal year to consider how to allocate the funds.   
 
Council agreed.  
 

 
Ms. Torralva, Director of Public Works gave a brief presentation to the 
Council. She noted over the past several years, growth in the community 
has resulted in increased residential solid waste customers (20% over the 
past decade); but the routes have remained relatively constant, with most 
growth absorbed into existing routes. Route 9 was added in October 2003 
and Route 10 in October 2010. By absorbing the growth, the routes have 
become unbalanced in some places and overcrowding in others.  Ms. 
Torralva stated that prior to adding routes through the budget process, a 
consultant (SAIC) was engaged in May 2012.  They conducted a Solid 
Waste Operational Review; results suggested that modifications be made 
within the existing system and implemented before moving forward with 
increasing the total number of routes.  Findings also included: existing 
customers could be services by 10.26 routes; purchase larger 30cyd 
garbage trucks; and route changes to re-balance customers.  
 
Ms. Torralva stated that approximately 1,000 homes have been identified 
for collection day changes from Tuesday/ Friday to Monday/ Thursday; 
primarily in the Western Hills, bounded by West Adams to the north, Loop 
363 to the south, and IH-35 to the east, meets this criteria. Staff will 
implement Monday/ Thursday collections to the Western Hills area in 
December 2013, shortly before the curbside recycling collections begin 

4. Receive presentation on Solid Waste Routes and Chapter 15
amendments.  

Page 2 of 12City Council Meeting

11/22/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=532&doc_id=0ec9ab57...



which will be City Wide the week of January 6, 2014.  
 
Ms. Torralva then gave a brief update on the Residential Curbside 
Recycling Program.  The City has contracted with Balcones and clean 
recyclable are essential to a successful program.   
 
She then reviewed the General Updates to Chapter 15, which include the 
implementation of enhanced once a week residential garbage and once a 
week residential recycling collections.  
 

 
Mr. Blackburn gave a brief overview of this item to the Council.  He noted 
the East Temple Redevelopment Plan was adopted in October 2013.  This 
has 6 main focus areas, existing residential redevelopment; new 
residential, commercial, and mixed use infill development; workforce 
development/ career training/ business training; existing commercial/ 
industrial redevelopment; greenfield residential development; and 
streetscape/ public realm/ parks.  The plan also consists of 17 goals and 48 
objectives.   
 
This evening we will discuss the Greenfield Initiative, as its goal is to recruit 
and incentivize a residential development demonstration project.  He stated 
that the FY14 Budget allocates funding for several East Temple 
Redevelopment Plan initiatives, to include Greenfield.  Staff is currently 
working on developing the content of a potential RFQ for issuance that 
would invite any interested developer to submit a response.  Mr. Blackburn 
stated, however, he has received a request for a 'greenfield' cost 
participation for a specific project.   This project is for a 122 residential lot 
subdivision; $110,000 to $150,000 price range; and falls within the area 
defined as East Temple.  Mr. Blackburn noted the project developer has 
asked for a cost participation from the City for road, utility, and drainage 
improvements associated with the development. 
 
He then asked Council if this is the type of 'greenfield' development that 
they envisioned with the East Temple Redevelopment Plan; and was it their 
desire to have Staff negotiate with this developer before issuing any RFQ?  
 
Councilmember Cloud asked if the RFQ will have specifics as to what type 
of development; and how much is the developer asking for? 
 
Mr. Blackburn stated the vision could be different, but not sure if it would be 
specified in an RFQ; and $200,000 in cost participation.  He noted this 
project is currently making its way through the Planning Department; but 
we've not made any commitments to the developer. 
 
Councilmember Cloud stated he thought this was good to have the interest 

5. Discuss the East Temple Redevelopment Plan, and Greenfield
Initiative.  

Page 3 of 12City Council Meeting

11/22/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=532&doc_id=0ec9ab57...



for development in this area. 
 
Councilmember Davis stated he wanted to make sure we had both infield 
and greenfield for this area; but we need to move forward with this 
developer. 
 
Mayor Dunn stated yes, we have to have both to be successful.  
 

 
Kim Foutz, Assistant City Manager presented this to the Council.  She 
noted the Choices 08 Comprehension Plan serves as a guide for land use 
recommendations and decisions; and the Future Land Use Plan identifies 
certain outlier areas with limited utilities as Agricultural/ Rural. Recently the 
City received two rezoning requests within an AG designated area (1) SF-2; 
and (2) SF-3.  Both are located within an AG/ Rural triangle bounded by SH 
317, Airport Road and Prairie View Road; and bisected by North Pea Ridge 
Road.  Staff is seeking guidance from the Council regarding future land use 
policy for this area. 
 
Ms. Foutz stated the first request (SF-2) is for 128 acres; minimum lot size 
of 5,000 sf; and possible yield approximately 700 lots.  The second request 
(SF-3) is for 54 acres; minimum lot size 4,000 sf; and possible yield 
approximately 300 lots.  She also noted some considerations such as, the 
road capacity is sufficient except North Pea Ridge (SF-2 site will need a 
2nd access for 700 lots); sewer extension via Westfield serves SF-3 site but 
not the SF-2 site; land use decisions with anticipated Airport overlay in the 
area; is there a desire for Urban Estates (22,500 minimum lot size) in West 
Temple; and is there a desire for SF-1 (7,500 minimum lot size) in West 
Temple. She also asked the Council what the desired density was for this 
area.  
 
Councilmember Schneider stated he thought there needed to be a buffer 
along the major corridors, such as Airport and SH 317. 
 
Mayor Dunn stated this continues to add density in this 'pocket'; and with 
these two developments and Lake Pointe there will be almost 1,700 homes. 
 
Mr. Blackburn stated the current Future Land Use Map isn't accurate, and 
we need to know what Council's desire is for the density in this area? 
 
Mayor Dunn noted he too would like a buffer along the major corridors, 
along the lines of suburban commercial. 
 
Councilmember Schneider stated he would like to know what the 
buffer distance is from Lake Pointe and 317? He thinks SF-1 is a good 
density for this area.  
 

6. Discuss Future Land Use Plan and West Temple.

Page 4 of 12City Council Meeting

11/22/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=532&doc_id=0ec9ab57...



At this time approximatley 4:45 pm, Mayor Dunn recessed the workshop of the 
Temple City Council and convened the City of Temple Employee Benefits Trust 
Meeting. 
 

 
Ms. Hainley, Benefits Specialist reveiwed this item with the Trust. This will 
be to award the 2nd year of a 3 year contract with Scott and White. 
 
Ms. Schneider made the motion to approve the purchase; and Mr. Cloud 
seconded. 
 
Ms. Morales was absent; all others presented voted in favor.  
 
At this time approximatley 4:50 pm, Mayor Dunn adjourned the City of 
Temple Employee Benefits Trust Meeting and reconvened the workshop of 
the Temple City Council.  
 
Mayor Dunn stated if there was no further business of the City Council, the 
meeting was adjourned. 
 

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Regular Meeting on 
Thursday, November 21, 2013 at 5:00 PM in the Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 2nd Floor, 2 North Main Street.   
 
Present:  

 
Absent:  

 
 

 

 
Reverend Shelton Rhodes with Greater Zion Church of God in Christ 
voiced the Invocation. 
 

 

7. 2013-7155-R: Conduct a meeting of the City of Temple Employee
Benefits Trust to purchase substitute Medicare supplement insurance
for City of Temple over 65 retirees from the Scott & White Health Plan
for calendar year 2014.

Councilmember Perry Cloud  
Councilmember Timothy Davis  
Councilmember Russell Schneider 
Mayor Daniel A. Dunn  

Mayor Pro Tem Judy Morales   

I. CALL TO ORDER

1. Invocation

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Page 5 of 12City Council Meeting

11/22/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=532&doc_id=0ec9ab57...



Bell County Commissioner Bill Schumann and Tax Assessor/Collector 
Sharon Long led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

 

 
Bill Schumann, Bell County Commissioner Precinct 3, and Sharon 
Long, Bell County Tax Assessor/Collector presented a check for the 
Child Safety Funds collected in the amount of $78,260.10.  
 

 
Ken Cicora, Director of Parks and Leisure Services, presented the 
2013 Corporate Challenge Game awards. 
 

 
Rosa Hernandez, 3509 Gila Trail, Temple voiced her support for Mayor Pro 
Tem Morales; didn't appreciate the article in the news paper. Yes, we need 
to hold people accountable, but for the right reasons. There are protocols to 
follow. 
 
Mr. Jessie Jeffcoat, 2606 Redwing Drive addressed the Council regarding 
city staff that cleaned out drain pipe on his property.  This pipe was 
broken in the process; but the city has not come back out to fix. He would 
like this to be looked into. 
 
Mr. Carolyn Jimenez, 1216 South 23rd Street, voiced her support for Mayor 
Pro Tem Morales and wishes for her to remain on the Council.  She has 
dedicated so much time to the City. 
 
Roney Castor, 508 North 7th, voiced his support for Mayor Pro Tem 
Morales; and aske that her reputation be considered. He stated she is a 
good person and good example to all. 
 
Ron Jeffcoat, 2606 Redwing Drive, addressed the City Council in regards 
to the pit bull next door; and he'd like something done about this. He stated 
the City needs to have regulations related to pit bulls. 
 
Manuel Alaniz, 620 South 26th, voiced his support for Mayor Pro Tem 
Morales.  He stated she has done a lot for this community.  He also 
thanked the City for the efforts in East Temple; and it feels good to live in 
East Temple. 
 
Lydia Alaniz, 620 South 26th Street, voiced her support for Mayor Pro Tem 

II. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

3. Presentation by Jon Burrows, Bell County Judge, and Sharon
Long, Tax Assessor/Collector, of Child Safety Funds collected in
the amount of $78,260.10

4. Presentation of the 2013 Corporate Challenge Game Awards.

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Page 6 of 12City Council Meeting

11/22/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=532&doc_id=0ec9ab57...



Morales. 
 
Rev. Roscoe Harrison, 5222 JI Bruce Drive, voiced his support for Mayor 
Pro Tem Morales; and stated she has dedicated herself to community 
service. 
 
Superintendent Rhodes, 4210 Hemlock Blvd, voiced his support for Mayor 
Pro Tem Morales and thanked her for her dedication for time on the East 
Side. 
 
Dr. Sue Hamby, 4110 Cripple Creek voiced her support of Mayor Pro Tem 
Morales.  She stated Judy has a passion to make a difference in the 
community for others.  
 

 

 
(A)  November 7, 2013 Special Called and Regular Meeting  
 
(B) 2013-7156-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying the 
purchase of a Data Backup System from Dell Marketing, LP of 
Round Rock utilizing a State of Texas Department of Information 
Resources contract, in the amount of $38,006.37.  
 
(C) 2013-7157-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
purchase agreement with Iteris Inc. of Santa Ana, CA for the 
purchase of video detection equipment for the traffic signal 
projects for W Adams Avenue & Westfield Boulevard  ($13,845) 
and South 5th Street & FM 93 ($17,360) utilizing a State of Texas  
contract,  in the amount of $31,205.  
 
(D) 2013-7158-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
construction contract with R.T. Schneider Construction 
Company, Ltd., of Belton for construction services required for 
extension of Westfield Boulevard from Stone Hollow to Prairie 
View, to include extension of a wastewater line and related 
appurtenances, in the amount of $ 1,586,277.47, as well as, 
declare an official intent to reimburse the expenditure related to 
the utility portion of this project with the issuance of 2014 Utility 
Revenue Bonds.  
 
(E) 2013-7159-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
contract with the Department of Veterans Affairs, Veterans 
Industries/Compensated Work Therapy for the provision of 
temporary workers for the Parks and Leisure Services 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA

5. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda
items and the appropriate resolutions for each of the following:

Page 7 of 12City Council Meeting

11/22/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=532&doc_id=0ec9ab57...



Department in an estimated amount of $ 73,500.  
 
(F) 2013-7160-R: Consider adopting a resolution committing to 
sharing the costs of constructing a gateway to the Temple 
Medical Education District along Spur 290 at Loop 363 and 
improvements to the eastbound Loop 363 frontage road, with the 
sharing at 50%/50% with TXDOT in an estimated amount of 
$4,820,000.  
 
(G) 2013-7161-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an 
amendment to the professional services agreement with Turley 
Associates, Inc. for Inspection Services related to the 
construction of the Westfield Boulevard roadway and wastewater 
main extension project in an amount not to exceed $44,420.  
 
(H) 2013-7162-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
Services Agreement with GSMS - 2005 GG4 Temple Retail, LLC 
to provide Temple police officers for patrol work in and around 
the Temple Mall.  
 
(I) 2013-7163-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
lease agreement with Marvin Brenek for lease of approximately 
91 acres of City-owned land located at the intersection of Panda 
Drive and Lorraine Drive.  
 
(J) 2013-7164-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
lease agreement with the Law Office of Ginese Simmons-Gilbert, 
PLLC and the Law Office of Atonya McClain, PLLC, for lease of 
space in the E. Rhodes and Leona B. Carpenter Foundation 
Building (the Temple Public Library).  
 
(K) 2013-4619: SECOND READING - Z-FY-13-34: Consider 
adopting an ordinance authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise 
consumption where sales will be less than 75% of the gross 
revenue for a Longhorn Steakhouse Restaurant in the Gateway 
Center located at 4507 South General Bruce Drive.  
 
(L) 2013-4620: SECOND READING - Z-FY-13-35: Consider 
adopting an ordinance authorizing a zone change from General 
Retail District (GR), Single-Family Two District (SF-2), and 
Planned Development District (PD-GR) to General Retail District 
(GR) on 29.953 ± acres of land situated in the Nancy Chance 
Survey, Abstract No. 5, City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, 
located at the southeast corner of West Adams Avenue and Old 
Waco Road.  
 

Page 8 of 12City Council Meeting

11/22/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=532&doc_id=0ec9ab57...



(M) 2013-7165-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
Police Department to apply for and accept funding for the 
G.R.E.A.T. Foundation, Inc. Training Travel Grant available 
through funds provided by Motorola Solutions, Inc.  
 
(N) 2013-7166-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing 
payment for the FY 12-13 medical/prescription insurance 
Administration Run-Off period with BlueCross Blue Shield of 
Texas in the amount of $29,960.64.  
 
(O) 2013-7167-R: Consider adopting a resolution approving 
fourth quarter financial results for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2013.  
 
(P) 2013-7168-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
carry forward of FY 2012-2013 funds to the FY 2013-2014 budget 
and consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget 
adjustments for FY 2012-2013.  
 
(Q) 2013-7169-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing 
budget amendments for fiscal year 2013-2014.  
 

Motion by Councilmember Perry Cloud adopt Resolution approving 
Consent Agenda with exception of item 5(D).  seconded by Councilmember 
Russell Schneider. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
(D)   2013-7158-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
construction contract with R.T. Schneider Construction Company, 
Ltd., of Belton for construction services required for extension of 
Westfield Boulevard from Stone Hollow to Prairie View, to include 
extension of a wastewater line and related appurtenances, in the 
amount of $ 1,586,277.47, as well as, declare an official intent to 
reimburse the expenditure related to the utility portion of this project 
with the issuance of 2014 Utility Revenue Bonds.  
 

Motion by Councilmember Timothy Davis adopt resolution  seconded 
by Councilmember Perry Cloud. 
 
Councilmember Russell Schneider abstained. The other 
Councilmembers voted aye.  The motion passed. 
 
 

 
V. REGULAR AGENDA

Page 9 of 12City Council Meeting

11/22/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=532&doc_id=0ec9ab57...



ORDINANCES  
 

 
Nicole Torralva, Director of Public Works, presented this item to 
Council. She noted this is in preparation of implementing the 
Residential Curbside Recycling Program; which is to begin the 
week of January 6, 2014.  This will enhance the solid waste 
services; once a week garbage collection and once a week 
curbside recycling pick up.  These amendments will include 
implementation of the program; listing acceptable items; 
establishing a process for encouraging participation; as well as 
a process for addressing situations in which the service is not 
being used properly. Ms. Torralva noted the administrative cost 
associated with the program are still under review such as cost 
recovery and participation.  
 
Mayor Dunn declared the Public Hearing open with regards to 
Agenda Item 6 and asked if anyone wished to address this item. 
There being none, Mayor Dunn declared the Public Hearing 
closed.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Russell Schneider adopt Ordinance 
as presented, with second and final reading set for December 5, 
2013.  seconded by Councilmember Perry Cloud. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

 
Kayla Landeros,  Deputy City Attorney, presented this item to 
Council. She noted this is the next step in the process to 
formally close the rail crossing to vehicular traffic. In accordance 
with BNSF procedures, the City will place appropriate end-of-
road treatments on both of the roadway approaches at a 
minimum distance of 25 feet from the centerline of the north 
track and 35 feet from the centerline of the south track.   
 
Mayor Dunn declared the Public Hearing open with regards to 
Agenda Item 7 and asked if anyone wished to address this item. 
There being none, Mayor Dunn declared the Public Hearing 
closed.  

6. 2013-4621: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING: Consider
adopting an ordinance amending Chapter 15, "Garbage and
Refuse," of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple,
Texas to incorporate residential curbside recycling.  

7. 2013-4622: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING: Consider
adopting an ordinance closing and vacating the 1st Street
railroad crossing (DOT no. 022966C) to vehicular traffic.

Page 10 of 12City Council Meeting

11/22/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=532&doc_id=0ec9ab57...



 
Motion by Councilmember Perry Cloud adopt Ordinance as 
presented, with second and final reading set for December 5, 
2013.  seconded by Councilmember Timothy Davis. 
 
Mayor Daniel A. Dunn voted nay. The other Councilmembers 
voted aye.  The motion passed. 
 
 

RESOLUTIONS  
 

 
Kayla Landeros, Deputy City Attorney, presented this item to 
Council. She stated this is the last tract needed in order to 
move forward with the permitting process for the landfill.   
 
Motion by Councilmember Perry Cloud adopt Resolution 
authorizing to purchase 15-acre tract of land located at 860 Bob 
White Road for $360,000 with estimated closing costs of 
$7,500.  seconded by Councilmember Russell Schneider. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

 
Denny Hainley, Benefits Specialist, presented this item to 
Council. She stated this is the final year of the contract with 
Scott and White; and rates are the same as 2012 and 2013.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Timothy Davis adopt Resolution. 
 seconded by Councilmember Perry Cloud. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 

8. 2013-7170-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing
the purchase of a 15 acre tract of land near the City of
Temple's landfill. 
  
Executive Session - Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government
Code § 551.072 - Real Property - The City Council may enter
into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange,
lease or value of real property relating to City projects, the
public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect
on negotiations with a third party.

9. 2013-7171-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a
contract with Scott & White Health Plan and establishing
rates for substitute Medicare supplement insurance for City
of Temple over 65 retirees and the City’s contribution
thereto for calendar year 2014.

Page 11 of 12City Council Meeting

11/22/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=532&doc_id=0ec9ab57...



 
 

                                               

  

 
________________________ 
 
Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
____________________
 
Lacy Borgeson  
City Secretary  

 

Page 12 of 12City Council Meeting

11/22/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=532&doc_id=0ec9ab57...



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a three year software support 
agreement and IBM equipment maintenance agreement with Wellington-Royce Corporation from 
Atlanta, Georgia, for the business aviation software engine system and wireless aviation fuel 
inventory system for the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport in the amount of $29,196.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  In January 2009, City Council approved the purchase of the Wellington-Royce 
digital aviation inventory system and aviation business software package (BASE).  The accounting 
system has worked well for the Airport and integrates with the City’s financial system.   

Wellington-Royce is the only company that provides a total business aviation package and is the sole 
owner of the BASE software system.  The current software and equipment support agreement 
expires January 31, 2014.      

Recommend a three year software and equipment support agreement through January 31, 2017 with 
Wellington-Royce as follows: 

-IBM Software/Hardware Maintenance for 3 years $10,455 
-BASE System Software Support for 3 years $18,741 

 $29,196

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funds in the amount of $29,197 are appropriated in the Airport’s FY14 operating 
budget in account 110-3622-560-2338.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution



1

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A THREE YEAR SOFTWARE SUPPORT 
AGREEMENT AND IBM EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
WITH WELLINGTON-ROYCE CORPORATION OF ATLANTA, 
GEORGIA, FOR THE BUSINESS AVIATION SOFTWARE ENGINE 
(BASE) SYSTEM AND WIRELESS AVIATION FUEL INVENTORY 
SYSTEM FOR THE DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS 
REGIONAL AIRPORT, IN THE AMOUNT OF $29,196; AND PROVIDING 
AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, in January 2009, City Council authorized the purchase of a Wellington-
Royce digital aviation inventory system and aviation business software package (BASE) for 
the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport – the accounting system has worked 
well for the Airport and integrates with the City’s financial system; 

 Whereas, Wellington-Royce is the only company that provides a total business 
aviation package and is the sole owner of the BASE software system – the current software 
system and equipment support agreement expires on January 31, 2014; 

Whereas, staff is pleased with the services provided and recommends entering into a 
three year software support agreement and IBM equipment maintenance agreement with 
Wellington-Royce Corporation of Atlanta, Georgia, in the amount of $29,196;  

Whereas, funds are available for this purchase in Account No. 110-3622-560-2338; 
and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
three year software support agreement and an IBM equipment maintenance agreement, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, with Wellington-Royce Corporation of Atlanta, 
Georgia, for the business aviation software engine (BASE) system and wireless aviation fuel 
inventory system for the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport, in the amount of 
$29,196. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of December, 2013. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(D)  

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
Gary O. Smith, Chief of Police  
Ron Snider, Interim Fire Chief 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a single-source FY 2014 annual 
purchase agreement with Dailey-Wells Communications of San Antonio for the purchase and repair 
of public safety radios in the estimated annual amount of $40,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The Police Department and Fire Department utilize 284 and 80 radios, 
respectively, to communicate with Bell County Communications.  Bell County has purchased and 
installed a digital access communications system manufactured by Harris Corporation.  In order for 
the agencies throughout Bell County to communicate with Bell County Communications, each entity 
must utilize radios that are compatible with Bell County’s system, which are currently only available 
through Dailey-Wells Communication, Harris Corporation’s only authorized sales and service support 
in our area.   

The City has done business with Dailey-Wells Communications for several years and finds them to be 
a responsible vendor.  

FISCAL IMPACT:   The cost of maintaining the public radio fleet is included in the Police and Fire 
Departments’ adopted FY 2014 operating budgets.  Estimated annual expenditures based on FY 
2013 expenditures are in the amount of   $40,000. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A SINGLE SOURCE ANNUAL PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014, WITH DAILEY-WELLS 
COMMUNICATIONS OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS, FOR THE PURCHASE 
AND REPAIR OF PUBLIC SAFETY RADIOS, IN THE ESTIMATED 
ANNUAL AMOUNT OF $40,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

  Whereas, the Police and Fire Department utilize 284 and 80 radios to communicate with Bell 
County Communications; 

Whereas, Bell County has purchased and installed a digital access communications system 
manufactured by Harris Corporation and in order for the agencies throughout Bell County to 
communicate with Bell County Communications, each entity must utilize radios that are compatible 
with Bell County’s system – these radios are only available through Dailey-Wells Communications; 

Whereas, these radios are only available through Dailey-Wells Communications, Harris 
Corporation’s only authorized sales and service support in our area – which authorizes this purchase as 
a single source purchase as defined by the Local Government Code §252.022; 

Whereas, the City has done business with Dailey-Wells Communications for several years and 
finds them to be a responsible vendor; 

Whereas, the cost of maintaining the public radio fleet is included in the Police and Fire 
Departments’ adopted fiscal year 2014 operating budgets; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes a single-source annual purchase agreement, for fiscal year 
2014, with Dailey-Wells Communication of San Antonio, Texas, for the purchase and repair of public 
safety radios in the estimated annual amount of $40,000. 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute any 
documents which may be necessary for this purchase, after approval as to form by the City Attorney. 

 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution is 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of December, 2013. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

__________________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________  __________________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Brandon Harris, Director of Information Technology 
Brynn Myers, Director of Administrative Services 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of fleet tracking 
monitoring service for FY 2014 through GPS Insight, LLC, of Scottsdale, Arizona, utilizing GSA 
Contract, in the approximate annual amount of $30,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in the item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  On April 19, 2012, Council authorized the purchase of fleet tracking hardware and 
monitoring services for a pilot group of 82 City vehicles through GPS Insight, LLC.  The installation 
and implementation of the service on these vehicles has been completed on 81 of the 82 vehicles. 
The pilot group of vehicles consists of the following: 

36 - Solid Waste heavy duty vehicles 
5 - Solid Waste light duty vehicles 
2 - Street Sweepers 
4 - Animal Control light duty pickups 
5 - Code Enforcement light duty pickups 
4 – Building Inspection light duty pickups 
4 - Engineering light duty vehicles 
10 - Metering light duty pickups 
2 - Parks & Leisure Services light duty vehicles 
4 – Facility Services light duty vehicles 
1 - Fire Truck 
2 - Fire light duty vehicles 
2 - Police light duty vehicles 

Some of the goals of the program is to help raise employee awareness of important issues such as 
speeding, idle-time, excessive acceleration/deceleration, and general vehicle usage. Additional goals 
are to assist in the optimization of routes, reduce travel times, provide real-time fleet tracking, balance 
workload among vehicles, reduce fuel and maintenance costs, and contribute to the overall efficiency, 
accountability and safety of the City fleet.  



12/05/13 
Item #3(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

The initial hardware cost was $27,392.  The ongoing monthly service is approximately $2,500 per 
month ($30.95 per month for each heavy duty vehicle and $28.95 per month for each light duty 
vehicle), which covers the cost of wireless data plans, GPS Tracking, and maintenance.  

This procurement is being recommended utilizing a U.S. General Services Administration (GSA) 
contract.  Other governmental entities are allowed to utilize contracts that have gone through the GSA 
competitive procurement process. 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Funding for the fleet tracking service is budgeted in account 110-1972-519-2610. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF FLEET TRACKING 
MONITORING SERVICE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014, THROUGH GPS 
INSIGHT, LLC, OF SCOTTSDALE, ARIZONA, UTILIZING A GSA 
CONTRACT, IN THE ESTIMATED ANNUAL AMOUNT OF $30,000; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, on April 19, 2012, Council authorized the purchase of fleet tracking 
hardware and monitoring services for a pilot group of 82 City vehicles through GPS Insight, 
LLC – the installation and implementation of the service on these vehicles has been 
completed on 81 of 82 vehicles;  

 Whereas, goals of this monitoring service are to help raise employee awareness of 
issues such as speeding, idle-time, excessive acceleration/deceleration, and general vehicle 
usage – additional goals are to assist in the optimization of routes, reduce travel times, 
provide real-time fleet tracking, balance workload among vehicles, reduce fuel and 
maintenance costs, and contribute to the overall efficiency, accountability and safety of City 
fleet; 

Whereas, the Staff recommends the purchase of an ongoing monthly service for the 
fleet tracking monitoring service in the approximate amount of $2,500 per month, which 
covers the cost of wireless data plans, GPS tracking and maintenance;  

Whereas, funds for these services are available in Account No. 110-1972-519-2610; 
and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the purchase of fleet tracking monitoring service 
through GPS Insight, LLC, of Scottsdale, Arizona, utilizing a GSA Contract in the estimated 
annual amount of $30,000. 

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute 
any documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, that may be necessary for this 
purchase. 



2 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of December, 2013. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(F)  

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
Sam Weed, Superintendent of Fleet Services 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a single-source FY 2014 purchase 
agreement for Toro service and repair parts from Professional Turf Products, LP of Euless in the 
estimated annual amount of $40,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The City owns and maintains many pieces of Toro mowing and turf equipment. 
Toro has designated Professional Turf Products, LP as the authorized service and parts supplier for 
our geographical area.      

Based on historical expenditures, it is estimated that staff will need to procure approximately $40,000 
of parts and service for Toro equipment during FY 2014.  Based on the volume of parts and service 
procured, Temple currently obtains ‘high performance pricing’ from Professional Turf Products.   

Toro only distributes its parts through full service dealers, and as such, the procurement of Toro parts 
and service is a single-source purchase as defined within the Local Government Code §252.022.    

FISCAL IMPACT:   Repair parts and service for Toro equipment are purchased on an as needed 
basis by the Fleet Services, on behalf of several departments, and Sammons Golf Links.  Each 
respective department has budgeted for repairs in their adopted FY 2014 operating budgets. 
Estimated Toro repairs and services for FY 2014 based on historical purchases are $40,000. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A SINGLE SOURCE PURCHASE AGREEMENT, 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014, FOR TORO SERVICE AND REPAIR PARTS 
FROM PROFESSIONAL TURF PRODUCTS, LP., OF EULESS, TEXAS, IN 
THE ESTIMATED ANNUAL AMOUNT OF $40,000; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the City owns and maintains many pieces of Toro mowing and turf equipment 
and Toro has designated Professional Turf Products, LP. as the authorized service and parts 
supplier for this geographical area; 

Whereas, Toro only distributes its parts through full service dealers, and as such, the 
procurement of Toro parts and service is a single source purchase as defined within the Local 
Government Code §252.022;  

Whereas, repair parts and service for Toro equipment is purchased on an ‘as needed’ 
basis and each respective department has budgeted for repairs in their fiscal year 2014 adopted 
budgets; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes a single source purchase agreement for fiscal year 
2014, for Toro service and repair parts from Professional Turf Products LP., of Euless, Texas, in 
the estimated annual amount of $40,000.  

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute any 
documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, that may be necessary for this purchase. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of December, 2013. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(G1-2) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Sam Weed, Director of Fleet Services 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  1. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of two Solid Waste 
Collection compressed natural gas powered trucks from various vendors at a total cost not to exceed 
$470,572. 

(a) One 2014 Autocar CNG powered Front Loader refuse truck with McNeilus body from 
Chastang Ford of Houston, utilizing a BuyBoard contract, in the amount of $271,783. 

(b)   One Roll-Off refuse truck: 

i. One 2014 Freightliner M2112 cab-chassis from Houston Freightliner of
Houston, utilizing a H-GAC cooperative contract, in the amount of $148,789,
and

ii. One refuse body from a vendor yet to be defined, utilizing a cooperative
contract, in an amount not to exceed $50,000.

2. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute necessary
documents associated with the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, Texas Natural
Gas Vehicle Grant Program, upon solicitation of the grant and award.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt a resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  Currently the Public Works Solid Waste Services Division has two (2) trucks that 
have been identified for routine replacement by Director of Fleet Services in the annual vehicle 
replacement review. These trucks are used daily in the Solid Waste commercial routes. 

City staff has been informed about a grant opportunity, to be released December 2013, from the 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), Texas Natural Gas Vehicle Grant Program. 
The grant application will be on a first-come, first-serve basis.  A condition of the grant is thatthe 
purchase of the vehicles must be approved by the City Council and the vehicles must be ordered 
prior to application submission.   The company the City orders the trucks from must be approved by 
TCEQ and submits the grant application on behalf of the City, to ensure the appropriate vehicles are 
purchased and accurate funding for incremental costs (between diesel and CNG powered vehicles) is 
assessed appropriately.  The City previously received funds through this grant process and if an 
application for these two vehicles is submitted in a timely manner after solicitation release, the City 
anticipates receiving funds to cover the incremental costs of upgrading vehicles to run on CNG. 



12/05/13 
Item #3(G1-2) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

All purchases through the Buy Board and HGAC meet the Texas governmental competitive bid 
requirements.   

Staff is still working on refining the quote for the body of the roll-off refuse truck.  Staff anticipates 
having the proposed purchase information clearly defined prior to the Council meeting on December 
5, 2013. 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:  Each vehicle scheduled for replacement has been evaluated to ensure 
the most sustainable and fuel efficient vehicle that will meet the needs of the department is being 
purchased.  The evaluation for these vehicles focused on fuel type.  The incremental cost of 
purchasing a CNG powered vehicle as opposed to diesel for the front loader and roll-off is $17,000 
and $40,000 respectively.  If current operations continue, the anticipated payback period is between 
four to five years for the front loader and six to seven years for the roll-off, well within their expected 
operational life. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding in the amount of $470,572 for two (2) commercial trucks was approved in 
the FY 2013 budget and was included as a ‘carry forward’ to the FY 2014 budget.  Funding for the 
commercial trucks was from the 2013 Limited Tax notes of $430,572 and $40,000 from grant funding 
to offset the incremental cost increase to purchase the CNG powered trucks.  The City will be seeking 
grant funding through TCEQ to cover the incremental cost of purchasing a CNG vehicle as opposed 
to a diesel vehicle. If awarded the grant it is estimated that the City will receive at least $40,000 to 
cover the incremental costs.  

Detail of the funding allocation for the purchase of the two (2) trucks is shown below: 

Description Account # Project # Amount 

Autocar CNG powered 
Front Loader refuse 
truck 

351-2300-540-6222 101093 $271,783

Freightliner CNG 
powered Roll-Off refuse 
truck 

351-2300-540-6222 101094 $198,789

Total $470,572 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution



1 

RESOLUTION NO.   

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF  TWO (2) SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 
COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS (CNG) POWERED TRUCKS FROM VARIOUS 
VENDORS, THROUGH THE BUYBOARD LOCAL GOVERNMENT ONLINE 
PURCHASING COOPERATIVE AND THE HOUSTON-GALVESTON AREA 
COOPERATIVE CONTRACT, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $470,572, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ANY NECESSARY 
DOCUMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE GRANT, UPON SOLICITATION OF 
THE GRANT AND AWARD; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

Whereas, Public Works Solid Waste Services Division currently has two (2) trucks that 
have been identified for routine replacement in the annual vehicle replacement review - these 
trucks are used daily in the Solid Waste commercial routes; 

Whereas, the City of Temple desires to purchase the following CNG powered trucks, in an 
amount not to exceed $470,572: 

a) one (1) Autocar CNG powered Front Loader refuse truck with McNeilus body from
Chastang Ford of Houston, Texas, utilizing a BuyBoard contract, in the amount of 
$271,783; 

b) one roll-off refuse truck:
(i) one (1) Freightliner M2112 cab-chassis from Houston Freightliner of 
Houston, Texas, utilizing a Houston-Galveston Area Cooperative contract, in 
the amount of $148,789; 
(ii) one (1) refuse body from a vendor yet to be defined, utilizing a cooperative 
contract, in an amount not to exceed $50,000; 

 Whereas, staff has been informed about a grant opportunity, to be released December 
2013, from the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, Texas Natural Gas Vehicle Grant 
Program – the grant application will be on a first-come, first-serve basis and a condition of the 
grant is that the purchase of the vehicles must be approved by the City Council and the vehicles 
must be ordered prior to application submission; 

Whereas, all purchases through the BuyBoard Local Government Online Purchasing 
Cooperative and the Houston-Galveston Area Cooperative Contracts meet the Texas governmental 
competitive bid requirements; 

Whereas, each vehicle scheduled for replacement has been evaluated to ensure the most 
sustainable and fuel efficient vehicle that will meet the needs of the department for which it is 
being purchased; 

Whereas, funding for this purchase was approved in the fiscal year 2013 budget in Account 
No: 351-2300-540-6222, Project No: 101093 and Account No: 351-2300-540-6222, Project No: 
101094; and 



2 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the purchase of two (2) Solid Waste Collection compressed 
natural gas (CNG) powered trucks from the following vendors, in an amount not to exceed 
$470,572: 

a) one (1) Autocar CNG powered Front Loader refuse truck with McNeilus body from
Chastang Ford of Houston, Texas, utilizing a BuyBoard contract, in the amount of 
$271,783; 

b) one roll-off refuse truck:
(i) one (1) Freightliner M2112 cab-chassis from Houston Freightliner of 
Houston, Texas, utilizing a Houston-Galveston Area Cooperative contract, in 
the amount of $148,789; 
(ii) one (1) refuse body from a vendor yet to be defined, utilizing a cooperative 
contract, in an amount not to exceed $50,000; 

Part 2: The City Council accepts any funds that may be received for this grant, and 
authorizes the City Manager to execute any documents which may be necessary for this grant. 

Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute any 
documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, that may be necessary for this purchase. 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of December, 2013. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Brandon Harris, Information Technology Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a FY 2014 contract in the amount 
of $46,200 and a payment for a prior period adjustment in the amount of $81,307.55 with 
Centrovision, Inc., of Temple for high-speed data services to four City Facilities. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Centrovision currently provides the City with high-speed Gigabit services to 
multiple City departments, including the Municipal Court, Utility Business Office, Fire Station 8/EOC, 
Public Works, Fleet Services, Purchasing, and Airport. They have provided us with a service at these 
facilities where no one else could provide service, or less expensive than other carriers.  

The City currently uses services through Centrovision, Time Warner and AT&T for redundancy 
purposes and in an effort to avoid a catastrophic outage at all City facilities. We also use this plan 
successfully by having internet service provided several diverse carriers  due to the critical nature of 
providing access to Police, Fire, email services and other critical city applications.  As part of our plan 
to diversify services, we recommend to continue this contract with Centrovision as they already have 
the equipment and services at these locations. 
Staff is requesting that Council authorize a contract with Centrovision for FY 2014 to provide high 
speed data services to the departments listed above in the amount of $46,200.  In addition, staff is 
requesting that Council authorize a prior period adjustment for unbilled services obtained in FY 2010 
through FY 2013 in the amount of $81,307.55. 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Funding for the FY 2014 yearly contract in the amount of $46,200 is shown 
below: 

FY 2014 
Account Amount

110-1932-519-2610 $39,000
520-5800-535-2610 $  7,200 

Total $46,200



12/05/13 
Item #3(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

Funding for the payment of prior periods which will be charged to FY 2013 is shown below: 

FY 2013 {Prior Periods} 
Account Amount

110-1900-519-2610 $81,307.55

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  



RESOLUTION NO. __________________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN ANNUAL CONTRACT WITH 
CENTROVISION, INC., OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, FOR HIGH-SPEED DATA 
SERVICES TO SIX CITY FACILITIES, IN THE ANNUAL AMOUNT OF 
$44,850; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, Centrovision currently provides multiple City departments with high-speed 
gigabit services, including the Municipal Court, Utility Business Office, Fire Station 8/EOC, 
Public Works, Fleet Services, Purchasing and the Airport; 

Whereas, in an effort to avoid a catastrophic outage at all facilities by utilizing the 
services of only one company, the City currently uses services through Centrovision, Time 
Warner and AT&T – these three companies also provide the City with backup internet services 
due to the critical nature of providing internet access to Police, Fire, email services and other 
critical city applications; 

Whereas, Staff recommends the City authorize a renewal to the annual contract with 
Centrovision, Inc. for high-speed data services, in the annual amount of $44,850; 

Whereas, funds are available in Account Nos. 520-5800-535-26-10, 110-1800-525-
26-10, and 110-1900-519-26-10 for this annual contract; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute an 
annual contract with Centrovision, Inc., of Temple, Texas, after approval as to form by the 
City Attorney, for high-speed data services to six city facilities which include the Municipal 
Court, Utility Business Office, Fire Station 8/EOC, Public Works, Fleet Services, Purchasing 
and the Airport, in the annual amount of $44,850. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 17th day of January, 2013. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



p 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, PE, Public Works Director 
Thomas Brown, Utility Services Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an emergency contract with Matous 
Construction of Belton for the emergency repair of the influent screw pumps at Doshier Farm 
Wastewater Treatment Plant in the amount of $70,998. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt a resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  Doshier Farm Wastewater Treatment Plant has three (3) influent screw pumps at 
the head of the plant. These pumps lift the incoming wastewater to allow the treatment process 
(beginning with the fine screen) to proceed through the treatment plant via gravity flow. In order for 
the plant to operate efficiently especially during increased flow, two of the pumps must be in-service 
at all times. 

For the past several months, one of the three pumps has been out of service pending contractor 
repair resolution from capital work completed in 2010.  Over the past month, the remaining two 
pumps failed due to mechanical issues. In late October, Kasberg, Patrick & Associates (KPA) was 
consulted to assist in evaluation and assessment of the pumps. After evaluation, an immediate repair 
of the pumps was undertaken and deemed an emergency to stay in compliance with state and federal 
regulations.  Accordingly, and per local Government code 252.022, this project is exempt from the 
competitive bid process. 

Matous Construction was contacted to assist with the emergency repairs as they had the proper 
equipment and knowledge to start repairs immediately. Staff authorized Matous Construction to begin 
work October 29, 2013.  On October 30, 2013, due to high flow and only one pump operational the 
plant, a major overflow was experienced. The contractor is continuing to work on repairing all three 
pumps correctly, and is expected to complete the project by the end of January 2014. 

FISCAL IMPACT: A budget adjustment is being presented to Council appropriating funds in the 
amount of $79,226 from Water & Sewer Retained Earnings, account 520-0000-373-0412, to Capital 
Building & Grounds, account 520-5521-535-6310, project 101115 to fund the emergency contract 
with Matous Construction in the amount of $70,998 as well as the estimated professional services for 
$8,228. 



12/05/13 
Item #3(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Consultant Letter of Recommendation 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 

















FY 2014
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER

PROJECT 
# DECREASE

520-5521-535-63-10 101115

520-0000-373-04-12 79,226$      

TOTAL……………………………………………………………………………… 79,226$      

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? x Yes No

DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? x Yes No

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

DisapprovedCity Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance

Date

Date

Date

DO NOT POST

INCREASE

79,226$      

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

Influent Screw Pumps - Doshier WWTP

W&S Unreserved Retained Earnings

79,226$      

To appropriate funds for the emergency repair of the influent screw pumps at Doshier Farm Wastewater Treatment Plant.  
Construction services with Matous Construction are in the amount of $70,998 and professional services costs are estimated in 
the amount of $8,228 for a total of $79,226.

12/5/2013

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased 
account are available.

Revised form - 10/27/06



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, RATIFYING AN EMERGENCY CONTRACT WITH MATOUS 
CONSTRUCTION OF BELTON, TEXAS, FOR THE EMERGENCY REPAIR 
OF THE INFLUENT SCREW PUMPS AT DOSHIER FARM WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT, IN THE AMOUNT OF $70,998; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, Doshier Farm Wastewater Treatment Plant has three influent screw pumps 
at the head of the plant that lift the incoming wastewater to allow the treatment process to 
proceed through the treatment plant via gravity flow;  
 

Whereas, in order for the plant to operate efficiently, especially during increased flow, 
two of the pumps must be in service at all times; 
 

Whereas, for the past several months, one of the three pumps has been out of service 
pending contractor repair – over the past two months, the remaining two pumps failed due to 
mechanical issues; 
 

Whereas, in October 2013, an immediate repair of the pumps was undertaken and 
deemed an emergency to stay in compliance with state and federal regulations – per local 
Government Code §252.002, this project is except from the competitive bid process; 
 

Whereas, Matous Construction of Belton, Texas was contacted, and staff authorized 
Matous Construction to being the emergency repair work;  
 

Whereas, funds are available for this purchase but an amendment to the fiscal year 
2013-2014 budget needs to be approved to transfer the funds to Account No. 520-5521-535-
6310, Project No. 101115; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to ratify an 
emergency contract with Matous Construction of Belton, Texas for the emergency repair of the 
influent screw pumps at Doshier Farm Wastewater Treatment Plant, in the amount of $70,998. 

 
Part 2:  The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2013-2014 

budget, substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of December, 2013. 
 
         THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
               

        DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

  
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson       Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
Sam Weed, Director of Fleet Services 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a five-year fuel management 
contract commencing February 1, 2014, with Texas Fleet Fuel, Ltd of Austin, utilizing a Texas 
Cooperative Purchasing Network Contract #R5127, in the estimated annual amount of $1,320,000.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  For several years the City has purchased and managed fuel utilizing a Bell 
County contract with Texas Fleet Fuel.  Bell County’s current contract with Texas Fleet Fuel will 
expire on January 31, 2014.  Instead of conducting an independent solicitation, Bell County has 
elected to utilize a Texas Cooperative Purchasing Network Contract (TCPN) with Texas Fleet Fuel to 
procure their fuel and provide a fuel management system.   

Texas Fleet Fuel’s fuel management service contract allows City vehicles to fill up at local 
convenience stores and provides fuel management services by providing the City with a weekly 
report showing each vehicle’s fueling, who fueled, where they fueled, and the price for that week. 
Staff is able to upload this information into our fleet maintenance system with little effort. This system 
has worked very well for the City, and staff desires to continue using the fuel management service 
through Texas Fleet Fuel. 

As stated in the attached proposed contract, Texas Fleet Fuel has offered the City an agreement and 
pricing similar to Bell County, utilizing the TCPN contract with pricing of 11.9¢ per gallon over the 
OPIS (Oil Price Information Service) rack price for each week, exclusive of freight. Freight varies in 
Temple with the majority being between 2–3 cents per gallon.   

The pricing under the current contract is 8¢ per gallon over the OPIS price.  We are being told that 
the reason for the 3.9¢ per gallon increase is due to negotiations with the local stations.  The City 
currently consumes approximately 500,000 gallons of fuel per year, but this usage is expected to go 
down by approximately 70,000 once the CNG-fueled vehicles become active.  As such, with the 
increased rate and all other factors remaining constant, the increased rate will increase the cost of the 
fuel per year by approximately $17,000.    



12/05/13 
Item #3(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

Staff has explored alternative options, but has determined that switching out the card program and 
fuel management system that already interfaces with the City’s existing system would be costly and a 
significant administrative undertaking.  In addition, the offered pricing is still a good value compared to 
other offerings in the market.      

The proposed contract is for a term of 60 months, beginning February 1, 2014, with two (2) one year 
renewal options. 

FISCAL IMPACT:   The FY 2013-2014 adopted budget for fuel is as follows in account 2115: 
 General Fund  $1,315,391 

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund          2,025  
Drainage Fund        47,225 
Water & Wastewater Fund      232,070 

Total  $1,596,711 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Fuel Management Services Contract 
Resolution  























 1

RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A FIVE YEAR FUEL MANAGEMENT 
CONTRACT WITH TEXAS FLEET FUEL, LTD., OF AUSTIN, TEXAS, 
UTILIZING A TEXAS COOPERATIVE PURCHASING NETWORK 
CONTRACT (#R5127), COMMENCING FEBRUARY 1, 2014, IN THE 
ESTIMATED ANNUAL AMOUNT OF $1,320,000; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, for several years, the City has purchased and managed fuel utilizing a Bell 
County contract with Texas Fleet Fuel, Ltd. – Bell County’s current contract with Texas 
Fleet Fuel, Ltd will expire on January 31, 2014 and instead of conducting an independent 
solicitation, bell county has elected to utilize a Texas cooperative purchasing network 
contract with Texas fleet fuel to procure their fuel and provide a fuel management system; 
 
 Whereas, the fuel management service system allows City vehicles to fill up at local 
convenience stores and provides fuel management services by providing the City with a 
weekly report showing each vehicle’s fueling, who fueled, where they fueled, and the price 
for that week – this information can then be uploaded into the City’s fleet management 
system; 
 
 Whereas, Texas Fleet Fuel has offered the City an agreement and pricing similar to 
Bell County, utilizing the Texas Cooperative Purchasing Network Contract with pricing of 
11.9¢ per gallon over the Oil Price Information Service rack price for each week, exclusive 
of freight; 
 
 Whereas, alternative options have been explored, but it has been determined that 
switching out the card program and fuel management system that already interfaces with the 
City’s existing system, would be costly and offer a significant administrative undertaking; 
 

Whereas, staff recommends authorizing a five year fuel management contract with 
Texas Fleet Fuel, Ltd., of Austin, Texas beginning February 1, 2014, with two (2) one year 
renewal options; 

 
Whereas, funding for fuel purchases were budgeted in each individual departments 

fiscal year 2013-2014 budget; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 



 2

 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
five year fuel management contract with Texas Fleet Fuel, Ltd., after approval as to form by 
the City Attorney, utilizing a Texas Cooperative Purchasing Network Contract (#R5127), in 
the estimated annual amount of $1,320,000. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of December, 2013. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 
Nicole Torralva, Director of Public Works 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance amending Chapter 15, 
“Garbage and Refuse,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, Texas to incorporate 
residential curbside recycling.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance as presented in item description, on second and final 
reading. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  Code revisions include a general update of Chapter 15 and the addition of 
sections covering the City’s curbside recycling program. The new sections address: 

 Availability of once a week voluntary residential curbside recycling collection by the City;
 A list of acceptable recyclable materials that the City will collect; and
 Establishing rules and regulations for the provision of curbside recycling services.

FISCAL IMPACT:  None 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Chapter 15 Revisions
Ordinance  



1 

CHAPTER 15 

GARBAGE, REFUSE, AND RECYCLING 

Section 15-1.  Definitions. 

"Approved type garbage can" as used herein, means a receptacle furnished by the City 
of Temple. 

“Approved Recycling Container” as used herein, means a recycling receptacle 
furnished by the City of Temple.  

"Business" as used herein, means any commercial operation, or any usage of property 
for other than residential purposes, involving the employment of any individual, or the sale or 
manufacture of any product. 

“Collection Cycle” as used herein, means those days of the week or month that are 
specified by the City for the collection of household garbage, brush, shrubs, tree trimmings, 
yard waste, furniture, appliances, or junk and bulk items.  

"Dry garbage" as used herein, means nonputrescible solid waste (excluding ashes), 
consisting of both combustible and noncombustible waste materials; combustible rubbish 
includes paper, rags, cartons, wood, excelsior, furniture, rubber (but not tires), plastics, yard 
trimmings, leaves and similar materials; noncombustible rubbish includes glass crockery, tin 
cans, aluminum cans, metal furniture, and like materials which will not burn at ordinary 
incinerator temperatures (1600-1800 Fahrenheit). 

“Out of Cycle Collection” as used herein, means the collection by the City of 
household garbage, brush, shrubs, tree trimmings, yard waste, furniture, appliances, junk and 
bulk items on any day other than the specified collection cycle days. 

 “Recycling” as used herein, means a process by which materials that have served their 
intended use or are scrapped, discarded, used, surplus, or obsolete are collected, separated, 
composted, or processed, and returned to use in the form of raw materials in the production 
of new products.   

 “Recycling Drop-off Center” as used herein, means a location, either temporary or 
permanent, established for the receipt of recyclable solid waste including, but not limited to, 
aluminum, cardboard, metal, paper, glass, and plastic.  

 “Recycling Program” as used herein, means the organized collection of recyclable 
materials for the purpose of resource recovery and recycling in pursuit of the goals of the 
City. 

"Small Quantity Commercial Solid Waste Generator" as used herein, means a place of 
business that generates a volume of non-wet garbage that will not require over two (2) 
pickups per week of a one-half () cubic yard container (an example would be a small barber 
shop, small fix-it shop, or small business), as determined by the Solid Waste Division. 

“Special Pickup” as used herein, means the out of cycle collection of solid waste by 
the City at the request of the customer and, for which, a fee is assessed. 

"Wet (putrescible) garbage" as used herein, means animal or vegetable matter, such as 
waste material from kitchens, grocery stores, butcher shops, restaurants, cafes, hotels, 



2 

rooming and boarding houses, such as scraps of meat, bread, bones, peelings of fruit and 
vegetables. 

Section 15-2.  Containers Required--For Wet and Dry Garbage. 

 (a) Each owner, occupant, tenant or lessee using and occupying any residence, building, 
house or structure within the corporate limits of the City as a place of abode or as a 
place of business is hereby required to keep and maintain, at all times and at a 
convenient place at his house, dwelling or place of business, if his business is of a 
type which accumulates wet and dry garbage in connection with the operation of 
same, adequate disposable garbage containers in sufficient numbers to properly 
receive and hold all wet and dry garbage, which includes grass clippings and leaves, 
being disposed of from his premises. Each such garbage container shall be made of 
plastic or other disposable material and of good sound construction and shall be 
capable of being secured from leaking and be flytight. 

(b) In areas of the City served by City furnished containers, the disposable containers will 
be placed, unbroken, into the furnished containers. 

(c)      It is the responsibility of the customer to keep their container clean (residential only). 

Section 15-3.  Wet Garbage to be Placed in Proper Container. 

Each person in the City having wet garbage to be disposed of is hereby required to 
place the same in a garbage container meeting the requirements of Section 15-2, and all wet 
garbage shall at all times be stored in such a container. It is hereby declared to be unlawful 
for any person to place any wet garbage on the ground or in an open box or container or to 
store same in any receptacle other than a container meeting the requirements of Section 15-2. 

Section 15-4.  Condition of Container 

All containers shall be the property of the City and must not be painted, marked, 
abused, mutilated, altered, or modified in any way. Abuse and damage to a container by 
customers shall result in an assessment equal to the replacement cost of the container and/or 
time and materials involved to repair such container. Examples of abuse include, but are not 
limited to, overloading the container beyond the rated capacity, fire damage caused by hot 
coals and/or ashes, painting or marking the container in any manner. 

Section 15-5.  All Containers to be Kept Covered. 

  All wet and dry garbage that is to be disposed of shall be placed inside the City 
provided container in such a manner that the lid will close to prevent litter, spillage or entry 
of vectors. No items shall be draped over, hanging out or protruding from the container. 
Items that will not fit inside the container shall be broken down into smaller pieces that will 
fit inside or be placed at the curb for bulk item collection in accordance with Section 15-15. 
Overloaded containers shall be subject to an additional fee charged to the monthly utility bill 
for that residence. Lids shall only be opened while emptying additional garbage in such 
containers or while an authorized person is removing such garbage or unloading the same for 
disposal. 

Section 15-6.  Rocks and Dirt not to be Placed in Containers. 



3 

No rocks or dirt shall be placed in any containers maintained in accord with this 
Chapter. 

Section 15-7.  Disposal of Manure, Offal, Remodeling Material and Other Waste 
 Not Collected by City. 

Manure from private stables, offal and refuse from animals and fowl, night soil, dead 
animals and fowl, refuse from the remodeling of buildings, rocks, dirt, concrete and all other 
waste not mentioned in Section 15-1 must be kept in a suitable receptacle separate from the 
containers required by this Chapter for garbage and not dumped in the alleys or retained on 
the premises so as to become a nuisance, and the same shall be disposed of by the owner 
thereof.  It shall be the duty of the Director of Solid Waste Services to see that such refuse is 
properly disposed of by the owner when so ordered. Such refuse shall be hauled away from 
the premises of the owner at his own expense and by his own means; and such refuse shall 
not be considered "garbage" and shall not be picked up by the garbage trucks of the City 
except as part of the roll off system. 

Section 15-8.  Unauthorized Usage of City Furnished Containers. 

Any person or persons, firm or corporation placing garbage or refuse in a container 
not specifically assigned to that person, firm or corporation shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 

Section 15-9.  Preparation of Brush, Shrubs, Tree Trimmings and Cuttings for 
Collection by City. 

(a) Items placed within eight (8) feet of the curb line of the street shall be considered a 
request for service. 

(b) All leaves and lawn cuttings, tree trimmings and cuttings shall be placed in the City 
furnished containers insofar as is possible and the container's capacity will allow.  

(c) All other brush, shrubs and tree cuttings that cannot be effectively disposed of in the 
container shall be placed behind the curb within three (3) feet of the curb line of the 
street. Items cannot be placed under any low lines or wires or tree limbs and must be 
at least 6 feet from any other object (mail box, car, garbage containers, etc.). 

(d) Brush and tree trimmings shall be placed in a separate pile from any bagged or boxed 
items or bulky items. Mixed brush and bulk at the curb will constitute a special pickup 
and a special pickup fee will be assessed. 

(e) A special pickup may be requested and/or required for out of cycle brush/bulk 
collection or to pickup items that are not normally collected with this service 
(remodeling, demolition or building materials or when there is no water service at 
location). Setting out an item on a “non-cycle” day will constitute a request for service 
and special pickup charges shall apply. Special pickup charges are set by resolution of 
the City Council. 

(f) Private (professional/commercial) tree trimmers must register their businesses with 
the City and will be required to haul their cuttings to the landfill or other site 
designated by the Director of Solid Waste Services. 



4 

(g) Homeowners are encouraged to practice backyard composting and the Don’t Bag It 
Programs for grass clippings, leaves and vegetation. 

(h) Utility companies franchised by the City in easements or right-of-way accepted by the 
City or otherwise authorized to provide utility service are exempted from the 
provisions of this ordinance for the purposes of trimming/removing trees for 
emergency conditions that endanger public safety and welfare by interfering with 
utility service or during the course of reestablishing utility service. Franchised utilities 
will coordinate emergency operations with the Director of Solid Waste Services. 
Utilities will not be charged for disposal of emergency response brush. Utility 
companies are required to haul their trimmings due to routine maintenance and 
dispose of or recycle the trimmings. 

Section 15-10.  Collection by City Generally; Private Collection of Brush, Etc. 

The collection of garbage in the City shall be the responsibility of the Solid Waste 
Division, the employees of which shall make periodic garbage pickups throughout the City 
from the garbage containers provided by the City as required by this Chapter. It shall be 
unlawful for any person, firm or corporation other than employees of the Solid Waste 
Division to collect garbage or refuse in the City without having first obtained written 
authority, by contract, from the City. Such contract shall provide the extent of collection and 
other authority to such person, firm or corporation as the City may deem appropriate. All 
rates of collection shall be regulated by the City Council by resolution. The private collection 
of brush, shrubs, leaves, grass and tree trimmings and cuttings for hire or otherwise shall be 
allowed, notwithstanding the provisions of this section. Private (professional/commercial) 
tree trimmers must register their businesses with the City and are required to haul their 
cuttings to the landfill or other site designated by the Director of Solid Waste Services. 

Section 15-11.  Placement of Containers for Collection. 

The owner, occupant or lessee of any premises within the corporate limits of the City 
shall maintain the garbage containers as outlined in this section: 

(a) The City will, in selected locations as determined by the Director of Solid Waste 
Services and approved by the Director of Public Works, place containers of varying 
capacity for the collection of garbage. Each person, firm or corporation shall be 
notified by the Director of Solid Waste Services of the container location assigned to 
that person, firm or corporation. The use of other containers except by permission of 
Solid Waste Services is not permitted. 

The criteria for placement of containers will be as follows: 

(i) Containers will be placed in the alleys in the central area to serve all business 
activities. 

(ii) Additional containers will be placed in the alleys serving residential accounts 
to the extent that they can economically be serviced. 

(b) City-furnished containers in alleys shall conform to the following requirements: 



5 

(i) The Director of Solid Waste Services shall place the appropriate sized 
containers in such a manner that they will serve three (3) or more residential 
accounts. 

(ii) The allocation of containers for commercial activities will be on a volume-
needed basis. Where there are a number of small volume businesses 
contiguously located, the Director of Solid Waste Services shall place an 
appropriate sized container to serve these commercial accounts. Where the 
volume of garbage from any commercial account is sufficient to justify a 
separate container for that establishment, the Director of Solid Waste Services 
shall so place a container at that location. 

(c) Where there is not an open alley abutting the rear property line of any premises, the 
occupant shall place the garbage containers for collection within three (3) feet of the 
curb line of the street immediately abutting the front property line of the premises, or, 
in the event the premises is a corner lot the containers shall, upon request of the 
Director of Solid Waste Services, be placed within three (3) feet of the curb line of the 
side street. Provided, however, no commercial containers shall be allowed on the 
street right-of-way. In the event the geography of any lot such as slope, etc., prevents 
garbage containers from being placed as hereinabove provided, the Director of Solid 
Waste Services may allow said garbage to be placed for collection at a convenient 
location of said lot. All garbage containers must be placed by the curb by 7:00 a.m. on 
scheduled garbage days and must be removed from the curb by 8:00 p.m. on 
scheduled garbage collection days. 

(d) Notwithstanding conflicting provisions herein, apartment projects and mobile home 
parks may place garbage containers at a designated location within the project or 
mobile home park for collection. The location shall be subject to the approval of the 
Director of Solid Waste Services. 

(e)      Unless otherwise instructed, garbage containers that are equipped with wheels shall be 
placed on the street with the wheels against the curb and a clearance of six (6) feet on 
both sides, two (2) feet to the rear and fourteen (14) feet above. If there is no curb the 
container shall be placed on the pavement or roadway as close as safely possible to 
the right of way with the wheels and handle facing away from the road. 

(f)       Alley containers will be positioned with the lid or lids opening toward the alley so 
they may be properly emptied. Turning or moving alley containers is prohibited.  

(g)  Containers which were not collected because they were not placed at the curb or 
collection point as required are considered “missed containers.” Customers with 
“missed containers” can receive collection services for an additional fee. 



6 

Section 15-12.  Collection Charges. 

 Collection charges for solid waste services shall be set by resolution of the City 
Council. 

Section 15-13.  Billing; Failure to Pay. 

The charges fixed in this Chapter for the removal and disposal of garbage and 
dumping of garbage at the sanitary landfill shall be entered as a charge against each owner, 
occupant or lessee on the water and wastewater bills of the City. Should any person fail or 
refuse to pay the charges fixed against him and his place of abode or his place of business 
when due, the City shall be authorized to cut off and disconnect the water and wastewater 
services to his place of abode or business against which such garbage pickup fees have been 
fixed and assessed, and, in addition thereto, shall be authorized to discontinue garbage pickup 
services until such fees have been paid in full. 

Section 15-14.  No Credit for Vacancy of Premises. 

No credit will be given on the garbage collection charges fixed by this Chapter to any 
owner, occupant or lessee of any residence or place of business for vacancy thereof, unless 
the City is notified by such person and such person requests the City to disconnect or stop 
water, wastewater and garbage service to such premises. 

Section 15-15.  Junk and Bulk Items. 

The Solid Waste Division will collect from residential customers old furniture, 
appliances, junk, and bulk items placed at the curb on regular brush/bulk collection schedule. 

(a) Small items shall be placed in the City furnished container insofar as is possible and 
the container’s capacity will allow.  

(b) Items that cannot be effectively disposed of in the City container shall be placed 
behind the street curb within eight (8) feet of the curb line of the street. Items should 
not be placed under any low wires or limbs and shall be placed at least six feet from 
any other objects (mailboxes, cars, garbage containers, etc.). Items placed in violation 
of this provision shall constitute a request for service. 

(c) Bagged, boxed or bulky items, furniture and appliances shall be placed in a separate 
pile from brush and tree trimmings as they are handled separately. Mixed bulk items 
with brush and tree trimmings will constitute a special pickup for which a fee will be 
assessed. 

(d) A special pickup may be requested and/or required for out of cycle collection or 
collection of items that are not normally collected with this service (remodeling, 
demolition or building materials or when there is no water service at the location). 
Items set out on non-collection days will constitute a request for service for which a 
special pickup charge will be assessed. Special pickup charges are set by resolution of 
the City Council. 



7 

Section 15-16.  Streets and Alleys not to be Used for Storage. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to place, store or abandon garbage, lumber, junk, 
refuse, furniture, appliances, leaves or brush within any alley or upon any street within the 
city limits. 

Section 15-17.  Salvaging Prohibited. 

It shall be unlawful for any person(s) to salvage any items from any refuse container, 
alley container or curb side container within the city limits of the City of Temple. 

Section 15-18.  Inspections to Enforce Ordinance. 

As a condition of receiving garbage service from the City, the Director of Solid Waste 
Services or his designee shall have the right to inspect customer containers, as needed, to 
determine whether garbage is being properly disposed of and to file a complaint against any 
person violating any provision of this Chapter.  

Section 15-19. Hauling Garbage to Sanitary Landfill. 

Should any person haul all or part of his garbage to the sanitary landfill, he shall 
nevertheless be required to: 

 (a) Pay garbage collection fees and dumping fees in accordance with the 
provisions of this Chapter; 

(b) Dump his garbage at the sanitary landfill in accordance with and subject to the 
rules and regulations of the Solid Waste Division and the Temple Landfill; 

(c) Dump his garbage in the area designated by the Temple Landfill; 

(d) Prevent any garbage from falling onto any street, alley or thoroughfare in the 
City.  All loads of loose material shall be covered, enclosed or secured in such 
a manner so as to prevent such material from blowing or falling upon public 
roadways en route. Persons bringing unsecured loads to the landfill will be 
subject to a twenty dollar ($20.00) surcharge per load or as set by the City’s 
contractor, Waste Management of Texas, Inc. Properly bagged trash will be 
considered to be covered. 

(e) All commercial, industrial or institutional haulers are required to prominently 
mark by painted sign or other easily recognizable method both doors of the 
passenger compartment of their vehicles with the name of their firm or 
institution, or in lieu of signs, require their drivers, upon arriving at the 
sanitary landfill scales, to immediately dismount and report to the scale 
operator the name of said firm or institution. 

Section 15-20.  Fees and Use of Sanitary Landfill. 

(a) The City of Temple Landfill is operated by Waste Management of Texas, Inc., 
under a lease agreement between the City of Temple and Waste Management. A copy of the 
lease agreement, dated March 16, 2011 is on file in the Office of the City Secretary, and 
available for inspection by the public. Tipping or dumping fees for use of the Landfill are set 
by Waste Management subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement between the City 



8 

and Waste Management. The agreement also authorizes Waste Management to charge 
additional handling charges for certain types of special waste. 

(b) Residents of the City who present a paid City water bill, which includes a garbage 
collection charge, dated within sixty (60) days of the date of presentment, shall be entitled to 
dump without charge one (1) time each calendar month garbage that is normally collected by 
the City from residences. This section does not authorize free dumping of manure, offal, 
remodeling, demolition, or construction materials or other waste not collected by the City 
from its residential customers. City customers dumping with a paid water bill under this 
section are limited to loads not in excess of one pickup truck. Customers may request prior 
authorization from the City's Director of Solid Waste Services to bring more than one load of 
garbage to the Landfill under this subsection. Without prior approval of the Director of Solid 
Waste Services for dumping in excess of once per month, or for loads containing 
unauthorized solid waste, customers shall pay the current tipping charge. This subsection 
does not require Waste Management to accept for disposal any materials not authorized for 
disposal in a Type I landfill. 

Section 15-21. Exemption from Residential Service Requirement. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Chapter, the Director of Solid Waste 
Services may grant exemptions in areas of the City zoned for agricultural use from the 
requirement in this Chapter that all residences within the City have garbage service. 
Residents may request an exemption in writing from the Director of Solid Waste Services. 
The request signed by the owner of the property in question must demonstrate that the 
residence is adequately served by an alternate method of solid waste disposal that does not 
create a public nuisance or threaten public health and safety. The decision by the Director of 
Solid Waste Services whether to grant an exemption shall be final. The Director of Solid 
Waste Services shall make regular inspections of any exempted residential property to ensure 
that a nuisance or threat to public health and safety is not being created. 

Section 15-22. Collection of Solid Waste Outside the City.  

The Director of Solid Waste Services is authorized to collect solid waste from 
residential customers outside the City under the conditions contained in this section. The 
Director of Solid Waste Services must receive a request for service, and the residence to be 
served must be located on or near a City solid waste collection route for City residents. The 
decision by the Director of Solid Waste Services whether to provide service outside the City 
limits to residential customers shall be final. The charge for service outside the City limits 
shall be 1.25 times the in-City rate for the same service. 

Section 15-23. Carry out service for residents. 

City residents who for health reasons establish to the satisfaction of the Director of 
Solid Waste Services that they are unable to physically place their container curbside for 
collection, and who live alone or have no one residing with them physically able to place the 
container curbside, are eligible for carry out service. The Director may in appropriate 
circumstances require a statement from the resident’s personal physician verifying the need 
for carry out service. Re-enrollment shall be required annually. At such time as the situation 
changes wherein an able-bodied resident becomes available, carry out service terminates and 
containers must be placed at the point of collection in order to be serviced. The container for 
carry out service shall be placed near the front of the house, at a point visible from the street 
so as to be safely accessible by the operator, and not more than fifty feet from the curb of the 
street. Containers for carry out collection shall not be placed inside fenced areas or a garage 
without approval from the Director of Solid Waste Services. 



9 

Section 15-24. Garbage only accounts. 

Residential and commercial customers within the City not serviced by water or 
wastewater service shall be treated as Garbage Only customers. To arrange for such service, 
each customer shall provide necessary information to establish such account and pay a 
deposit at the Utility Business Office. Rates for Garbage Only services are set by Resolution 
of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas. Garbage Only accounts are subject to the 
late payment, disconnection, forfeiture of deposit, returned check, and reconnect provisions 
pertaining to water and wastewater accounts under Chapter 38 of the City Code. 

Section 15-25. Rental Properties, evictions, move-outs. 

In cases of rental properties, any charges for special pickups shall be billed to the 
owner of the property, the responsible party, or the responsible property management office. 

Section 15-26.  Cul-de-sacs. 

           There will be no parking allowed in cul-de-sacs or circles on garbage or recycling    
collection days. Parking blocks collection containers, limiting access or preventing 
collection. Collection will not be provided when such is the case.   

Section 15-27. Lost or Damaged Containers. 

A fee may be applied to replace a lost or damaged garbage container or recycling 
container.  

Section 15-28. Recycling Drop-off Center. 

(a) The City may operate one or more citizen drop-off sites for recyclable materials. 
Materials brought to a drop-off site shall be placed in the designated receptacle, or as directed 
by a site attendant. Materials shall not be left at drop-off sites during non-operational or non-
public access hours. 

(b) It shall be the duty of any person using City recycling drop-off centers or special 
collection events, to follow all traffic, safety, and directional signs, site operating rules and 
verbal directions, or directions posted or given within any City drop-off site at all times. Only 
materials authorized for acceptance at the site are allowed. Failure to comply will constitute a 
violation of this chapter and may result in denial of access to these locations.  

Section 15-29. Curbside Recycling Program. 

(a) Participation in the City’s curbside recycling program is voluntary. Anyone who 
chooses to participate agrees to abide by the rules and requirements set by the Director of 
Solid Waste Services.  Failure to comply with these guidelines may result in forfeiture of all 
privileges to participate in the curbside recycling program. 

(b) A curbside recycling fee is included in the monthly utility fee for residential 
garbage service. There is no additional fee charged for participation in the residential 
curbside recycling program.  

(c) Recycling containers for the residential curbside recycling program will be 
provided by the City. 



10 

Section 15-30. Recycling Container Placement. 

Unless otherwise instructed, recycling  containers that are equipped with wheels shall 
be placed on the street with the wheels against the curb and a clearance of  six (6) feet on 
both sides, two (2) feet to the rear and fourteen (14) feet above. If there is no curb the 
container shall be placed on the pavement or roadway as close as safely possible to the right 
of way with the wheels and handle facing away from the road. All recycling containers must 
be placed by the curb by 7:00 a.m. on scheduled recycling days and must be removed from 
the curb by 8:00 p.m. on scheduled recycling collection days. 

Section 15-31. All Recycling Containers to be Kept Covered. 

All recyclables shall be placed inside the curbside recycling container in such a 
manner that the lid will close to prevent litter, spillage or entry of vectors. No items shall be 
draped over, hanging out or protruding from the container. Lids shall only be opened while 
placing additional recyclables in such containers or while an authorized person is removing 
such recyclables or unloading the same for processing. 

Section 15-32. Inspections to Enforce Ordinance. 

As a condition of receiving residential curbside recycling service from the City, the 
Director of Solid Waste Services or his designee shall have the right to inspect customer 
containers, as needed, to determine whether recyclable materials are being properly disposed 
of and to file a complaint against any person violating any provision of this Chapter.  

Section 15-33. Recycling Collection Outside the City. 

If the customer has qualified for garbage collection service as stated in Section 15-22, 
the customer will also qualify for curbside recycling collection with no additional fee. 

Section 15-34. Recycling Carry Out Service for Residents. 

If the customer has qualified for garbage carry out service as stated in Section 15-23, 
the customer will also qualify for curbside recycling carry out service with no additional fee. 

Section 15-35. Curbside Recycling for Garbage Only Accounts. 

If the customer has qualified for a garbage only account as stated in Section 15-24, the 
customer will also qualify for curbside recycling collection with no additional fee. 

Section 15-36. Curbside Recycling Acceptable Materials. 

(a) Customers are provided a green recycling container in which to place specified 
items (“recyclables” or “recyclable materials”). All items must be acceptable under 
applicable laws and regulations and the City’s contracts with purchasers of recyclable 
materials. Customers participating in the recycling program receive once-per-week collection 
of recyclable materials.  Specific collection days are designated by the Solid Waste Division. 

(b) Acceptable recyclable materials shall be designated by the City, and include: 

(i) Newspaper, mixed office paper, magazines; 

(ii) Corrugated cardboard, pasteboard products (without liners); 



11 

(iii) Aluminum, tin, steel cans; 

(iv) Plastic bottles, and most plastics labeled #1-#7; and 

(v) Other materials as may be designated by the Director of Solid Waste  
Services. 

(c) Recyclables should be rinsed and free of contaminates. 

(d) Recyclables shall be placed in the container loosely and not bagged. 

(e) At the discretion of the Director of Solid Waste Services or his designee, a 
recycling container shall not be collected if the recycling container is contaminated with any 
of the following:  

(i) Garbage 

(ii) Glass 

(iii) Styrofoam 

(iv) Plastic Bags 

(v) Appliances 

(vi) Clothing 

(vii) Toys 

(viii) Dead Animals 

(ix) Yard waste including grass clippings, leaves or trimmings 

(x) Household Hazardous Waste; or 

(xi) Any other materials as may be designated by the Director of Solid 
Waste Services. 

(f) Contamination of a recycling container with any of the materials listed above is 
considered a violation of this Chapter and may result in confiscation of a customer’s 
recycling container as set forth in Section 15-37.  

Section 15-37. City Confiscation of Recycling Container. 

(a) If a recycling container is not serviced due to the conditions detailed in Section 15-
34, the Solid Waste Division shall notify the customer to which the recycling container is 
assigned in writing when and for what reason the recycling container was not serviced. 
Customers receiving notification of no service shall have the option of removing the 
contaminated material from the container and placing the container out for collection on the 
next recycling collection day. 

(b) If the violation in (a) is observed a second time within six (6) months of the first 
violation, the customer to which the recycling container is assigned will receive a verbal 
warning and a second written warning regarding the violation. If the violation is observed a 



12 
 

third time within the same six (6) month period, the customer will receive written notice that 
his container will be confiscated by the City within forty-eight (48) hours. 
 
 (c) A recycling container that has been confiscated as set forth in this section will be 
returned to the customer upon payment of the re-delivery fee.  
 
Section 15-38. Non-Participation in the Curbside Recycling Program. 
 
 Residents not participating in the City recycling program will receive once-per-week 
collection of garbage. This section includes residents that voluntarily do not wish to 
participate. It also includes residents that have been removed from the program due to 
habitual violation of this code. 
 
Section 15-39. Fees. 
 
 The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to establish the fees to 
be applied for replacement of a lost or damaged container, to replace a confiscated recycling 
container, for a second 96-gallon garbage or recycling container, for an overloaded container 
and for a missed container.  
 
Section 15-40.  Curbside Recycling by City Generally. 
 
 Residential curbside recycling collection in the City shall be a part of the duties of the 
Solid Waste Division, the employees of which shall make periodic pickups throughout the 
City from the recycling containers provided by the City as required by this Chapter.  It shall 
be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation other than employees of the Solid Waste 
Division to collect residential recyclable materials in the City without having first obtained 
written authority, by contract, from the City.  Such contract shall provide the extent of 
collection and other authority to such person, firm or corporation as the City may deem 
appropriate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 1

ORDINANCE NO.      
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 15, "GARBAGE AND REFUSE," OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE; PROVIDING A 
REPEALER; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 
 Whereas, the Staff recommends amending Chapter 15, “Garbage and Refuse,” of the 
Code of Ordinances; 
 
 Whereas, the revisions include a general update of Chapter 15 and the addition of 
sections covering the City’s residential curbside recycling program – the new sections address: 
 

 Availability of once a week voluntary residential curbside recycling collection by the 
City; 

 A list of acceptable recyclable materials that the City will collect; and 
 The establishment of rules and regulations for the provision of curbside recycling 

services.  
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council amends Chapter 15, "Garbage and Refuse," of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Temple, Texas, which includes a general update of Chapter 15 and 
the addition of sections covering the City’s residential curbside recycling program, as outlined 
in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 
 

Part 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 



 2

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 21st day of 
November, 2013. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 5th day of December, 2013. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., City Engineer 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance closing and vacating the 
1st Street railroad crossing (DOT no. 022966C) to vehicular traffic. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance as presented in item description, on second and final 
reading. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  As part of the approved Downtown Rail Safety Zone, the BNSF railroad crossing 
located on South 1st Street just south of downtown (Exhibit A) must be closed to vehicular traffic.  

On March 21, 2011, the City entered into a contract with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP (KPA) to 
develop options and alternatives to create a downtown rail safety zone, allowing locomotive traffic to 
operate without the use of horns. Their attached Downtown Rail Safety Zone Report recommended 
closing the South 1st Street crossing and constructing Supplemental Safety Measures (SSM’s) at the 
South Main Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Drive crossings (Exhibit B). October 18, 2012, Council 
resolved to direct Staff to proceed with implementation of the report.  

On April 4, 2013, Council authorized a professional services agreement with KPA to design, bid, and 
provide construction phase services for the recommended street closure and SSM’s in an amount not 
to exceed $98,000. 

In accordance with BNSF policies and procedures, the City Council must approve an ordinance 
authorizing the closing of this crossing. Once the closing has been approved, the City will place 
appropriate end-of-road treatments on both sides of the roadway approaches to the crossing.  



12/05/13 
Item #3(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

ATTACHMENTS:
Exhibit A - S. 1st Street Map 
Exhibit B – Safety Zone Map 
Downtown Rail Safety Zone Report 
Ordinance  







 
 
 
 
 

Temple Reinvestment Zone #1 
Downtown Rail Safety Zone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 2011



INTRODUCTION 
 

A. PURPOSE OF THE STUDY 
 

The purpose of the study is to determine the feasibility of creating a safety zone within the 
downtown area of Temple, Texas and to develop estimated costs for the creation of the safety 
zone.  If feasible, the safety zone will be created by the development of a quiet zone in 
downtown Temple.  A quiet zone is a section of rail line that contains one or more 
consecutive public crossings at which locomotive horns are not routinely sounded. 

 
 
B. SCOPE OF THE STUDY 

 
In general, the scope of the study includes the review of the Burlington Northern Santa Fe 
Railroad (BNSF) crossings located at First Street, Main Street and Martin Luther King Drive 
(see the location map on the next page) for the possibility of creating a safety zone through 
the development of a quiet zone within the downtown district.  The creation of the safety 
zone will be reviewed in conjunction with Federal Rail Administration (FRA) regulations.  
The Federal Rail Administration Train Horn Rule (49 CFR Part 222) requires the sounding 
of locomotive train horns on approach and entry of public road-rail grade crossings.  The 
creation of a quiet zone allows communities to silence train horns by meeting the 
requirements set forth by the FRA. 



DEVELOPMENT OF FRA QUIET ZONE 
 

A. PRE-RULE QUIET ZONE AND PRE-RULE PARTIAL QUIET ZONES 
 

The first step in the creation of a quiet zone is determining if the crossings that are desired to 
be in a quiet zone qualify under the Pre-Rule Quiet Zones.  In order to determine if the 
crossings will qualify under the Pre-Rule Quiet Zones the following must be accomplished: 

 
1.  Identify all the crossings to be included as part of the proposed quiet zone.   

2.  Check whether each crossing qualifies as a pre-rule crossing (horns not sounding on 
October 9, 1996 and December 18, 2003 because of state/local law or community 
agreement with the railroads). If all crossings do not qualify as pre-rule crossings, then 
the proposed quiet zone does not qualify as a Pre-Rule Quiet Zone, and the creation of a 
new quiet zone should be explored.  

3.  Determine whether any crossings are desired to be eliminated from the proposed quiet 
zone. The length of a Pre-Rule Quiet Zone may continue unchanged from that which 
existed on October 9, 1996. If, however, a crossing is to be eliminated, the quiet zone 
must be at least ½ mile in length along the railroad tracks.  

4.  A quiet zone may include highway-rail grade crossings on a segment of rail line crossing 
more than one political jurisdiction, or there may be roads within a particular area that 
are the responsibility of different entities (state or county roads within a town, for 
example). If the selected crossings are the responsibility of more than one entity, obtain 
the cooperation of all relevant jurisdictions.  

5.  Update the USDOT Grade Crossing Inventory Form to reflect conditions at each public 
and private crossing; this update should be complete, accurate, and be dated within 6 
months prior to the quiet zone implementation.  

6.  If each public crossing in the proposed quiet zone is equipped with one or more 
Supplementary Safety Measures (SSMs) as defined in Appendix A of the Rule, the quiet 
zone qualifies for automatic approval. To complete the process of creating the quiet zone, 
notify the parties listed in rule section 222.43 by December 18, 2004.   Supplemental 
Safety Measures are engineering improvements, which when installed at a crossing within 
a quiet zone, would reduce the risk of a collision at the crossing. 

7.  If every public crossing is not equipped with at least one SSM, then the quiet zone can 
automatically qualify by comparing its Quiet Zone Risk Index (QZRI) with the 
Nationwide Significant Risk Threshold (NSRT). However, these quiet zones are subject 
to annual review by the Federal Rail Administration.   The Quiet Zone Risk Index is the 
average risk index for all public crossings in a proposed quiet zone taking into 
consideration the increased risk caused by the absence of train horns and any decrease in 
risk attributable to installed Supplemental Safety Measures or Alternative Safety 
Measures.  The Nationwide Significant Risk Threshold is the average risk index of all 
public, gated crossings in the nation at which train horns sound. 

 



8.  Using the Federal Rail Administration’s Quiet Zone Calculator determine whether the 
QZRI of the proposed quiet zone is less than or equal to the NSRT. If the QZRI is less 
than or equal to the NSRT, the quiet zone qualifies for automatic approval.  

9.  If the QZRI is greater than the NSRT, use the Federal Rail Administration’s Quiet Zone 
Calculator to check whether it is less than twice the NSRT. If the QZRI is more than 
twice the NSRT, the quiet zone cannot qualify for automatic approval.  

10. If the QZRI is greater than the NSRT, but less than twice the NSRT, determine whether 
any of the public crossings have experienced a “relevant collision” on or after December 
18, 1998. If there have not been any “relevant collisions” at any public crossing since 
December 18, 1998, the quiet zone qualifies for automatic approval.  

 
11. If the QZRI is greater than the NSRT, but less than twice the NSRT, and there has been 

a “relevant collision” at a public crossing within the proposed quiet zone, the quiet zone 
cannot qualify for automatic approval. For information on how to proceed, see Section II, 
Pre-Rule Quiet Zones Not Qualified for Automatic Approval.  

 
After reviewing the criteria outlined in Items 1-11 listed above, it has been determined 
that the streets identified in this study do not meet the criteria for automatic approval. 



B. CREATING A NEW QUIET ZONE OR NEW PARTIAL QUIET ZONE USING 
SUPPLEMENTAL SAFETY MEASURES 

 
Since the crossings identified in this study do not meet the requirements for automatic 
approval, a new quiet zone must be created in order to provide a safety zone that will allow 
rail traffic to travel safely in the downtown area without the use of train horns.  In order to 
achieve this, the following must be reviewed and implemented: 

 
 

1.  Select the crossings to be included in the new quiet zone.  

2.  A quiet zone may include highway-rail grade crossings on a segment of rail line crossing 
more than one political jurisdiction, or there may be roads within a particular area that 
are the responsibility of different entities (state or county roads within a town, for 
example). If the selected crossings are the responsibility of more than one entity, obtain 
the cooperation of all relevant jurisdictions.  

3.  A new quiet zone must be at least ½ mile in length along the railroad tracks.  

4.  A new quiet zone must have, at a minimum, flashing lights and gates in place at each 
public crossing. These must be equipped with constant warning time devices where 
reasonably practical, and power out indicators. Any necessary upgrades must be 
completed before calculating risk for the quiet zone.   The crossings at Martin Luther 
King Drive and Main Street have the minimum infrastructure in place for utilizing 
SSMs without additional construction by BNSF.  First Street does not have the 
infrastructure in place. 

5.  Are there any private crossings within the proposed Quiet Zone? If any private crossings 
allow access to the public or provide access to active industrial or commercial sites, a 
diagnostic team review of those crossings must be conducted. Following the diagnostic 
review, the diagnostic team’s recommendations concerning those crossings must be 
complied with. For the creation of this safety zone there are not any private 
crossings. 

6.  Update the USDOT Grade Crossing Inventory Form to reflect conditions at each public 
and private crossing; this update should be complete, accurate, and dated within 6 months 
prior to the quiet zone implementation. For new quiet zones, the baseline conditions for 
calculating risk require that the minimum required traffic control devices are in place. 
This first Inventory update, therefore, must be completed after the gates, lights, and signs 
are in place, but before the SSMs and other measures are implemented.  

  
7.  Using the FRA’s Quiet Zone Calculator, a web-based tool, determine whether the Quiet 

Zone Risk Index (QZRI) of the proposed quiet zone is less than or equal to the 
Nationwide Significant Risk Threshold (NSRT). If the QZRI is less than or equal to the 
NSRT, the quiet zone can be established through public authority designation by 
completing the following steps:  

a.  Install required signage at each crossing.  

b.  Notify the parties listed in the rule.  



Note: Quiet zones established by comparison to the NSRT are subject to annual FRA 
review.  

Note: Periodic updates, including updated USDOT Grade Crossing Inventory Forms, 
must be submitted to the FRA every 2½-3 years.  

8.  The step described above involves qualifying a quiet zone without implementing any 
Supplementary Safety Measures (SSMs) or Alternative Safety Measures (ASMs). If the 
FRA’s Quiet Zone Calculator indicates that the proposed quiet zone will not qualify on 
that basis, then any required measures shall be installed. To qualify for Public Authority 
Designation, the following requirements shall be met:  implement SSMs, build grade 
separations, close crossings, or install wayside horns.  

 
9.  If every public crossing in the proposed quiet zone is equipped with one or more SSMs, 

the quiet zone can be established through public authority designation by completing the 
following steps:  

a.  Install required signage at each crossing. 

b.  Update the National Grade Crossing Inventory to reflect current conditions at each 
public and private crossing within the Quiet Zone.  

c.  Notify the parties listed in the rule.  

 
Note: Periodic updates, including updated USDOT Grade Crossing Inventory Forms, 
must be submitted to the FRA every 4½-5 years.  
 

10. If every public crossing is not equipped with an SSM, use the FRA’s Quiet Zone 
Calculator to determine whether enough SSMs have been implemented to reduce the 
QZRI to the level of risk that would exist if the train horns were still sounded (RIWH). If 
the QZRI is less than or equal to the RIWH, the quiet zone can be established through 
public authority designation by completing the following steps: RIWH is the Risk Index 
with Horns.  The is the level of risk as determined by at grade rail crossings with train 
horns sounding. 

a.  Install required signage at each crossing.  

b.  Update the National Grade Crossing Inventory to reflect current conditions at each 
public and private crossing within the quiet zone.  

c.  Notify the parties listed in the rule.  

 
Note: Periodic updates, including updated USDOT Grade Crossing Inventory Forms, 
must be submitted to FRA every 2½-3 years.  
 

11. Use the FRA’s Quiet Zone Calculator to determine whether enough SSMs have been 
implemented to reduce the QZRI to the Nationwide Significant Risk Threshold (NSRT). 



If the QZRI is less than or equal to the current NSRT, the quiet zone can be established 
through public authority designation by completing the following steps:  

a.  Install required signage at each crossing.  

b.  Update the National Grade Crossing Inventory to reflect current conditions at each 
public and private crossing within the quiet zone.  

c.  Notify the parties listed in the rule.  

 
Note: Quiet zones established by comparison to the NSRT are subject to annual FRA 
review.  

Note: Periodic updates, including updated USDOT Grade Crossing Inventory Forms, must 
be submitted to the FRA every 2½-3 years.  
 
For the Temple Downtown Area Supplemental Safety Measures (SSMs) will be required in 
order to have a railroad crossing within a quiet zone.  Approved Supplemental Safety 
Measures by the Federal Rail Administration are: 

 
 Four quadrant gates  
 Medians or channelization devices at gated crossings 
 Temporary closure (i.e. nighttime closure) 

 
The four quadrant gates are by far the easiest solution for the creation of quiet zones with at 
grade crossings.  They are the most expensive option as well with each intersection costing as 
much as $500,000.  These SSMs require intense work by the BNSF which will drive up costs 
for the City of Temple.  For this reason it is not feasible to create the safety zone in the 
downtown area utilizing four quadrant gates. 
 
One way streets and temporary closures are also an option that is not feasible.  Traffic in the 
downtown area of Temple requires directional (two-way) traffic due to the layout of the area.  
As a result, these options are not practicable or feasible for downtown Temple. 
 
Medians for Main Street and Martin Luther King Drive present a viable SSM for the creation 
of a quiet zone.  Infrastructure is currently in place within the BNSF rail line to allow the 
median to function with the gate system, although the gates at Martin Luther King Drive will 
need to be investigated for coverage by a proposed median.  First Street does not have the 
required constant warning devices in place to implement SSMs without construction efforts 
from the BNSF.  For this reason, along with pedestrian traffic near this crossing, we will 
explore closing this rail crossing. 



C. CITY OF TEMPLE DOWNTOWN AREA STREETS CONSIDERED FOR NEW 
QUIET ZONE 

 
1.  Martin Luther King Drive   

The BNSF Railroad crosses Martin Luther King Drive (MLK) east of their terminal yard.  
MLK is a four lane roadway at this location with existing gates that are connected to 
HXP-1 constant warning circuitry.  This crossing is equipped with power-out light 
indicators on the crossing houses.  This location is defined on the U.S. Department of 
Transportation Grade Crossing Inventory as DOT Number 022964N located at Rail Road 
Mile Post 217.69.  These elements qualify this at grade crossing to meet the minimum 
requirements for active warning devices, thus allowing Supplemental Safety Measures 
(SSM) to be installed without additional construction to the BNSF mainline.  This 
intersection will need to have medians constructed as a SSM to reduce the Quiet Zone Risk 
Index and qualify this intersection to be included in the proposed safety zone.  Please see Page 
11 for the Martin Luther King Drive exhibit. 

 
2.  Main Street   

The Main Street crossing of the BNSF railroad occurs in the downtown area of Temple 
directly east of the connection to the BNSF terminal yard.  It is a two lane roadway that 
has an abandoned rail crossing directly south of the BNSF mainline crossing.  This 
crossing is equipped with gates connected to HXP-1 constant warning circuitry and 
power-out light indicators on the crossing houses.  This location is defined on the U.S. 
Department of Transportation Grade Crossing Inventory as DOT Number 022964N 
located at Rail Road Mile Post 217.69.  These elements qualify this at grade crossing to 
meet the minimum requirements for active warning devices, thus allowing Supplemental 
Safety Measures (SSM) to be installed without additional construction to the BNSF 
mainline.  This intersection will need to have medians constructed as an SSM to reduce 
the Quiet Zone Risk Index and qualify this intersection to be included in the proposed 
safety zone.  Please see Page 12 for the Main Street Exhibit. 

 

3.  First Street   

First Street is located directly west of Main Street.  Currently the rail crossing does not 
have the constant warning devices in place to develop SSMs to allow this intersection to 
qualify in the safety zone with out construction efforts from BNSF.  The proximity 
requires that this crossing be included in the quiet zone or be eliminated.  First Street is 
located adjacent to the Farmers Market and Santa Fe Gardens in the downtown area of 
Temple.  These attractions create heavy pedestrian traffic for First Street at this location.  
The best scenario is to close this crossing.  BNSF will have to remove the active warning 
devices and crossing panels from the track for the closing to occur.  The cost for 
removing these items will be the responsibility of the BNSF and there will not be any cost 
for these efforts to the City of Temple.  There are incentives available from BNSF for 
closing existing at grade rail crossings.  The amount of the incentive has been determined 
to be $17,500 by the BNSF Closure Review Committee.  This has been submitted to the 
BNSF and will expire on January 1, 2012. It is anticipated that the amount will remain 
the same for future submittals. The Texas Department of Transportation can also offer 



$7,500 for safety improvements at this intersection.  These incentives allow a total of 
$25,000 to be utilized for this project.  Please See Page 13 
 
Cost estimates for each crossing have been developed and are included in this report.  All 
rail crossings must be completed in order to create the safety zone due to the location of 
the crossings.  The total cost for the creation of the safety zone is $450,000. 











 



 
 1 

 ORDINANCE NO.      
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, CLOSING AND VACATING THE RAILROAD CROSSING (DOT 
NO. 022966C), RAILROAD MILEPOST 218.055, LOCATED ON 1ST 
STREET, TO VEHICULAR TRAFFIC; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

Whereas, the BNSF Railway Company and the City of Temple have joined together 
to consolidate redundant and unnecessary street/railroad crossings; 

 
Whereas, as part of the Downtown Quiet Zone, the railroad crossing located on 1st 

Street (DOT no. 022966C), Milepost 218.055, as shown on Exhibit A, must be closed to 
vehicular traffic; 
 

Whereas, in accordance with BNSF policies and procedures, the City Council must 
approve an Ordinance authorizing the closing of this crossing – once approved, the City will 
place appropriate end-of-road treatments on both sides of the roadway approaches at a 
minimum distance of 25 feet from the centerline of the north track and 35 feet from the 
centerline of the south track; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 

interest to declare approve this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves the permanent closure of the railroad crossing on 
1st Street (DOT no. 022966C), Milepost 218.055, to vehicular traffic and such crossing will 
be vacated at the time the City of Temple places appropriate end-of-road treatment on both of 
the roadway approaches at a minimum distance of 25 feet from the centerline of the north 
track and 35 feet from the centerline of the south track.  The City will then remove both 
roadway approaches between the end-of-road treatment and the track.  

 
Part 2: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any 

person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 3: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage, and it 
is accordingly so ordained. 
 



 
 2 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading on the 21st day of November, 2013. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of 
December, 2013. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF BELL § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of November, 2013, by 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor of the City of Temple, Texas. 
 
              
       Notary Public, State of Texas 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(M) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  A-FY-13-17: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the release of an 
existing 10-foot wide public utility easement being approximately 0.061 acres (volume 1654, page 
299), located on property proposed for the Final Plat of Ramcon Subdivision, at the southeast corner 
of South 39th Street and Ramcon Drive. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in the item description releasing an 
existing 10-foot wide public utility easement being approximately 0.061 acres, located at the 
southeast corner of South 39th Street and Ramcon Drive.  

ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant requests the release of this existing 10-foot wide public utility 
easement to allow construction of a proposed Holiday Inn Express.  Approval of this request will allow 
the applicants to complete the platting process for the Final Plat of Ramcon Subdivision and to 
proceed with the building permit process. 

Planning Staff contacted all utility providers, including the Utility Division within the Public 
Works/Engineering Department concerning this request.  The easement has been used for an active 
sewer line, which has been relocated to another easement on the property.  All other facilities are 
clear of the subject easement.  AT&T Texas has buried facilities in an intersecting easement along 
the east right-of-way of South 39th Street.  That easement would not be affected by this request. 
There are no objections to the requested easement release. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Staff recommends this easement be released at no cost to the underlying property 
owner, per Section 272.001 of the Texas Local Government Code.     

ATTACHMENTS:   
Easement Exhibit 
Resolution 





1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.      
 

(PLANNING NO. A-FY-13-17) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, ABANDONING A 10-FOOT WIDE PUBLIC 
UTILITY EASEMENT, BEING APPROXIMATELY 0.061 ACRES AND 
LOCATED ON PROPERTY PROPOSED FOR THE FINAL PLAT OF 
RAMCON SUBDIVISION, AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 
SOUTH 39TH STREET AND RAMCON DRIVE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the applicant requests the City of Temple release an existing 10-foot 
wide public utility easement located at the southeast corner of south 39th Street and 
Ramcon Drive to allow construction of a proposed Holiday Inn Express; 
 
 Whereas, the Utility Division within the Public Works/Engineering Department 
confirmed the existing utility easement has been used for an active sewer line, which has been 
relocated to another easement on the property – all other facilities are clear of the subject 
easement and staff recommends this easement be released;  
 
 Whereas, the Utility Division within the Public Works/Engineering Department 
concurs with (1) release of the easement described in Volume 1654, Page 299; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City of Temple, Texas, abandons a 10-foot-wide public utility 
easement, being approximately 0.061 acres and located on property proposed for the final 
plat of Ramcon Subdivision, at the southeast corner of South 39th Street and Ramcon 
Drive, which is more particularly described in Volume 1654, Page 299, of the real 
property records of Bell County, Texas, and in Exhibit A to this resolution. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 7th day of December, 2013. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 



2 
 

 
 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF BELL  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of ____________, 2013, 
by Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor of the City of Temple, Texas, on behalf of the City. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Notary Public, State of Texas 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(N) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Director of Public Works 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an offer letter to: 

1. Sabre27, LLC for acquisition of a utility easement for the North Loop 363 and IH-35
utility extension.

2. Frank Mayborn Enterprises, Inc. for acquisition of a utility easement for the North Loop
363 and IH-35 utility extension.

Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The 
City Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of 
real property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect 
on negotiations with a third party. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  On May 16, 2013, Council authorized a professional services agreement with 
Clark & Fuller, PLLC for professional engineering services required to complete utility extensions to 
the North Loop 363 and IH-35 interchange, including new water, new wastewater, and force main 
replacement. As part of the work done by Clark & Fuller, an easement is required across property 
owned by Sabre27, LLC. A second easement is required across property owned by Frank Mayborn 
Enterprises, Inc.  

Appraisals were performed on both properties. Approximately 0.850 acre is needed across Sabre27, 
LLC’s property for the utility extension. The appraised amount of this easement was $55,539. 
Approximately 0.638 acre is needed across Frank Mayborn Enterprises, Inc.’s property for the utility 
extension. The appraised amount of this easement was $52,247.  

Staff is requesting authorization to offer Sabre27, LLC the appraised amount of $55,539 for the utility 
easement. Similarly, Staff is requesting authorization to offer Frank Mayborn Enterprises, Inc. the 
appraised amount of $52,247 for the utility easement needed across its property.  



12/05/13 
Item #3(N) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  A budget adjustment is being present to Council appropriating funds in the 
amount of $107,786 from Water & Sewer Retained Earnings, account 520-0000-373-0412, to Capital 
Land, account 520-5900-535-6110, project 100986 to fund the purchase of the two (2) utility 
easements for the North Loop 363 and IH-35 utility extension project. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Surveys 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 













FY 2014
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER

PROJECT 
# DECREASE

520-5900-535-61-10 100986

520-0000-373-04-12 107,786$    

TOTAL……………………………………………………………………………… 107,786$    

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? x Yes No

DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? x Yes No

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

Disapproved

To appropriate funds needed to purchase two (2) utility easements for the North Loop 363/IH-35 Utility Improvements Project, 
#100986.  The first utility easement needed is approximately 0.850 acre across Sabre27, LLC property with an appraised value of
$55,539.  The second utility easement needed is approximately 0.638 acre across Frank Mayborn Enterprises, Inc. property with 
an appraised value of $52,247. 

12/5/2013

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased 
account are available.

107,786$    

INCREASE

107,786$    

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

Capital Land / Land Purchase

W&S Unreserved Retained Earnings

DO NOT POST

Date

Date

Date

City Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance

Revised form - 10/27/06



 1

RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN OFFER LETTER TO SABRE27, LLC AND 
FRANK MAYBORN ENTERPRISES, INC., FOR ACQUISITION OF 
UTILITY EASEMENTS FOR THE NORTH LOOP 363 AND IH-35 
UTILITY EXTENSION; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on May 16, 2013, Council authorized a professional services agreement 
with Clark & Fuller, PLLC for professional engineering services required to complete utility 
extensions to the North Loop 363 and IH-35 interchange, including new water, new 
wastewater, and force main replacement; 
 
 Whereas, as part of the services provided by Clark & Fuller, easements are required 
across property owned by Sabre27, LLC and Frank Mayborn Enterprises, Inc.; 
 
 Whereas, appraisals were performed on both properties and an approximate 0.850 
acre area is needed across Sabre27, LLC’s property and an approximate 0.638 acre is needed 
across Frank Mayborn Enterprises, Inc.’s property for the utility extension; 
 
 Whereas, staff is requesting authorization to offer Sabre27, LLC the appraised 
amount of $55,539 and Frank Mayborn Enterprises, Inc. the appraised amount of $52,247 for 
the utility easements needed across the properties; 
 

Whereas, funds are available for these purchases, but an amendment to the fiscal year 
2013-2014 budget needs to be approved to transfer the funds to Account No. 520-5900-535-
6110, Project No. 100986; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute an 
offer letter to Sabre27, LLC, in the amount of $55,539, for acquisition of a utility easement 
for the North Loop 363 and IH-35 utility extension.  
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute an 
offer letter to Frank Mayborn Enterprises, Inc., in the amount of $52,247, for acquisition of a 
utility easement for the North Loop 363 and IH-35 utility extension. 

 
Part 3: The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2013-2014 

budget, substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 

 



 2

 
 
Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of December, 2013. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(O) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Ron Snider, Interim Fire Chief 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the submission of a grant 
application for the FY 2013 Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program, through the U.S. Department of 
Homeland Security, for the purchase of training props in the total amount of $652,175, with a 
$293,825 match. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Assistance to Firefighters Grants (AFG) provides financial assistance to fire 
departments and nonaffiliated EMS organizations to enhance their capabilities with respect to fire and 
fire-related hazards. The primary goal of the grant program is to help fire departments and 
nonaffiliated EMS organizations meet their firefighting and emergency response needs.  AFG seeks 
to support organizations that lack the tools and resources necessary to more effectively protect the 
life and safety of the public and their emergency response personnel with respect to fire and all other 
hazards. 

Eligible applicants for this grant include fire departments, and national, regional, State, local or 
community organizations that are recognized for their experience and expertise in training activities or 
safety programs.  The maximum award amount is $1,000,000 for a community with a population of 
less than 100,000.  Fire departments that serve a population of more than 20,000 and less than 
1,000,000 must match the Federal grant funds with an amount of non-Federal funds equal to 10-
percent of the total project costs. 

Temple Fire & Rescue (TF&R) is requesting funding for training props to be used in the training tower 
located at Station 8, which is currently under design.  Construction on the training tower is anticipated 
to begin late spring 2014.  The props simulate real-life fires, allowing the trainees to train in similar 
situations that will be present in real events.  The proposed props include a kitchen, single stove, 
cubicle desk with bookshelf (x2), sofa (x2), double bed, and hallway flashover. 



12/05/13 
Item #3(O) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

Under the current budget TF&R plans to purchase one operation system and four props, if the grant 
is awarded TF&R will be able to purchase an additional operation system and four props.  Funds 
budgeted for the purchase of the props, in the amount of $ 293,825, will be leveraged as a 45-percent  
grant match.  Although only a minimum 10-percent grant match is required, the high match should 
make the application more competitive and more favorable in the review and award process.  The 
total project cost totals $652,175, with a total of $ 358,350 being requested from AFG. 

Staff also asks that Council authorize the City Manager to execute necessary documents associated 
with the AFG program, upon receiving a grant award. 

FISCAL IMPACT: If awarded the grant the City anticipates receiving $ 358,350 in grant funds with 
the City matching $293,825 for a total project cost of $652,175.  Funds for the City match are 
available from the 2009 General Obligation Bonds in account 363-2200-522-6851 project #100896.   

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 

RESOLUTION NO.  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS APPROVING THE SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION FOR 
THE PURCHASE OF TRAINING PROPS, THROUGH THE DEPARTMENT 
OF HOMELAND SECURITY FOR THE 2013 ASSISTANCE TO 
FIREFIGHTERS GRANT PROGRAM, IN A TOTAL AMOUNT OF $652,175, 
WITH A CITY MATCH OF $293,825; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the Assistance to Firefighters Grants (AFG) provide financial assistance to the 
fire departments and nonaffiliated EMS organizations to enhance their capabilities with respect 
to fire and fire-related hazards and to meet the firefighting and emergency response needs; 

Whereas, AFG seeks to support organizations that lack the tools and resources necessary 
to more efficiently protect the life and safety of the public and their emergency response 
personnel with respect to fire and other hazards; 

Whereas, Temple Fire & Rescue (TFR) is requesting funding for training props to be 
used in the training town located at Station 8, which is currently under design – the props 
simulate real-life fires, allowing the trainees to train in similar situations that will be present in 
real events; 

Whereas, if awarded the grant, the City anticipates receiving $358,350 in grant funds, 
with the City matching $293,825, for a total project cost of $652,175 – funds for the City match 
are available in Account No. 363-2200-522-6851, Project No. 100896; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the submission of a grant application for the 
purchase of training props, through the Department of Homeland Security, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, for the 2013 Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program, in a total 
project amount of $652,175, with a City match of $293,825. 

Part 2: The City Council accepts any funds that may be received for this grant, and 
authorizes the City Manager to execute any documents which may be necessary for this grant. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of December, 2013. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
             

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
            ____ 
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(P) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Brynn Myers, Director of Administrative Services 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution amending the City of Temple Civil Service-Fire 
and Civil Service-Police Pay Schedules, to be effective March 14, 2014. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The FY 2014 Adopted Budget includes an allocation for the implementation of 
updated Civil Service-Fire and Civil Service-Police Pay Schedules based on an updated 
Compensation/Market Study conducted in 2013. The study included multiple factors in comparison to 
market cities such as sales tax revenue, population, calls for service, per capita income, and 
geographic proximity.  The proposed pay adjustments vary between the two civil service pay 
schedules based upon the market data.   

FISCAL IMPACT: The FY 2014 Budget includes and allocation of $488,821 for the implementation of 
the updated pay schedules.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Civil Service – Fire Pay Schedule 
Civil Service – Police Pay Schedule 
Resolution 



PROPOSED FIRE PAY SCHEDULE- to be effective March 14, 2014

Annual
 % Between 

Steps
Annual

% Between 

Steps
$s %

PSI-030 & PSI-031 Firefighter

1 0-1 Years 37,853$       38,610$       757$   2.00%

2 1st Anniversary 39,746         5.00% 40,541         5.00% 795             2.00%

3 3rd Anniversary 41,734         5.00% 42,568         5.00% 834             2.00%

4 5th Anniversary 43,820         5.00% 44,697         5.00% 877             2.00%

5 7th Anniversary 46,011         5.00% 46,931         5.00% 920             2.00%

6 9th Anniversary 48,312         5.00% 49,278         5.00% 966             2.00%

7 15th Anniversary 50,727         5.00% 51,742         5.00% 1,015         2.00%

PSI-032 & PSI-037 Fire Driver

1 1st Anniversary 48,272         50,236         1,964         4.07%

2 3rd Anniversary 50,202         4.00% 52,246         4.00% 2,044         4.07%

3 5th Anniversary 51,709         3.00% 53,813         3.00% 2,104         4.07%

4 7th Anniversary 53,776         4.00% 55,965         4.00% 2,189         4.07%

5 9th Anniversary 55,927         4.00% 58,204         4.00% 2,277         4.07%

6 15th Anniversary 57,605         3.00% 59,950         3.00% 2,345         4.07%

PSI-033 & PSI-034 Fire Captain

1 3rd Anniversary 56,758         63,756         6,998         12.33%

2 5th Anniversary 58,744         3.50% 65,987         3.50% 7,243         12.33%

3 7th Anniversary 60,801         3.50% 68,297         3.50% 7,496         12.33%

4 9th Anniversary 62,928         3.50% 70,687         3.50% 7,759         12.33%

5 15th Anniversary 64,816         3.00% 72,808         3.00% 7,992         12.33%

PSI-035 & PSI-036 Deputy Fire Chief

1 5th Anniversary 74,963         78,726         3,763         5.02%

2 7th Anniversary 77,587         3.50% 81,482         3.50% 3,895         5.02%

3 9th Anniversary 80,301         3.50% 84,332         3.50% 4,031         5.02%

4 15th Anniversary 83,112         3.50% 87,285         3.50% 4,173         5.02%

Class, Title, Steps,

and Time in Grade

CURRENT PROPOSED Annual Increase



PROPOSED POLICE PAY SCHEDULE- to be effective March 14, 2014

Annual
 % Between 

Steps
Annual

% Between 

Steps
$s %

PSII-021 Police Officer

1 0-1 Years 40,907$       41,725$       818$   2.00%

2 1st Anniversary 44,180         8.00% 45,064         8.00% 884             2.00%

3 3rd Anniversary 47,273         7.00% 48,218         7.00% 945             2.00%

4 6th Anniversary 49,637         5.00% 50,630         5.00% 993             2.00%

5 10th Anniversary 52,119         5.00% 53,161         5.00% 1,042         2.00%

6 15th Anniversary 54,725         5.00% 55,820         5.00% 1,095         2.00%

7 20th Anniversary 57,461         5.00% 58,610         5.00% 1,149         2.00%

PSII-022 Corporal

3 3rd Anniversary 49,637         50,630         993             2.00%

4 6th Anniversary 52,119         5.00% 53,161         5.00% 1,042         2.00%

5 10th Anniversary 54,725         5.00% 55,820         5.00% 1,095         2.00%

6 15th Anniversary 57,461         5.00% 58,610         5.00% 1,149         2.00%

7 20th Anniversary 60,334         5.00% 61,541         5.00% 1,207         2.00%

PSII-023 Police Sergeant

3 3rd Anniversary 56,356         59,833         3,477         6.17%

4 6th Anniversary 58,892         4.50% 62,526         4.50% 3,634         6.17%

5 10th Anniversary 61,542         4.50% 65,339         4.50% 3,797         6.17%

6 15th Anniversary 64,312         4.50% 68,280         4.50% 3,968         6.17%

7 20th Anniversary 67,206         4.50% 71,353         4.50% 4,147         6.17%

PSII-024 Police Lieutenant

3 5th Anniversary 66,079         71,352         5,273         7.98%

4 8th Anniversary 69,053         4.50% 74,563         4.50% 5,510         7.98%

5 12th Anniversary 72,161         4.50% 77,919         4.50% 5,758         7.98%

6 16th Anniversary 75,409         4.50% 81,427         4.50% 6,018         7.98%

7 20th Anniversary 78,802         4.50% 85,090         4.50% 6,288         7.98%

PSII-025 Deputy Police Chief

4 7th Anniversary 81,089         82,711         1,622         2.00%

5 12th Anniversary 85,142         5.00% 86,845         5.00% 1,703         2.00%

6 16th Anniversary 88,548         4.00% 90,319         4.00% 1,771         2.00%

7 20th Anniversary 92,091         4.00% 93,933         4.00% 1,842         2.00%

Class, Title, Steps, CURRENT PROPOSED Annual Increase

and Time in Grade



RESOLUTION NO.  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE CITY OF TEMPLE CIVIL SERVICE – FIRE AND 
CIVIL SERVICE – POLICE PAY SCHEDULES, TO BE EFFECTIVE MARCH 
14, 2014; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the fiscal year adopted budget includes an allocation for the implementation of 
updated Civil Service - Fire and Civil Service – Police pay schedules based on an updated 
Compensation/Market Study conducted in 2013; 

Whereas, the study included multiple factors in comparison to market cities such as sales 
tax revenue, population, calls for service, per capital income, and geographic proximity; 

Whereas, the proposed pay adjustments vary between the two civil service pay schedules 
based upon market data; 

Whereas, the fiscal year budget includes an allocation of funds for the implementation of 
the updated pay schedules, attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council approves amending the City of Temple Civil Service – Fire and 
Civil Service – Police pay schedules, effective March 14, 2014, in accordance with the pay 
schedules which are attached as Exhibit A. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of December, 2013. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(Q) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the cancellation of the January 2, 
2014, City Council meeting. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The first Regular City Council Meeting is scheduled for January 2, 2014. Due to 
the holidays, the Staff recommends cancelling this meeting.  The second Regular City Council 
meeting scheduled for Thursday, January 16, 2014, will be held as scheduled. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, CANCELING THE JANUARY 2, 2014 CITY COUNCIL MEETING; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the first regular City Council meeting of 2014 is scheduled for January 2, 2014; 

Whereas, due to the holidays, staff recommends canceling this meeting – the second regular 
City Council meeting scheduled for January 16, 2014, will be held as scheduled; 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS,
THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council approves canceling the January 2, 2014 City Council meeting due to 
the holidays – the second regular City Council meeting scheduled for January 16, 2014 will be held  as 
scheduled. 

Part 2 It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution is 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of December, 2013. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #3(R) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal year 
2013-2014. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  This item is to recommend various budget amendments, based on the adopted 
FY 2013-2014 budget. The amendments will involve transfers of funds between contingency 
accounts, department and fund levels. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The total amount of budget amendments is $45,500. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Budget Amendments 
Resolution 



CITY OF TEMPLE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2014 BUDGET

December 5, 2013

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

110-2210-522-2616 Professional (Fire) 24,500$         
110-1500-515-6532 Contingency/Cont. Fund Balance 24,500$        

Appropriate funds to be used to hire an executive recruitment firm to
conduct the search to fill the vacant Fire Chief position.

110-2700-515-2616 Professional (Human Resources) 21,000$         
110-1500-515-6532 Contingency/Cont. Fund Balance 21,000$        

Appropriate funds to be used to hire an executive recruitment firm to
conduct the search to fill the vacant Human Resources Director position.

TOTAL AMENDMENTS 45,500$         45,500$       

GENERAL FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 498,072$      
Added to Contingency Sweep Account 89,700          
Carry forward from Prior Year - 
Taken From Contingency (171,736)      
Net Balance of Contingency Account 416,036$      

Beginning Judgments & Damages Contingency 40,000$        
Added to Contingency Judgments & Damages from Council Contingency - 
Taken From Judgments & Damages (1,000)           
Net Balance of Judgments & Damages Contingency Account 39,000$        

Beginning Compensation Contingency 288,000$      
Added to Compensation Contingency - 
Taken From Compensation Contingency - 
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 288,000$      

Net Balance Council Contingency 743,036$     

Beginning Balance Budget Sweep Contingency -$              
Added to Budget Sweep Contingency - 
Taken From Budget Sweep - 
Net Balance of Budget Sweep Contingency Account -$  

WATER & SEWER FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 50,000$        
Added to Contingency Sweep Account - 
Taken From Contingency - 
Net Balance of Contingency Account 50,000$        

Beginning Compensation Contingency 50,000$        
Added to Compensation Contingency - 
Taken From Compensation Contingency - 
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 50,000$        

Net Balance Water & Sewer Fund Contingency 100,000$     

1



CITY OF TEMPLE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2014 BUDGET

December 5, 2013

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 29,107$        
Added to Contingency Sweep Account - 
Carry forward from Prior Year - 
Taken From Contingency - 
Net Balance of Contingency Account 29,107$        

Beginning Compensation Contingency 7,500$          
Added to Compensation Contingency - 
Taken From Compensation Contingency - 
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 7,500$          

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency 36,607$       

DRAINAGE FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$              
Added to Contingency Sweep Account - 
Carry forward from Prior Year - 
Taken From Contingency - 
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$              

Beginning Compensation Contingency 7,500$          
Added to Compensation Contingency - 
Taken From Compensation Contingency - 
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 7,500$          

Net Balance Drainage Fund Contingency 7,500$         

FED/STATE GRANT FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$              
Carry forward from Prior Year - 
Added to Contingency Sweep Account - 
Taken From Contingency - 
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$              

2



RESOLUTION NO.  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE 
2013-2014 CITY BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

________________________________________________________________ 

Whereas, on the 29th day of August, 2013, the City Council approved a budget 
for the 2013-2014 fiscal year; and 

 Whereas, the City Council deems it in the public interest to make certain 
amendments to the 2013-2014 City Budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council approves amending the 2013-2014 City Budget by 
adopting the budget amendments which are more fully described in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of December, 2013. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson  Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

12/05/13 
Item #4 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Phillip Melton, Planning Intern 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-13-33: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Light Industrial (LI) to Heavy Industrial (HI) with a 
Conditional Use Permit to operate a heat kiln and wood chipper on 19.68 ± acres of the Nancy 
Ferguson Survey, Abstract No. 322, in Bell County Texas, located at 1407 Industrial Boulevard. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its November 4, 2013 meeting, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend approval of the zoning change from 
Light Industrial (LI) to Heavy Industrial (HI) with a Conditional Use Permit for the above described 
property. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for December 19, 
2013. 

Based on the following, staff recommends approval for a zoning change from LI to HI with a 
Conditional Use Permit to operate a heat kiln and wood chipper for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed zoning and Conditional Use Permit is consistent with the Future Land
Use Map which identifies this area as Industrial;

2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan;
3. The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding uses;
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property; and,
5. Adequate buffering will be installed

ITEM SUMMARY: The property is located on the south side of Industrial Boulevard adjacent and east 
of the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad.  The property is addressed as 1407 Industrial 
Boulevard.  The applicant is requesting both a zoning change from LI to HI and a Conditional Use 
Permit to operate a heat kiln and a wood chipper. According to the City of Temple Comprehensive 
Plan / Future Land Use Plan, the subject property is designated Industrial. A plat for the site is 
currently under review that divides the site into two lots. The zoning change and CUP is only for the 
northern lot with frontage on Industrial Blvd. and is outside of the I-35 Overlay. 



 
 

12/05/13 
Item #4 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
ZONE CHANGE: The applicant is requesting a zoning change from LI to HI. HI zoning provides for 
the most intensive uses within the community and is intended for those industrial uses that may need 
to be buffered. Lots should be large to contain air, noise, odor, and vibration pollution to a reasonable 
amount. Residential uses are not allowed and HI zoning is intended to be located away from all 
residential development. 
 
The HI zoning district allows an asphalt batching plant permitted by right and recycling operations 
subject to limitations; all other industrial uses would require a conditional use permit. Allowed non-
industrial uses include, but are not limited to, offices, restaurants, and retail sales. Prohibited uses 
include, but are not limited to, residential uses, hospitals, elementary and secondary schools, and 
hotels. 
 
 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: The applicant proposes to establish a business that utilizes a heat kiln 
and wood chipper. No other uses, other than those permitted by right and those specifically identified 
in this Conditional Use Permit, are authorized. This use is not listed on the Use Table in the Unified 
Development Code and would fall under the “Industrial uses other than listed” category which would 
require a Conditional Use Permit in a Heavy Industrial zoning district. The applicant has also 
indicated on the site plan that open storage will be utilized on site (see attached site plan for 
designated open storage area) and privacy fencing is required to buffer the use from adjacent uses. 
The applicant has submitted a site plan in accordance to UDC Section 3.5.2B.  
 
Unless expressly identified in writing in the ordnance, the site must meet all UDC standards. The 
following conditions for the use are outlined in the Conditional Use Permit ordinance: 
 
Kiln Size: The heat kiln will be limited to 15’ tall and will be located on the east side of the site behind 
the 90,000 SF building.  
 
Site Clean Up: The subject property currently has multiple deteriorating buildings that will be 
removed or brought to code as outlined on the site plan. To mitigate additional fire, health and safety 
risks, debris, such as but not limited, to tires, scrap wood, metal, and other garbage will be removed. 
The site will be cleaned up and buildings removed or brought to code, as per the site plan, prior to the 
certificate of occupancy being issued.   
 
Landscaping and Buffering: 3” caliper Live Oak trees will be planted 30’ on center along the 
southern and east property lines as a buffer for the I35 Corridor as noted on the site plan. A solid 
wood privacy fence will also be constructed along the southern side of the open storage area to 
screen the site from the I35 Corridor as noted on the site plan.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

12/05/13 
Item #4 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 
Docu
ment Policy, Goal, Objective or Map 

 Complian
ce 

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and 
Character (FLUP) 

Industrial is identified for the subject 
property as well as identified in all four 
directions from the subject property. 

Y 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  

The subject property is located South of 
Industrial Blvd. and East of the BNSF 
railroad. It has primary frontage on Industrial 
Blvd which is identified as a Minor Arterial.  

Y 

CP 

Goal 4.1 - Growth and 
development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s 
infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Sufficient utilities are in place to 
accommodate the proposed use of the 
property.  The property is served by a 14” 
water line along Industrial Blvd. and an 8” 
waterline along the east side of the property. 
An 8” sewer line is available to the property 
from Industrial Blvd.   

Y 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map 
& sidewalks 

No existing or proposed trails were identified 
in the Trails Master Plan Map along the 
subject property’s frontage Industrial Blvd. 

Y 

 CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The only established dimensional standards in Heavy Industrial 
are corner side yard setbacks which must be a minimum of 10’. As per UDC 4.6, the maximum 
building height may be any legal limit that other laws and ordinances do not prohibit.  
 
Per UDC Section 7.5.4B parking would be required according to whichever is greater of the following 
parking ratios: 1 parking space per 2 employees or 1 parking space per 1,000 of gross floor area. As 
the site will have a 90,000 SF building, a minimum of 90 parking spaces would be required, and more 
would be required if over 180 employees were employed on site.  
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Six notices of the public hearing were sent out to property owners within 200-feet 
of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance. As of Tuesday, November 19, 
2013, 1 notice had been returned in favor of the proposed zoning change and Conditional Use Permit 
and no notices for denial had been received. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 

 



12/05/13 
Item #4 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Site Plan
Site Photos  
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use and Character 
Map    Buffer Notification Map 
Returned Property Owner Notices  
PZ Excerpts 
Ordinance 



0

SCALE IN FEET

HORIZ 100 100

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT EXHIBIT

DEBRIS TO BE

REMOVED

EXISTING BUILDINGS

BROUGHT TO CODE

OR DEMOLISHED

FURNISH AND INSTALL

 LIVE OAK TREES SPACED AT 30'

ALONG SOUTH PROPERTY LINE.

NEW 6' SECURITY

FENCE

METAL BUILDING
90,000 SQ. FT.

EXISTING KILN

PROPOSED HEAT KILN

AND WOOD CHIPPER

NEW 6' SECURITY

FENCE

NEW 6' PRIVACY

FENCE

DEBRIS TO BE

REMOVED

BUILDING/DEBRIS

TO BE REMOVED



 

Subject Property, from Industrial Blvd.; currently unoccupied  

 

North: Across Industrial Blvd.; industrial use  



 

South: Undeveloped; zoned LI 

 

East: Vacant lot; industrial use 



 

West: BNSF Railroad and undeveloped; zoned LI 

 

On site: To be demolished 



 

On site: To be brought up to code or demolished 

 

On site: To be cleaned up 



1

1

2

1

1

2

1

2

5
4

1

9

3

4
6

5

3

2

2

6

1

1

1

1
1

3

2

6

1

59

7
6

5
4

3
2

1

8
7

6
5

43
5
4
32
1

1
2 34

1

4321
91

2
9

87

9
8
7

65

432
1

4321

1

2

1
2 3

9
8
7
654

1

3

1

2

13

12

10

11 13

16

14
13

12
11

10

16
15

14
13

12
1110

70 14151673747576

14
15

16
17

18

17
1819

20

1211
10

15

14
12

10

1716

15
13
11

989796

69686766
65

20

77798081
82

83 84

10

9594
93

92
91
9089

88
8786

85

LOT 3

LI

2F

GR

HI

C

2F

HI
PD 05

LI
PD 72

LI
CP 212

C
CP 174

GR
CP 57

INDUSTRIAL BLVD

N INTERSTATE 35

N GENERAL BRUCE DR

CE
NT

ER
 ST

LU
CIU

S M
CC

EL
VE

Y D
R

RA
NG

E R
D

N 1
5T

H S
T

ENTERPRISE RD

PE
GA

SU
S D

R

PARKWAY DR

N INTERSTATE 35

Z-FY-13-33 Zoning Map 1407 Industrial Blvd.

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1
010020050

Feet
1Case

Zoning
Subdivisions
Parcel

Outblocks
Addresses

( Blocks
Lots 10/31/2013

City of Temple GIS



N INTERSTATE 35

N GENERAL BRUCE DR

CE
NT

ER
 ST

LU
CIU

S M
CC

EL
VE

Y D
R

N 1
5T

H S
T

RA
NG

E R
D

ENTERPRISE RD

PE
GA

SU
S D

R

INDUSTRIAL BLVD

N 1
3T

H S
T

W ZENITH AVE

GO
LIA

D 
ST

EB
ER

HA
RD

T R
D

FANNIN LOOP

PARKWAY DR

N 1
1T

H 
ST

BAKER BLVD ERATH DR

N INTERSTATE 35

µ

Z-FY-13-33 Future Land Use 1407 Industrial Blvd.

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Site
Neighborhood Conservation
Estate Residential
Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential
Auto-Urban Multi-Family
Auto-Urban Mixed Use
Auto-Urban Commercial

Suburban Commercial
Urban Center
Temple Medical Education District
Industrial

Business Park
Public Institutional
Parks & Open Space
Agricultural/Rural

010020050
Feet

10/31/2013
City of Temple GIS



29
15

1863

1822

2611

2506

2502

1215

1302

1307

1313

1407

30
151971

LI

LI

HI

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

1

2

1

1

1

1

3

1

2

13

543-C

543-A 543-D

543-F

660-G

543-B

657-A

569A-A

658A-A

658A-A

1407

2575

2357

1302

1313

1863

1111

2502

2715

1971

2506

1705

2204

1307

1215

2506

2915

2611

2101
3008

3015

1822

1204

311519002830

INDUSTRIAL BLVD CE
NT

ER
 ST

N GENERAL BRUCE DR

N INTERSTATE 35

RA
NG

E R
D

N GENERAL BRUCE DRN INTERSTATE 35

Z-FY-13-33 Rezone: LI to HI with Conditional Use Permit 1407 Industrial Blvd

¬«1
GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

Case
200' Buffer

Zoning
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number

0 200 400
Feet

10/16/2013
City of Temple GIS
pmelton





EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2013 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

Item 4:  Z-FY-13-33 – Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a zone 
change from Light Industrial District (LI) to Heavy Industrial District (HI) with a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a Heat Kiln and Wood Chipper on ± 19.68 acres, 
being part of the Nancy Ferguson Survey, Abstract No. 322, Bell County, Texas, 
located on the south side of Industrial Boulevard, adjacent to and east of the 
Burlington Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) Railroad. (Applicant: David Neman for Arthur 
Brashear) 

Mr. Phillip Melton, Planning Intern, stated this item would go to City Council for first reading on 
December 5, 2013 and second reading on December 19, 2013. 

The applicant is asking for a zone change to Heavy Industrial (HI) with a required Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) to operate a kiln and wood chipper operation. A kiln and wood chipper 
operation is not listed in the Use Table therefore, a rezoning to HI with a CUP is required. The 
subject property is located in the Industrial Park and the City of Temple’s Comprehensive Plan 
/ Future Land Use Plan identifies the property as Industrial. The plat is currently under review. 

HI would allow the most intensive uses and should be located away from residential areas. 

Allowed and restricted uses are given. 

The following conditions to the permit would apply: 

Kiln height is limited to 15 feet and according to the site plan, it will be located behind 
the 90,000 square foot building.  

Site Clean-Up: The following will be required before a Certificate of Occupancy will be issued: 

1. Existing cinder block buildings will be brought up to code or removed; 

2. Existing Metal buildings will be removed; and 

3. Tires, scrap, garbage, and debris will be removed. 

Landscaping and Buffering: 3 inch caliper Live Oak trees 30 feet on center will be planted 
along the southern and eastern property lines and a solid privacy fence will be installed along 
the south side and a portion of the east side of open storage. 

Surrounding properties include industrial use to the north, undeveloped land and Light 
Industrial (LI) to the south, undeveloped lot, industrial use, and LI to the east, and the railroad, 
undeveloped land, and LI to the west. 



Development Regulations: Per UDC Section 7.5.4B the greater of the following parking ratios 
apply: 

1 parking space per 2 employees; or 

1 parking space per 1,000 of gross floor area 

All other UDC standards apply 

Six notices were mailed out and one notice was returned in favor and zero notices were in 
opposition. 

Staff recommends approval for a zone change from Light Industrial (LI) to Heavy Industrial (HI) 
and a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to operate a heat kiln and wood chipper for the following 
reasons: 

The proposed zoning and CUP is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan which 
identifies this area as Industrial; 

The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; 

The proposed zoning and CUP is compatible with the surrounding uses;  

Public facilities are available to serve the property; and, 

Adequate buffering will be installed. 

Chair Sears opened the public hearing. 

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Staats made a motion to approve Item 4, Z-FY-13-33, as presented, and 
Commissioner Jones made a second. 

Motion passed: (6:0) 
Commissioners Magańa and Crisp absent 



1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-13-33) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
(LI) TO HEAVY INDUSTRIAL (HI) WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
TO OPERATE A HEAT KILN AND WOOD CHIPPER, ON 
APPROXIMATELY 19.68 ACRES, BEING PART OF THE NANCY 
FERGUSON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO 322, IN BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
LOCATED AT 1407 INDUSTRIAL BOULEVARD; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves 1) a rezoning from Light Industrial (LI) to Heavy 

Industrial (HI), and 2) a Conditional Use Permit to allow a heat kiln and wood chipper, on 
approximately 19.68 acres, being part of the Nancy Ferguson Survey, Abstract No. 322, in Bell 
County, Texas, located at 1407 Industrial Boulevard, more fully described in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 
Part 3: The owners/applicants, their employees, lessees, agents or representatives, 

hereinafter called "permittee" shall comply with the following developmental standards and 
conditions of operation: 

 
(a) The heat kiln will be limited to 15’ tall and will be located on the east side of the 

site behind the 90,000 square foot building. 
 
(b) The City Council may deny or revoke a conditional use permit if it affirmatively 

determines that the issuance of the same is (a) incompatible with the surrounding uses of 
property, or (2) detrimental or offensive to the neighborhood or contrary to the health, safety, 
and general welfare of the City and its inhabitants. 

 
(c) A conditional use permit issued under this section runs with the property and is 

not affected by a change in the owner or lessee of a permitted establishment. 
 
(d) All conditional use permits issued under this section will be further conditioned 

that the same may be canceled, suspended or revoked in accordance with the revocation clause 
set forth in Section 7-609. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final  



2 
 

 
 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any 
of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

 
Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of 

December, 2013. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 19th day of December, 2013. 
 
     

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
             

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 
 



 
 

   
 
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 
 

12/05/13 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:    
 
Mark Baker, Planner 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-02: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a zoning change from a combination of Light Industrial (LI) and Commercial 
District (C) to Multiple Family Dwelling One (MF-1) District to Lots 3 and 4, Block 12, Northwest Hills, 
1st Extension Replat of Blocks 11 & 12, addressed as 2201 and 2205 Valley Forge Avenue. 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At its November 4, 2013 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommended approval of the requested zoning 
change from Light  Industrial (LI) & Commercial (C) zoning districts to Multi-Family Dwelling-1 (MF-1) 
as recommended by staff. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for December 19, 
2013. 
 
Based on the following discussion, staff recommends approval for a zoning change from LI and C to 
MF-1 for the following reasons: 
 

1. Although the proposed zoning does not comply with the Future Land Use Map which 
identifies this area as Neighborhood Conservation, it is consistent with the adjacent 
multi-family uses to the north and the west and the multi-family character of the area; 

2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; 
3. The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding uses; and   
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.   

 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  According to the City of Temple Comprehensive Plan / Future Land Use Plan 
(FLUP), the subject property is within the designated Neighborhood Conservation District. The 
Neighborhood Conservation district is for existing and established residential neighborhoods.  The 
purpose of this district is to establish standards consistent with those at the time of development (i.e. 
lot size, setbacks etc.) so as to not create nonconforming situations and to ensure that any infill 
activity or redevelopment maintains the neighborhood character. The surrounding area is primarily 
developed with variety of duplex, apartment and single family uses with commercial, multi-family, 
single-family and industrial zoning in place.   



 
 

12/05/13 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
This collection of single-family, multi-family, commercial and industrially-zoned parcels have one 
significant characteristic in common which is the presence of existing multi-family housing units. The 
requested multi-family zoning allows the continuation of the single-family detached/attached housing 
units, duplex and apartments and will help protect those uses from the encroachment industrial uses, 
especially the single-family uses across the street from the subject property. The combination of 
existing zoning and existing land uses paints a patchwork of non-compliance with the FLUP and any 
new zoning district will have a degree of non-compliance. The current Light Industrial and 
Commercial zoning districts do not equally allow the same single family and multi-family uses that the 
MF-1 district does. Although the zoning request does not fully comply with the FLUP, staff 
recommends approval as this zoning designation is compatible with the adjacent land use and will 
continue some of the multi-family residential pattern of development. If approved, the FLUP will need 
to be updated. 
 
Although it is anticipated the property will be developed with duplexes, there are a number of uses 
that are permitted by right. Those uses include but are not limited to: 
 

Residential uses    Nonresidential uses 
Multiple Family Dwelling (Apartment)  Child Care (Family Home) 
Industrialized Housing    Park or Playground 
Family or Group Home   Fire Station 

 
Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, All 
commercial and industrial uses are prohibited, except these uses allowed by an approved conditional 
use permit. The uses include but are not limited to: temporary asphalt concrete batching plants, a 
sewage pumping station or a cemetery, crematory or mausoleum. 
 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
Direction FLUP    Zoning   Current Land Use 
 
Site  Neighborhood Conservation     LI   Undeveloped 
North            Neighborhood Conservation     2F & SF-3  Existing SF & MF Uses  
South            Neighborhood Conservation     LI & C                 Peanut Gallery Pre-School  
East           Parks and Open Space     LI    Saulsbury Community Garden  
West          Neighborhood Conservation     C & MF-2  Existing multi-family uses 
      
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

12/05/13 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
Documen
t 

Policy, Goal, Objective or 
Map 

  
Compliance 

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use 
and Character (FLUP) 

Neighborhood Conservation is identified 
for the subject property as well as 
identified for the immediate and 
surrounding area. Although the MF-1 
zoning is not a compatible zoning district, 
the allowed uses are compatible and 
consistent with the Surrounding uses and 
zoning designations in the immediate 
area. 

N 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan 
The subject property will take access 
from Valley Forge Ave which is a local 
street.  

Y 

CP 

Goal 4.1 - Growth and 
development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s 
infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Water is available to the subject property 
through a 6” water line in Valley Forge 
Ave.  Sewer is available through a 6” 
sewer line in Valley Forge Ave.   

Y 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan 
Map & sidewalks 

No existing or proposed trails were 
identified in the Master Plan Map along 
the subject property’s frontage of Valley 
Forge Ave. 

Y 

 CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Standard residential setbacks for two-family dwellings in the MF-1 
district are:  
 
Minimum lot size   -  4,000 
Minimum Lot Width   -  60’ 
Minimum Lot Depth  -   100’ 
Front Yard Setback   - 25’  
Side Yard Setback          -  10% of Lot Width (Min 5’) 
Corner Side Setback    -   15’ 
Rear Yard Setback  - 10’ 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Eleven notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent 
out to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City 
Ordinance. As of Monday November 18, 2013 at 4:00 PM, One notice for approval and one notice for 
disapproval have been received. 
 
The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing on October 24, 
2013, in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 

 
 



 
 

12/05/13 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Zoning and Location Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Buffer Notification Map 
Returned Property Notices 
PZ Excerpts 
Ordinance 
 
  



 

Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 
 

 
 

Site:  Undeveloped - Looking South (Light Industrial & Commerical Zoning) 
 

 
 

East:  Saulsbury Community Garden (Light Industrial Zoning) 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

West:  Scattered Mixed residential uses (Commercial & Multi Family-2 Zoning) 



 

 
 

North: Detached Single-Family Homes (Single Family-3 Zoning) 
 
 

 
 

South:  Looking south across subject property toward the Peanut Gallery Pre-
school (Light Industrial Zoning) 



mbaker
Polygon

mbaker
Text Box

mbaker
Zoning and General Location Map
Zoning and Location Map

mbaker
Text Box



SAULSBURY DR

BE
TS

Y R
OS

S D
R

VALLEY FORGE AVE
TR

OY
 ST

FR
AN

K W
EIS

E B
LV

D

PE
ND

LE
TO

N 
ST

HANCOCK DR µ

Z-FY-14-02 Zone Change
LI & C to MF-1

2201 & 2205
Valley Forge  Ave

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation
Estate Residential
Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential
Auto-Urban Multi-Family
Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial
Suburban Commercial
Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District
Industrial
Business Park

Public Institutional
Parks & Open Space
Agricultural/Rural

0 100 20050
Feet

10/30/2013
City of Temple GIS



61
761

6

60
9

61
3

61
761
6

61
0

80
1

80
5

2312

2202

2100

2302
2304

2204
2208

22122301
2305

2309

2202

2210

2214

2201

2205

2209

2213

2302
2306

2310

C

LI

C

GR

SF-3

2F

SF-3
AG

C

LI

C

5

3
21

7

7

6

2

1

8
7

6

5

4
3

2
1

9
8

1
2

3 4

15

14

3A

2A

1A

1A

13

11
10

23

22

21

SAULSBURY DR

BE
TS

Y R
OS

S D
R

VALLEY FORGE AVE

TR
OY

 ST

PE
ND

LE
TO

N 
ST

Z-FY-14-02 Buffer Notification 2201 & 2205 Valley Forge

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A
Case
200' Buffer

Zoning
Address
Lot Number

0 200 400
Feet

10/11/2013
City of Temple GIS
mbaker







EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2013 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 6: Z-FY-14-02 – Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a zone 

change from a combination of Light Industrial (LI) and Commercial District (C) to 
Multiple Family Dwelling One (MF-1) District to Lots 3 and 4, Block 12, Northwest 
Hills, 1st Extension Replat of Blocks 11 & 12, addressed as 2201 and 2205 Valley 
Forge Avenue. (Applicant: Pat Dauphinais for Duane Hoffmann)  

Mr. Baker stated this item would go to City Council on December 5, 2013 for first reading and 
December 19, 2013 for second reading. 

The applicant was requesting a zone change from LI and Commercial (C) to Multi-Family-One 
(MF-1). The subject properties are Lots 3 & 4, Block 12 Northwest Hills subdivision. The City of 
Temple’s Comprehensive Plan / Future Land Use Plan identifies the property as Neighborhood 
Conservation District. 

There is a six-inch water line in Valley Forge fronting the property and a six-inch sewer line in 
Valley Forge fronting the property. 

Surrounding properties include duplex and detached single family residential uses to the north, 
a pre-school to the south, mixed multi-family residential uses to the west, and the Saulsbury 
Community Garden to the east. 

The property is identified in the Future Land Use Plan as within the Neighborhood 
Conservation District which is for existing and established residential neighborhoods.  The 
purpose of the district is to establish standards consistent with those at the time of 
development such as lot size and setbacks.  The request to the MF-1 zoning does not 
completely comply with the Future Land Use Plan. 

Allowed and prohibited uses are given along with development regulations. 

Eleven notices were mailed out and one was returned in favor and one was returned in 
opposition. 

Staff recommendation considerations: 

Is the proposed land consistent with the Comprehensive Plan / Future Land Use Map? 

Do surrounding uses seem compatible and similar to the proposed zoning? 

Do surrounding zoning designations seem compatible or similar  to the proposed 
rezoning? 

Staff recommendation: 



Staff recommends Approval of the request for a zone change from “LI” & “C” to “MF-1” for the 
following reasons: 

Although the proposed zoning does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan Map 
which identifies this area as Neighborhood Conservation, it is consistent  with the multi-
family uses to the north and the west  and the multi-family character of the area; 

The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding  uses; and   

Public facilities are available to serve the subject property. 

Chair Sears opened the public hearing. 

Mr. Pat Dauphinais, 605 Willow Stone Place, Gypsum, Colorado, stated he would like to put 
duplexes on the property. 

There being no further speakers, Chair Sears closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve Item 6, Z-FY-14-02, as presented, and 
Commissioner Pitts made a second. 

Motion passed: (6:0) 
Commissioners Magańa and Crisp absent 



1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-02) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI) 
AND COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (D) TO MULTIPLE FAMILY DWELLING 
ONE (MF-1) DISTRICT ON LOTS 3 AND 4, BLOCK 12, NORTHWEST 
HILLS, 1ST EXTENSION REPLAT OF BLOCKS 11 AND 12, LOCATED AT 
2201 AND 2205 VALLEY FORGE AVENUE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a permanent zoning from Light Industrial (LI) and 

Commercial District (C) to Multiple Family Dwelling One (MF-1) on lots 3 and 4, block 12, 
Northwest Hills, 1st Extension Replay of blocks 11 and 12, located at 2201 and 2205 Valley 
Forge Avenue, more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof for 
all purposes. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the 
final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not 
affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of 
December, 2013. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 19th day of December, 2013. 
 
     

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 

  
 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
12/05/13 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Phillip Melton, Planning Intern 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-03: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-
premise consumption where sales will be more than 50% and less than 75% of the gross revenue for 
The Patio On Main Restaurant/Bar, on Lot 15, Block 21, Temple Original Town, located at 12 South 
Main Street. 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its November 4, 2013 meeting, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted 6 to 0 to recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit 
for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption for the above described property. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for December 19, 
2013. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested Conditional Use where less than 75% of the gross 
revenue will be from the sale of alcoholic beverages with on-premise consumption for the following 
reasons: 
 
1. The request is compatible with the Future Land Use and Character Map; 
2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan;  
3. Public facilities are available to serve the property; and  
4. The applicant has demonstrated compliance with the specific standards in Section 5.3.15 of 

the UDC.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

12/05/13 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
ITEM SUMMARY: The subject property is located on the west side of South Main Street in between 
Central Avenue and A Avenue. The property is addressed 12 South Main Street. The applicant 
proposes establishing a business where it is anticipated that less than 75% of the gross revenue will 
be from the sale of alcoholic beverages with on-premise consumption. The site is developed, built to 
property lines, and is zoned Central Area (CA). In the CA district, if revenue from beer and wine sales 
is less than 75% or when all alcoholic beverage sales are below 50%, the use is permitted by right. 
Since the applicant is proposing sales of alcoholic beverages that will amount to more than 50%, but 
less than 75%, of the gross revenue, a conditional use permit is required. 
 
Establishments with alcoholic beverage sales for on-premise consumption are subject to the 
standards in Section 5.3.15 of the UDC. A number of the standards applicable to this property have 
been identified and are discussed as follows: 
 
Traffic Generation / Area Overcrowding:  The property is developed and has been used previously 
as a church. Although there are several businesses operating in the immediate area, it is not 
anticipated that there will be a substantial increase to traffic generation or overcrowding. 
 
Licensing from Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission: The applicant must comply with 
applicable licensing and permit provisions of the Alcoholic Beverage Code.  This will be required 
within 6 months from the date of the issuance of the conditional use permit. 
 
Security: The applicant has indicated that security cameras will be provided inside as well as security 
personnel on site.   
 
Parking: The CA zoning district allows on-street parking.  There are 28 on-street parking spaces 
along the block South Main Street. A public parking lot with 20 parking spaces is also located directly 
across Main St. from the site that could provide additional parking.  
 
Distance from Sensitive Uses:  As provided by UDC Section 5.5.15C, the property is not located 
within 300 from a place of worship, elementary or secondary school, public hospital, public park, or 
any residentially zoned or developed lot. The closest distance to any of these listed uses, as 
measured in a straight, direct line from the property line of the establishment to the nearest property 
line, is to Fred Springer Park at a distance of approximately 676 feet. 
 
The applicant has provided, as required per UDC Section 3.5.2B, a site plan.  Staff has reviewed the 
use permit and the site plan which were considered by the DRC during their October 21, 2013 
meeting. Based on the proposal, no issues were identified during the meeting.  The attached site plan 
will be included in the Ordinance if the conditional use permit is approved by City Council.   
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS:  Although there are dimensional standards for residential uses in 
the CA zone, there are no established dimensional standards for non-residential uses. As per UDC 
4.6, the maximum building height may be any legal limit that other laws and ordinances do not 
prohibit. The subject property is currently developed with a building footprint which extends to the 
property line on all sides. 
 
On-site parking is typically waived in favor of on-street parking per UDC Section 7.5C. 

 



 
 

12/05/13 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE:  13 notices of the public hearing were sent out to property owners within 200-feet 
of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of Friday November 19, 
2013, 3 notices had been returned in favor of the use permit and no notices for denial had been 
received. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site Photos 
Aerial Map  
Floor Plan 
Buffer Notification Map 
Returned Property Owner Notice 
PZ Excerpts 
Ordinance 
 
  



 

Subject Property, currently unoccupied  

 

North: Boxing Gym and resturant  



 

South: Unoccupied and the ExtraCo Bank Building 

 

East: Public Parking and an amusement use (Ballroom) 







8

7

6

864
6

9 7 5 3

1
5

1

9

5
1

5
7

9

8

1
3

5
7

2
4

8

2
4

8

6

3

2

9 12 14

17

12

20

20
18

16
14

16

11

17

10

11
13

19

17

18
14

11

11
13

15
17

19

10
12

14
18

1315
10

12
14

24
26

18
10

16

11

13

11
0

11
2

120

109

10
2

10
1

10
7

103

10
2

111

116

CA

CA

CA

¬«20

¬«28

¬«14

¬«21

¬«22

1

2
3

4
5

6

7

8
9

1

2

3

4
5

6

7

2

3

4

1

2
3

4

5

6

7

8
9

1
2

3

4

5

6
7

8

9

1
2

3
4

5

6

7

8
9

1
2

3

4 1

10 19

20

11

12

13

14

15

16

11
12

13

14

15
16

17

18

10

11
12

13

14

15

16
17

18

19

20

10

11

12

13
14

15

1617

18
19

20

10

11

12

13

2

17

1

102

7

9

11

14

18

5

111

6

19

5

8

11

5

18

16

14

13

12

11

101

4

3

4

14

102

8

1

9

120

1

2

8

2

7

14

16

116

11

12
17

101

10

17

13
19

10

15

26

107

10

24

110

12
102

112

14

1315

103

10

15

108
20

11415

W A AVE

S 1
ST

 ST

E A AVE

S M
AI

N 
ST

S 2
ND

 ST

W CENTRAL AVE N 2
ND

 STS 3
RD

 ST

E CENTRAL AVE

N M
AIN

 ST

Z-FY-14-03 Alcohol Conditional Use Permit 12 S. Main Street

¬«1
GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

Case
Zoning
Buffer_200

Block Number
Address

Outblock Number
Lot Number 0 50 100

Feet
10/16/2013
City of Temple GIS
pmelton









EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2013 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 7: Z-FY-14-03 – Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise 
consumption where sales will be more than 50% and less than 75% of the gross 
revenue for The Patio On Main Restaurant/Bar, on Lot 15, Block 21, Temple Original, 
located at 12B South Main Street. (Applicant: James Stewart) 

Mr. Melton stated the applicant proposes a business where less than 75% of the gross 
revenue is from the sales of alcoholic beverages with on-premise consumption. The City of 
Temple Comprehensive Plan / Future Land Use Plan identify the property as Urban Center 
District. In the Central Area (CA) Zoning, a CUP is required and subject to these standards in 
UDC Section 5.3.15. 

Traffic Generation / Area Overcrowding  
Licensing from Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission 
Security 
Parking 
Distance from Sensitive Uses 

Traffic Generation / Area Overcrowding: No additional traffic or concerns for area overcrowding 
are anticipated. 

Licensing from Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission: Applicant must comply with applicable 
licensing and permit provisions of the Alcoholic Beverage Code within 6 months from the date 
of the issuance of the C.U.P 

Security:  Security cameras are proposed as well as security personnel 

Parking:  The CA zoning district generally waives on-site parking in favor of on-street parking.  
There are a number of parking opportunities within the immediate location and a public parking 
lot across Main St. available for use. 

Distance from Sensitive Uses:  The property is not located within 300’ from a place of worship, 
elementary or secondary school, public hospital, public park or any residentially zoned or 
developed lot. 

Public facilities are available to serve the site. 

Surrounding properties include unoccupied adjacent to site and occupied (Extraco Bank 
Building) to the south, boxing gym adjacent to the site and restaurant to the north, and public 
parking and indoor amusement (Ballroom) to the east. 

Thirteen notices were received and zero notices were returned in favor or in opposition. 



Staff recommends Approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit where more than 75% of 
the gross revenue will be from the sale of alcoholic beverages with on-premise consumption 
for the following reasons: 

The request is compatible with the Future Land Use and Character Map which identify 
this area as Urban Center; 

The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; 

Public facilities are available to serve the property; and   

The applicant has demonstrated compliance with the specific standards in Section 
5.3.15 of the UDC. 

Chair Sears opened the public hearing. 

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Vice-Chair Rhoads made a motion to approve Item 7, Z-FY-14-03, as presented, and 
Commissioner Jones made a second. 

Motion passed: (6:0) 
Commissioners Magańa and Crisp absent 



 
 

 
 

1 

 ORDINANCE NO.      
 

[PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-03] 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW THE SALE OF 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES FOR ON-PREMISE CONSUMPTION, WHERE SALES 
WILL BE MORE THAN 50% AND LESS THAN 75% OF THE TOTAL GROSS 
REVENUE FOR THE PATIO ON MAIN RESTAURANT/BAR, LOCATED AT 12 
SOUTH MAIN STREET; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 
Whereas, the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City of Temple, Texas, provides for the 

issuance of conditional use permits under certain conditions and authorizes the City Council to impose 
such developmental standards and safeguards as the conditions and locations indicate to be important 
to the welfare or protection of adjacent property and for the protection of adjacent property from 
excessive noise, vibration, dust, dirt, smoke, fumes, gas, odor, explosion, glare, offensive view or other 
undesirable or hazardous conditions, and for the establishment of conditions of operation, time limits, 
location, arrangement and construction for any use for which a permit is authorized;  
 

Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 
consideration of the location and zoning classification of the establishment, has recommended that the 
City Council approve this application; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as required by law, 
has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence submitted concerning the establishment at 
12 South Main Street, and has heard the comments and evidence presented by all persons supporting or 
opposing this matter at said public hearing, and after examining the location and the zoning 
classification of the establishment finds that the proposed use of the premises substantially complies 
with the comprehensive plan and the area plan adopted by the City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves a Conditional Use Permit to allow the sale of alcoholic 
beverages for on-premise consumption where sales will be more than 50%, and less than 75% of the 
gross revenue for The Patio On Main Restaurant/Bar, located at 12 South Main Street, more fully 
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 2: The owners/applicants, their employees, lessees, agents or representatives, hereinafter 
called "permittee" shall comply with the following developmental standards and conditions of 
operation: 

 
(a) The sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages shall occur only within the designated 

area, in accordance with the site plan attached as Exhibit B. 



 
 

 
 

2 

 
(b) The permittee must design and operate the establishment in such a manner that the 

proposed use or actual use of the premises shall not substantially increase traffic congestion 
or create overcrowding in the establishment or the immediately surrounding area. 

 
(c) The permittee must comply with applicable licensing and permit provisions of the 

Alcoholic Beverage Code within six (6) months from the date of the issuance of the 
conditional use permit by the City Council, such limitation in time being subject to review 
and possible extension by the City. 

 
(d) The permittee bears the burden of showing that the establishment does not exceed the 

limitation on gross receipts from sales of alcoholic beverages applicable to its conditional 
use permit. The permittee must maintain accounting records of the sources of its gross 
revenue and allow the City to inspect such records during reasonable business hours. 

 
(e) The permittee must demonstrate that the granting of the permit would not be detrimental to 

the public welfare of the citizens of the City. 
 

(f) The permittee must, at all times, provide an adequate number of employees for security 
purposes to adequately control the establishment premises to prevent incidents of 
drunkenness, disorderly conduct and raucous behavior. The permittee shall consult with the 
Chief of Police, who shall act in an advisory capacity to determine the number of qualified 
employees necessary to meet his obligations hereunder. 

 
(g) The establishment must provide adequate parking spaces to accommodate its members and 

their guests. Provided, however, the number of parking spaces shall never be less than those 
required for similar uses in that zoning district where the establishment is located. 

 
(h) The permittee must operate the establishment in such a manner as to prevent excessive 

noise, dirt, litter and odors in the establishment or in the surrounding area and operate the 
establishment in such a manner as to minimize disturbance to surrounding property owners. 

 
(i) The City Council may deny or revoke a conditional use permit if it affirmatively determines 

that the issuance of the same is (a) incompatible with the surrounding uses of property, or 
(2) detrimental or offensive to the neighborhood or contrary to the health, safety, and 
general welfare of the City and its inhabitants. 

 
(j) A conditional use permit issued under this section runs with the property and is not affected 

by a change in the owner or lessee of a permitted establishment. 
 
(k) All conditional use permits issued under this section will be further conditioned that the 

same may be canceled, suspended or revoked in accordance with the revocation clause set 
forth in Section 7-609. 

 
Part 3: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the preamble 

of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative provisions hereof. 



 
 

 
 

3 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final judgment or 
decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been 
enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in accordance 
with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance is 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of December, 
2013. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 20th day of December, 2013. 
 

 THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
               
        DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



 
 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
12/05/13 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 
reestablishing a comprehensive economic development policy for the City of Temple which includes 
the City’s criteria and guidelines for tax abatement, tax increment financing, enterprise zones, and 
strategic investment zones.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for December 19, 
2013. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  In January, 2012, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2011-4504 which sets 
forth the City of Temple’s criteria and guidelines for tax abatement, tax increment financing, 
enterprise zones, and strategic investment zones. Chapter 312 of the Texas Tax Code which 
authorizes a taxing unit’s ability to enter into tax abatement agreements states that a taxing unit’s 
criteria and guidelines are effective for two years from the date adopted. The City’s current ordinance 
was effective on January 5, 2012 therefore it must be renewed at this time.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 
 
  



 
 1 

 
   
 ORDINANCE NO. ___________  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, ESTABLISHING A 
COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT POLICY FOR THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
  

 
Whereas, the City of Temple is committed to establishing long-term economic vitality, an 

essential key to the growth of any community, by responding and preparing for challenges and 
changes in an environment characterized by ongoing competition for sustained economic 
advantage and identity; 
 

Whereas, in an effort to enrich an already substantial diversity of economic activity, the 
City of Temple desires to establish an Economic Development Policy consolidating the City's 
existing and newly-proposed economic development policies into one comprehensive document; 
 

Whereas, the City has established criteria and guidelines governing tax abatement within 
the City pursuant to Chapter 312 of the Tax Code, and by ordinance has designated two tax 
abatement reinvestment zones; 
 

Whereas, the City has by ordinance created a tax increment financing reinvestment zone 
pursuant to Chapter 311 of the Tax Code, and used the tax increments accrued in said zone to 
construct public improvements intended to spur economic development of the zone; 
 

Whereas, Article 3, Section 52-a of the State Constitution, authorizes the Legislature to 
provide for the creation of programs for the making of loans and grants of public money for the 
public purposes of development and diversification of the economy of the State; 
 

Whereas, the Legislature, in Tex. Rev. Civ. Stat. Ann. art. 835s, has authorized home rule 
cities to acquire land and buildings for the purpose of leasing the land or improvements thereto to 
private companies for use in manufacturing or other commercial activity; 
 

Whereas, the Legislature, in Chapter 380 of the Local Government Code, has authorized 
home rule cities to establish programs for making loans and grants of public money to promote 
State or local economic activity within their boundaries; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS: 
 

Part 1: That a comprehensive Economic Development Policy is hereby adopted by the 
City of Temple, Texas to read as follows: 
  



 
 2 

I. Criteria and Guidelines Governing Tax Abatement. 
 
A. Definitions. 
 

1."Abatement" means the full or partial exemption from ad valorem taxes of certain real 
property in a reinvestment zone designated by the City for economic development purposes. 
 

2."Agreement" means a contract between a property owner or lessee and the City. 
 

3. "Base year value" means the assessed value of eligible property on January 1st of the year 
of the execution of the tax abatement Agreement or if the terms of  abatement defer the 
commencement of the tax abatement, the base year value shall be in the value onJanuary 1st of the 
year the tax abatement begins, plus the agreed upon value of eligible property improvements made 
after January 1 but before the execution of the Agreement. 
 

4. "Deferred Maintenance" means those improvements necessary for continued operation but 
which do not improve productivity or alter any process technology. Exterior improvements (e.g., 
painting, installing, repairing, removing or replacing a facade) to the exteriors of buildings in the 
Downtown Development Area which are designed to improve visual appearance of property are not 
deferred maintenance. 
 

5. "Downtown Development Area" is an approximately 43 block area of downtown Temple 
as shown by the map and description attached hereto as Exhibit "A." 
 

6. "Eligible Facilities" means those new, expanded or modernized buildings and structures, 
including fixed machinery and equipment, which are reasonably likely as a result of granting 
abatement, to contribute to the retention or expansion of primary employment or to attract major 
investment in the reinvestment zone that would be a benefit to the property and that would 
contribute to the economic development within the City Eligible Facilities in all 
commercial/industrial tax abatement reinvestment zones include manufacturing, distribution and 
storage facilities, office buildings, transportation facilities, and entertainment complex. Additional 
Eligible Facilities in reinvestment zones established in the Downtown Development Area include 
retail stores, apartment buildings, restaurants and entertainment facilities (excluding sexually 
oriented businesses). 
 

7. "Expansion" means the addition of buildings, structures, machinery, equipment or payroll 
for purposes of increasing production capacity. 
 

8. "Facility" means property improvements completed or in the process of construction which 
together comprise an integral whole. 

 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT POLICY 

 FOR THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 ADOPTED DECEMBER 19, 2013 
 
 



 
 3 

 
9. "Modernization" means a complete or partial demolition of Facilities and the complete or 

partial reconstruction or installation of a Facility of similar or expanded production capacity. 
Modernization may result from the construction, alteration, or installation of buildings, structures, 
machinery or equipment, or both. Modernization in the Downtown Development area includes 
painting of exterior walls, restoring, removing or installing a façade, adding balconies or decorative 
art and related exterior improvements designed to visually improve the exterior or a building or 
block. 
 

10. "New Facility" means a property previously undeveloped which is placed into service by 
means other than or in conjunction with Expansion and Modernization. 
 

11. "Productive Life" means the number of years a property improvement is expected to be in 
service for a facility. 
 

12. "South 1st SIZ incentive area" is an area comprised of approximately a 74 block area, 
which includes South 1st Street from Adams Avenue to South Loop 363 and portions of several 
adjacent streets including portions of South 2nd Street, South 3rd Street and South 5th Street, as 
shown by the map and description attached hereto as Exhibit  “S1.” 

 
13. “Avenue G/H SIZ incentive area” is an area consisting of Avenues  F, G, H & I from South 

1st Street to South 25th Street, as shown by the map and description attached hereto as Exhibit “S2.” 
 
14. “North 3rd Street SIZ incentive area” is an area consisting of two tracts of land centered 

on North 1st Street; Area A is bounded on the west by North 7th Street [from Central to French] and 
on the east from Adams—where it adjoins the South 1st SIZ incentive area—north to French 
Avenue, and North 3rd Street, and Area B is an irregular shaped area on North 3rd Street running 
north-south roughly from Munroe Avenue to Industrial Boulevard, as shown by the map and 
description attached hereto as Exhibit “S3.” 

 
15. “MLK SIZ incentive area” is an area on the east side of downtown Temple roughly 

bound on the north by Calhoun Street, on the east by MLK, on the south by Avenue H, and on the 
west by the BNSF tracks and 2nd Avenue, as shown by the map and description attached hereto as 
Exhibit “S4.” 

 
B. Statement of Purpose. 
 

The City is committed to the promotion of high quality commercial and industrial development 
in all parts of the City, and an ongoing improvement of the quality of life of its citizens. These 
objectives may be served by the enhancement and expansion of the local economy. The City will 
consider, on a case-by-case basis granting property tax abatement as a stimulus for economic 
development in accordance with the criteria and guidelines established herein. Nothing herein shall 
imply or suggest that the City is under any obligation to provide tax abatement to any applicant, that 
any applicant has a property right or interest in tax abatement, or that the City is precluded from 
considering other options which may be in the best interest of the City. 

 
 

 



 
 4 

C. Designation of Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zones. 
 

The City will consider designating areas within the City limits or extraterritorial jurisdiction of 
the City as commercial-industrial tax abatement reinvestment zones which meet one or more of the 
criteria for designation of a reinvestment zone under Section 312.202 of the Tax Code, and where 
the property owner meets the minimum qualifications to qualify for a tax abatement under Part I.D. 
1.b. of this Policy. Designation of an area as a tax abatement reinvestment zone is a prerequisite to 
entering into a tax abatement agreement with the owner of the property in a particular area. Property 
located within a City created (and State-approved) Enterprise Zone is eligible for consideration for 
tax abatement agreements without the necessity of separate designation as a tax abatement 
reinvestment zone. 
 
D. Abatement Authorized. 
 

1. Eligible Facilities. Upon application, the City will consider granting tax abatement on 
Eligible Facilities as hereinafter provided. 
 

a. Creation of New Value. The City will consider granting tax abatement only for the 
additional value of eligible property improvements made subsequent to, and specified in, an 
abatement agreement between the City and the property owner or lessee, subject to such limitations 
as the City may require. 
 

b. New and Existing Eligible Facilities. The City will consider granting abatement for 
new Eligible Facilities and for improvements to existing Eligible Facilities for purposes of 
Modernization and Expansion. 
 

c. Eligible Property. The City will consider granting abatement to the value of real 
property improvements (buildings, structures, fixed [permanently attached] machinery and 
equipment, site improvements, related fixed improvements necessary to the operation and 
administration of the Facility), and personal property (excluding inventory or supplies) with a 
Productive Life of ten years or more. 
 

d. Ineligible Property. The following types of property shall remain fully taxable and 
ineligible for tax abatement: land, supplies, inventory, housing, Deferred Maintenance, property to 
be rented or leased except as provided in subpart (5) below, and other property which has a 
Productive Life of less than ten years. 
 

e. Owned/Leased Facilities. If a Leased Facility is granted abatement, the agreement 
shall be executed with the lessor and the lessee. 
 

2. Standards for Tax Abatement.  
 

a. Minimum Standards. The City will consider tax abatement only on eligible facilities 
which meet at least two of the following criteria. 
 

(1) The project involves a minimum increase in property value of three 
hundred percent (300%) for construction of a new facility, or fifty percent 



 
 5 

(50%) for expansion of an existing facility, with an overall new investment of 
at least $1 million in taxable assets. For eligible facilities in any reinvestment 
zone within the Downtown Development Area or within the South 1st, North 
3rd, Avenue G/H or MLK SIZ incentive areas, the project must involve either 
a minimum increase in property value of one hundred and fifty percent 
(150%) for construction of a new facility, or twenty-five percent (25%) for 
expansion of an existing facility, with an overall new investment of at least 
$50,000 in taxable assets. 

 
(2) The project makes a substantial contribution to redevelopment efforts, 
special area plans, or strategic economic development programs by enhancing 
either functional or visual characteristics, e.g., historical structures, traffic 
circulation, parking facades, materials, signs. 

 
(3) The project has high visibility, image impact, or is of a significantly higher 
level of development quality.  

 
(4) The project is an area which might not otherwise be developed because of 
constraints of topography, ownership patterns, site configuration, etc. 

 
(5) The project can serve as a prototype and catalyst for other development of 
a higher standard. 

 
(6) The project stimulates desired concentrations of employment or 
commercial activity. 

 
(7) The project generates greater employment than would otherwise be 
achieved, e.g., commercial/industrial versus manufacturing versus 
warehousing. 

 
(8) For eligible facilities in any reinvestment zone within the Downtown 
Development Area, the project improves the aesthetic appearance of the 
neighborhood, brings new jobs to the Downtown area, increases the 
availability of public parking, or increases the amount of green space 
(landscaping). 

 
b. Terms of Abatement/Minimum Required Investment. The City will consider 

executing tax abatement agreements with a term of five years provided that the applicant 
agrees to make the minimum investment in real property improvements, personal property 
improvements, or job creation specified herein. An applicant requesting tax abatement shall 
agree as a condition of any tax abatement ultimately approved by the City Council to expend a 
certain minimum amount of funds on real or personal property improvements, or to provide a 
certain number of jobs, as provided below: 

 
 
 

 



 
 6 

 
Percentage 
of increased 
value 
to be abated 

 
Minimum Required Real or Personal Property Investment or Job Creation 

 
 Eligible Real Property 
 Improvements 

Eligible Personal Property* 
 
 Job Creation† 

 
 25% 

 
 $250,000-$400,000  $1,000,000-$1,600,000 

 
 25-30 jobs 

 
30% 

 
 400,001-550,000  1,600,001-2,200,000 

 
 31-35 jobs 

 
 35% 

 
 550,001-700,000  2,200,001-2,800,000 

 
 36-40 jobs 

 
 40% 

 
 700,001-850,000  2,800,001-3,400,000 

 
 41-45 jobs 

 
 45% 

 
 850,001-1,000,000  3,400,001-4,000,000 

 
 46-50 jobs 

 
 50% 

 
 1,000,001-1,300,000  4,000,001-5,200,000 

 
 51-55 jobs 

 
 55% 

 
 1,300,001-1,600,000  5,200,001-6,400,000 

 
 56-60 jobs 

 
 60% 

 
 1,600,001-1,900,000  6,400,001-7,600,000 

 
 61-65 jobs 

 
 65% 

 
 1,900,001-2,200,000  7,600,001-8,800,000 

 
 66-70 jobs 

 
 70% 

 
 2,200,001-2,500,000  8,800,001-10,000,000 

 
 71-75 jobs 

 
 75% 

 
 2,500,001-3,500,000  10,000,001-14,000,000 

 
 76-85 jobs 

 
 80% 

 
 3,500,001-4,500,000  14,000,001-18,000,000 

 
 86-95 jobs 

 
 85% 

 
 4,500,001-5,500,000  18,000,001-22,000,000 

 
 96-105 jobs 

 
 90% 

 
 5,500,001-6,500,000  22,000,001-26,000,000 

 
 106-115 jobs 

 
 95% 

 
 6,500,001-7,500,000  26,000,001-30,000,000 

 
 116-125 jobs 

 
 100% 

 
 7,500,001-10,000,000 30,000,001-40,000,000 

 
 126-175 jobs 

 
 
 
 
Percentage of 
increased 
value 
To be abated 

 
Inside the Downtown Development Area, MLK SIZ Incentive Area or the South 

1st Street SIZ Incentive Area 
Minimum Required Real or Personal Property Investment or Job Creation 
 
 Eligible Real Property 
 Improvements 

 Eligible Personal Property* 
 
 Job Creation 

 
 100% 

 
 $50,000 or more  $100,000 or more 

 
 5-25 jobs 

 
 
 
 



 
 7 

 
Percentage of 
increased 
value 
To be abated 

 
Inside the Avenue H SIZ Incentive Area 

Minimum Required Real or Personal Property Investment or Job Creation 
 
 Eligible Real Property 
 Improvements 

 Eligible Personal Property* 
 
 Job Creation 

 
 100% 

 
 $35,000 or more  $60,000 or more 

 
 5-25 jobs 

 
 
Percentage 
of increased 
value 
To be abated 

 
Inside the North 3rd Street SIZ Incentive Area 

Area A and Area B 
Minimum Required Real or Personal Property Investment or Job Creation 

 
Eligible Real Property 

Improvements 
Eligible Personal Property* Full Time Job 

Creation 
 
 100% 

 
$50,000 or more $100,000 or more 10-25 full time 

jobs 

 
 
The City may consider approving tax abatement agreements with a term longer than five years, but 
not more than ten years, where a project involves an investment in real property in excess of 
$10,000,000 ($250,000 in the Downtown Development Area, MLK, South 1st and Avenue G/H SIZ 
incentive zones) or in eligible personal property of more than $40,000,000 ($1,000,000 in the 
Downtown Development Area or the South 1st, Avenue G/H, North 3rd or MLK SIZ incentive 
zones) or the creation of more than 175 (25 in the Downtown Development Area, the South 1st, 
Avenue G/H, North 3rd or MLK SIZ incentive areas) new full time jobs, or where the City deems 
a project critical to the development of the City because of the nature of the project or 
industry, or the types of jobs being created or retained. 
 
If a request for tax abatement is justified on the basis of the purchase and maintenance of eligible 
personal property or on the creation of jobs, the applicant must agree to maintain the personal 
property or jobs for a period of not less than twice the period for which tax abatement is granted. 
For example, if an applicant requests and receives 75% tax abatement for five years based on the 
purchase and maintenance of eligible personal property, the applicant must agree in the tax 
abatement agreement, subject to recapture of all abated taxes, to maintain the personal property on 
the property tax roll for not less than ten years. 
 
*Personal property with a useful life of less than ten years is not eligible for tax abatement. 
Personal property on site prior to the effective date of the tax abatement agreement is not eligible. 
Supplies and inventory are ineligible for tax abatement under this policy and State law. 
 
† As used herein, the creation of jobs refers to the creation of a job paying not less than $10 per 
hour, the approximate median salary for employees in Bell County. To qualify for a level of tax 
abatement, e.g., 25%, based on the creation of a specific number of jobs, you must commit to hiring 
the required effective number of employees by the end of year 2 of the agreement.  To calculate the 
effective number of jobs created: (1) calculate the total annual payroll created (based on the number 
of employees you will hire at various annual salaries); (2) divide this annual payroll by $20,640 (our 
calculated annual salary for a $10/hr employee); and (3) round this figure to the nearest whole 
integer. 
 



 
 8 

c. Additional or Enhancement Factors. In addition to the minimum investment or job 
creation criteria listed in (2) above, the following factors, among others, shall be considered in 
determining whether to grant Tax Abatement, and if so, in what percentage of value to be abated 
and the duration: 
 

(1) value of land and existing improvements, if any; 
(2) type and value of proposed improvements; 
(3) productive life of proposed improvements; 
(4) number of existing jobs to be retained by proposed improvements; 
(5) number, salary, and type of new jobs to be created by proposed improvements; 
(6) amount of local payroll to be created; 
(7) whether the new jobs to be created will be filled by persons residing or projected 
to reside within the City; 
(8) amount of local sales taxes to be generated directly; 
(9) the costs, if any, to be incurred by the City to provide facilities or services 
directly resulting from the new improvements; 
(10)  the amount of ad valorem taxes to be paid the City during the Abatement period 
considering  the existing values,  the percentage of new value abated,  the Abatement 
period, and  the projected property value after expiration of the Abatement period; 
(11) population growth that occurs directly as a result of new improvements; 
(12) the types and value of public improvements, if any, to be constructed and paid 
for by the applicant seeking Abatement; 
(13) the extent to which the proposed improvements compete with existing 
businesses; 
(14) the positive or negative impact on the opportunities of existing businesses; 
(15) the attraction of other new businesses to the area; 
(16) the overall compatibility with the City's zoning and subdivision regulations, and 
over-all comprehensive plan; and 
(17) whether the project is environmentally compatible with the community (no 
appreciable negative impact on quality-of-life perceptions). 

 
Each Eligible Facility shall be reviewed on its merits utilizing the factors provided above. 
After such review, abatement may be denied entirely or may be granted to the extent deemed 
appropriate after full evaluation. 
 

3. Abatement barred in certain circumstances. Neither a reinvestment zone nor an 
abatement agreement shall be authorized, if the City Council determines that: 
 

a. there would be a substantial adverse effect on the provision of government service or 
tax base; 
 

b. the applicant has insufficient financial capacity to meet the requirements of the 
proposed abatement agreement; 
 

c. planned or potential use of the property would constitute a hazard to public safety, 
health, or morals; 
 

d. approval of a reinvestment zone or abatement agreement would violate State or Federal 
laws or regulations; or 
 

e. there exists any other valid reason for denial deemed appropriate by the City. 



 
 9 

 
4. Property subject to Taxation. From the execution of an Abatement Agreement to the 

end of the effective abatement period under the Agreement, taxes shall be payable as follows: 
 

a. the value of ineligible property (Part I.D.1.d.) shall be fully taxable; 
 

b. the base year value of existing eligible property as determined each year shall be fully 
taxable; 
 

c. the additional value of new eligible property shall be taxed in the manner and for the 
period provided for in the Abatement Agreement; and 
 

d. the additional value of new, eligible property shall be fully taxable at the end of the 
Abatement period. 
 

5. Application for Tax Abatement. 
 

a. Any present or potential owner of taxable property in the City of Temple, Texas, may 
request the creation of a tax abatement reinvestment zone and tax abatement by filing a written 
request with the City. The application shall then be forwarded to the City Manager for review. After 
processing the application, the City Manager shall make a recommendation to the City Council of 
the City for final disposition. 
 

b. The application shall consist of a completed application form, which shall provide 
detailed information on the items described in Part I.D.2. above; a map and property description; 
and a time schedule for undertaking and completing the planned improvements. In the case of 
Modernization, a statement of the assessed value of the facility, separately stated for real and 
personal property, shall be given for the tax year immediately proceeding the application. The 
application form may require such financial and other information as may be deemed appropriate 
for evaluating the financial capacity and other factors of the applicant. 
 

c. The City shall give notice as provided by the Tax Code, i.e., written notice to the 
presiding officer of the governing body of each taxing unit in which the property to be subject to the 
agreement is located, no later than the seventh day before the date the City Council considers 
approval of a tax abatement agreement. 
 

d. The City shall not establish a reinvestment zone for the purpose of Abatement if it finds 
that the request for the abatement was filed after the commencement of construction of a New 
Facility, or alteration, Modernization, Expansion of an existing Facility. 
 

6. Tax Abatement Agreements 
 

a. After preliminary approval of an application, the City shall formally pass a resolution 
authorizing an Agreement with the owner (and lessee, where applicable) of the Facility, which 
Agreement shall include, but not be limited to: 
 

(1) The kind, number, and location of all proposed improvements of the property; 
 

(2) A provision for access to and authorize inspection of the property by municipal 
employees to ensure that the improvements or repairs are made according to the 
specifications and conditions of the Agreement; 



 
 10 

 
(3) Limits for the uses of the property consistent with the general purpose of 
encouraging development or redevelopment of the zone during the period the 
property tax exemptions are in effect; 

 
(4) Provide for recapturing property tax revenue lost as a result of the Agreement if 
the owner of the property fails to make the improvements or repairs as provided by 
the Agreement; 

 
(5) Each term agreed to by the owner of the property; 

 
(6) A requirement that the owner of the property annually certify to the governing 
body of each taxing unit that the owner is in compliance with each applicable term of 
the Agreement; 

 
(7)  Provide that the City Council may cancel or modify the Agreement if the 
property fails to comply with the Agreement; 

 
(8) The percentage of value to be abated each year; and 

 
(9) The commencement date and the termination date of Abatement. 

 
b. To be effective, a tax abatement agreement must be approved by the affirmative vote of a 

majority of the members of the City Council at a regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council. 
 
c. Agreements shall normally be approved or disapproved within sixty (60) days from the 

date the applicant filed a properly completed application for tax abatement with the City Manager. 
 

7. Recapture of Abated Taxes Upon Default. 
 

a. In the event that the company or individual: 
 

(1) allows its ad valorem taxes owed the City to become delinquent and fails to 
timely and properly follow the legal procedures for their protest or contest, or 

 
(2) violates any of the terms and conditions of the Abatement Agreement, and fails to 
cure during the Cure Period hereinafter described, 

 
(3) the Agreement then may be terminated, and the company or individual whose 
Agreement is terminated shall repay, as liquidated damages, all taxes previously 
abated by virtue of the Agreement to the City within thirty (30) days of the 
termination. 

 
b. Should the City determine that the company or individual is in default according to the 

terms and conditions of its Agreement, the City shall notify the company or individual of such 
default in writing at the address stated in the Agreement, and if such is not cured within thirty (30) 
days from the date of such notice ("Cure Period"), then the Agreement may be terminated.  

 
 
 

 



 
 11 

8. Administration. 
 

a. The Chief Appraiser of the Bell County Appraisal District will annually determine an 
assessment of the real and personal property comprising the reinvestment zone. Each year, the 
company or individual receiving abatement shall furnish the Appraiser with such information as 
may be necessary for the Abatement. Once value has been established, the Chief Appraiser will 
notify the City of the amount of the assessment. 
 

b. An abatement agreement shall stipulate that employees or designated representatives of 
the City will have access to the reinvestment zone during the term of the Abatement to inspect the 
Facility to determine if the terms and conditions of the agreement are being met. All inspections 
will be made only after the giving of twenty-four (24) hours prior notice and will only be conducted 
in such manner as to not unreasonably interfere with the construction or operation of the Facility. 
All inspections will be made with one or more representatives of the company or individual and in 
accordance with its safety standards. 
 

c. Upon completion of construction, the designated representative of the City shall annually 
evaluate each Facility receiving Abatement to insure compliance with the agreement, and a formal 
report shall then be made to the City Council of Temple regarding the findings of the evaluation. 
 

9. Assignment of Tax Abatement Agreements. 
 

Abatement may be transferred and assigned by the holder to a new owner or lessee of the same 
Facility upon the approval by resolution of the City subject to the financial capacity of the assignee 
and provided that all conditions and obligations in the Abatement Agreement are guaranteed by the 
execution of a new contractual Agreement with the City. No assignment or transfer shall be 
approved if the parties to the existing Agreement, the new owner or new lessee, are liable to any 
jurisdiction for outstanding taxes or other obligations. Approval of assignments will not be 
unreasonably withheld. 
 

10. Sunset Provision. 
 

These tax abatement criteria and guidelines are effective upon the date of their adoption and 
will remain in force for two years, unless amended by three-quarters vote of the City Council, at 
which time all reinvestment zones and tax abatement agreements created pursuant to these 
provisions will be reviewed to determine whether the goals have been achieved. Based on that 
review, the criteria and guidelines may be modified, renewed or eliminated. 
 

II. Availability of Tax Increment Financing of Public Improvements. 
 
A. Existence of tax increment financing district. 
 

The City of Temple has previously created Tax Increment Financing District Number One. To 
be designated as a tax increment financing reinvestment zone (TIFRZ), an area must meet the 
criteria established for reinvestment zones under Section 311.005 of the Tax Code. Designation of 
an area of the City as an enterprise zone under Texas Government Code, Chapter 2303, the Texas 
Enterprise Zone Act, qualifies an area automatically for designation as a tax increment financing 
reinvestment zone. 

 
 



 
 12 

B. Development agreements. 
 

The City will consider entering into development agreements with the owners of property 
within a TIFRZ where construction of a public improvement(s), e.g., a street, sewer or water line, 
bridge, railroad spur, or drainage project, using tax increment funds is likely to result in the 
significant expansion or modernization of an existing facility, the construction of a major new 
facility, the creation of a significant number of new jobs, or otherwise accomplishes one of the 
major goals of Chapter 311 of the Tax Code. The City Council may by ordinance or resolution, with 
the advice and recommendation of the Board of Directors of Tax Increment Financing 
Reinvestment Zone Number One, may establish minimum criteria for consideration of development 
agreements. 

 
III. Additional Economic Incentives within the City 

 
A. Designation of Enterprise Zone. 
 

The City has nominated an area of the City for designation as an enterprise zone by the State of 
Texas, acting through its Department of Commerce, under Texas Government Code, Chapter 2303  
(the Texas Enterprise Zone Act). Pending approval of the area as an enterprise zone by the State, the 
City will consider granting several types of economic incentives with the enterprise zone. 
 

1.  Sales and use tax refunds. 
 

a. Minimum qualifications. To encourage development of the Enterprise Zone, the City 
will consider granting sales and use tax rebates to businesses within the Enterprise Zone which: 
 

(1) meet the definition of "qualified businesses" for purposes of Texas Government 
Code §2303.402; 

 
(2) meet the qualifications for, and receive designation by the State as an enterprise 

project as provided for in Texas Government Code, Chapter 2303. 
 

b. Eligible taxes. The City may agree to a refund of its sales and use taxes paid by qualified 
business designated as an enterprise project on the purchase, lease, or rental of equipment or 
machinery for use in an enterprise zone or on the purchase of material for use in remodeling, 
rehabilitating, or constructing a structure in the Enterprise Zone. 
 

c. Agreement required. The City will, by development agreement, consider refunding up to 
one-half (1/2) of the eligible sales and use tax paid by a qualified business and enterprise project for 
a period of up to three (3) years. 
 

d. Documentation required. A qualified business and enterprise project entitled to a refund 
of sales and use tax under this Section by agreement shall pay the entire amount of State and local 
sales and use taxes at the time of purchase. A qualified business and enterprise project entitled to a 
refund of sales and use tax by agreement may request a refund once each year in writing. A 
qualified business and enterprise project entitled to a refund of sales and use tax by agreement must 
provide documentation necessary to support a refund claim in a form prescribed by the City's 
Director of Finance. 

 
 
 

 



 
 13 

2.  Waiver of permit fees. 
 

By resolution, the City Council may adopt a policy to waive certain building, permit, license or 
development fees to qualified businesses which have been designated as enterprise projects within 
the Enterprise Zone. The City Council, or where applicable the City Manager, is authorized to 
waive building, permit, license or development fees up to $10,000 as part of a Chapter 380 
agreement approved under Part III, B(2) of this ordinance. 

 
B.   Other economic incentives within the City. 
 

1. Pursuant to authority delegated by the Legislature to cities under Chapter 380 of the Local 
Government Code, and as authorized by Article 3, Section 52-a of the Texas Constitution, the City 
will consider making loans or grants of public funds or property, or the selling or leasing City 
property at or below the fair market value of said property, to promote State or local economic 
development and to stimulate business and commercial activity within the City. 
 

2. Upon application, the City may consider one or more of the following economic tools to 
encourage economic development: 
 

(a) The City may purchase tracts of land in the City to encourage economic development 
if it determines that assembly of smaller tracts into larger tracts will promote the sale 
or development of property over the long term. The City may also purchase land to 
sell or lease to a qualified business in the City, if it determines that a qualified 
business meets the minimum requirements for additional incentives set out below. 

(b) To promote economic development within the City, the City Manager is authorized 
to execute Chapter 380 agreements involving grants of public funds, or the transfer 
of land with value, providing personnel and services of the municipality, up to 
$25,000 within the South 1st SIZ incentive area, the Avenue G/H SIZ incentive area, 
the North 3rd SIZ Incentive area, or the MLK SIZ incentive area, subject to the 
availability of funds appropriated annually for that purpose.  

(c) To promote economic development within the City, the City Manager is authorized 
to execute Chapter 380 agreements involving grants of public funds, or the transfer 
of land with value, providing personnel and services of the municipality, up to 
$10,000 within any of the City’s other Strategic Investment Zones, as designated in 
City Resolution No. 2007-4965-R.To promote economic development within the 
City, the City Manager is authorized to execute Chapter 380 agreements involving 
grants of public funds, or the transfer of land with value, providing personnel and 
services of the municipality, up to $7,500 in any part of the City not covered by one 
of the City’s Strategic Investment Zones, as designated in City Resolution No. 2007-
4965-R. 

(d) The City Manager shall provide the City Council with a quarterly report listing and 
describing the terms and conditions of any Chapter 380 agreements approved under 
Part III, B(2) of this ordinance in the preceding quarter. 

(e) The City may sell or lease City-owned property to private developers, if the City 
Council determines that the property is not needed for any other public purpose, and 
that sale of the property to a private developer will result in capital improvements or 
the creation of new jobs within the City. The City will generally sell or lease public 
property at its fair market value, but will consider making a one-time grant to an 
applicant, or selling or leasing property at less than fair market value, according to 
the following formula: 



 
 14 

 
 

 
Additional Incentives within the City 

 
 

Value of grant, or value of 
reduction in lease payments 

or sale price 

To qualify for additional incentive, a qualified business must 
agree to the following minimum investment in both 
improvements to real property (new construction or 

expansion of existing facility) and the creation of new jobs 
 

Not to exceed $150,000 
 

Not less than $7.5 million  Not less than 125 new jobs 
 

Not to exceed $300,000 
 

Not less than $15 million Not less than 250 new jobs 
 

Not to exceed $450,000 
 
Not less than $22.5 million Not less than 375 new jobs 

 
Not to exceed $600,000 

 
Not less than $28 million Not less than 500 new jobs 

 
Incentives under Chapter 380 of the Local Government Code where the investment 
and number of jobs exceed the chart above will be individually negotiated. The City 
Council may on a case by case basis consider approving chapter 380 agreements 
involving grants of public funds, or the transfer of land with value, providing 
personnel and services of the municipality, with a value of greater than $7,500 but less 
than $150,000. 
 
C.  Incentives in Certain Strategic Investment Zones (SIZ) 

 
1. Authority. Pursuant to Article 3, Section 52-a of the Texas Constitution, Chapter 

380 of the Texas Local Government Code, and Section III.B of the City’s Economic 
Development Policy ordinance, the City will consider offering additional economic 
incentives for development within certain of the City’s Strategic Investment Zones. If 
property is located within the boundaries of more than one Strategic Investment Zone which 
has available incentives, an applicant may apply for incentives under either incentive 
program (but not more than one), subject to the applicable rules of eligibility. 

 
2.  Purpose. The City desires to encourage the redevelopment of certain of its Strategic 
Investment Zones by offering economic development incentives (SIZ grants) within 
those corridors to property owners who meet certain criteria. 

 
3. Application Process. Applications for SIZ grants are available through the City 

Manager’s office. Applications may be picked up at any time, but the City only approves 
new applications for SIZ grants four times a year:  December, March, June & September. 
Completed applications for SIZ grants must be filed as follows: 

 
 For consideration in:   Completed Application Due No Later Than: 
  December            November 10th 
  March             February 10th 
  June             May 10th  
  September               August 10th  
 



 
 15 

4. Types of Grants.  
 

a. Façade Improvement Grants. (commercial or industrial property only) The City 
will consider making grants (the amount varies depending on the eligible SIZ 
incentive corridor) on a 1:1 matching basis for the replacement or upgrade of an 
existing façade with an eligible masonry product to an eligible property, or to remove 
an existing façade to expose the original façade. Eligible masonry materials for a 
replacement façade under this subsection include brick, stone, stucco, EIFS, rough-
faced block, fiber cement siding products, such as HardiPlank® and such other 
materials that the City may approve from time to time. A list of eligible materials for 
the eligible SIZ incentive corridors (See Section 6 below) are maintained in the 
Construction Safety Office, 1st Floor, the Municipal Building, 2 North Main Street.  
Façade improvement costs eligible for reimbursement with a façade improvement 
grant include demolition costs (including labor), landfill costs, and material and 
construction (including labor) costs, but specifically exclude design costs.  

  
b. Sign Improvement Grants. (commercial property only) The City will consider 

making grants (the amount varies depending on the eligible SIZ incentive corridor) 
on a 1:1 matching basis for the installation of new ground-mounted, monument type 
(building mounted signs within TMED) signs on eligible properties or the 
replacement of a dilapidated sign. To be eligible, the base or footing of the sign must 
be concrete or metal. Sign improvement costs eligible for reimbursement with a sign 
improvement grant include demolition costs (including labor), landfill costs, and 
City-approved material and construction (including labor) costs, but specifically 
exclude design costs. 

 
c. Landscaping Improvement Grants. (commercial or industrial property only) The 

City will consider making grants (the amount varies depending on the eligible SIZ 
incentive corridor) on a 1:1 matching basis for the installation of new or additional 
landscaping to an eligible property. To be eligible the landscaping must exceed the 
City’s landscaping requirements for the area, as the same may be established from 
time to time. If an irrigation system is installed, or already exists, and will be 
maintained by the applicant, the maximum amount of the landscaping grant is greater 
than if no irrigation system exists. Landscaping improvement costs eligible for 
reimbursement with a landscaping improvement grant include ground preparation 
costs (including labor), materials (trees, shrubs, soil and amendments thereto and 
other decorative hardscape such as arbors, art, and walls or fences) and material and 
construction (including labor) costs, curbed islands, but specifically exclude design 
costs. The City will also consider making grants of trees from the City’s tree farm if 
requested by the applicant as part of a landscaping improvement grant application. 

 
d. Asbestos Survey or Abatement Grants. (commercial or industrial property only) 

The City will consider a grant (the amount varies depending on the eligible SIZ 
incentive corridor) on a 1:1 matching basis for owner-initiated asbestos survey of a 
building and for asbestos abatement for a building on eligible property. Asbestos 
survey and abatement grant eligible costs include professional fees, labor costs, select 
demolition/removal costs, and replacement materials. 

 



 
 16 

e. Demolition Grants. (residential, commercial or industrial property) When requested 
by an applicant the City will consider in its sole discretion, demolishing buildings, 
signs or parking lots, and disposing of the same at the City’s cost, when the City has 
the capacity and equipment to do so. The City will not demolish buildings where the 
City in its sole discretion determines that there is a reasonable probability that the 
building contains asbestos, unless the applicant has obtained an asbestos survey and 
abated asbestos, where necessary, prior to demolition of the structure. In lieu of doing 
the demolition work with its own crews, the City will also consider a grant on a 1:1 
matching basis for the demolition of existing buildings, signs, or parking lots on 
eligible property. Where the applicant is performing the demolition and seeking a 
demolition grant, eligible costs include the labor and landfill costs, and equipment 
rental, but exclude any design costs. 

 
f. Sidewalk Improvement Grants. (residential, commercial or industrial property) The 

City will consider grants (the amount varies depending on the eligible SIZ incentive 
corridor) on a 1:1 matching basis for the construction of new sidewalks, curb and 
guttering or the replacement of existing sidewalks or curb and guttering on eligible 
property. Sidewalk improvement costs eligible for reimbursement with a sidewalk 
improvement grant include demolition costs (where applicable) (including labor), 
landfill costs, and material and construction (including labor) costs and equipment 
rental, but specifically exclude design costs. 

 
g. Waiver of Platting, Zoning and Permit Fees. (commercial or industrial property 

only) The City will consider waiving platting, zoning, and building permit fees for 
eligible projects. The City cannot waive water and wastewater tap fees. 
 

h. Code Compliance Grant. (residential only) The City will consider grants on a 1:4 
(City/Property Owner) matching basis for the construction of real property 
improvements necessary to bring a structure in one of the approved SIZ incentive 
zones listed in subpart 6 below in to City Code compliance. To receive a grant under 
this subsection, the property owner must substantiate actual expenditures necessary 
to meet an existing City code by the property owner of $4 dollars for every $1of code 
upgrade grant sought from the City up to the maximum grant as shown in subsection 
5 below. For example, to receive a code grant of $5,000 from the City, the property 
owner would have to demonstrate actual expenditures by the property owner of 
$20,000 that are necessary to meet existing City code requirements. 

 
5. Maximum Amount of Grants.  The chart below shows the types and dollar amounts 
of grants available in each of the current SIZ incentive zone corridors. An applicant can 
request consideration for up to the maximum for each type of grant applicable to his/her 
property and application, but the total amount that an applicant can receive for any 
particular application and property is limited by the size of the applicant’s actual 
investment.  
 
 

TYPE OF GRANT South 1st Street Avenue G/H 
Façade $15,000 $10,000 
Sign $2,500 $1,500 



 
 17 

Landscaping $5,000 or $10,000 
(higher amt w/ irrigation) 

$2,500 or $3,500 
(higher amt w/ irrigation) 

Asbestos $1,000 + $3,000 
(survey + abatement) 

$1,000+ $3,000 
(survey + abatement) 

Demolition $2,500 $2,500 
Sidewalk $10,000 $5,000 
Fee Waiver $2,000 $2,000 
Code Compliance (Residential) n/a $5,000 

Theoretical Maximum Grant 
(lesser of the sum of individual 
grants and 33% of total 
investment if project < $100K or 
25% if total investment is ≥ 
$100K)  
 

$46,000 $33,500 

Required Minimum Investment 
 

$20K  Commercial/$10K 
Residential 

$20K  Commercial/$10K 
Residential 

 
TYPE OF GRANT North 3rd Street MLK, Jr. Boulevard 

Façade $15,000  $15,000 
Sign $2,500 $2,500 
Landscaping $5,000 or $10,000 

(higher amt w/ irrigation) 
$5,000 or $10,000 

(higher amt w/ irrigation) 
Asbestos $1,000 + $3,000 

(survey + abatement) 
$1,000 + $3,000 

(survey + abatement) 
Demolition $2,500 $2,500 
Sidewalk $10,000 $10,000 
Fee Waiver $2,000 $2,000 
Code Upgrade (Residential) n/a 

 
$5,000 

Theoretical Maximum Grant 
(lesser of the sum of individual 
grants and 33% of total 
investment if project < $100K or 
25% if total investment is ≥ 
$100K)  
 

$46,000 $46,000 

Required Minimum Investment 
 

$20K  Commercial or Industrial $20K  Commercial/$10K 
Residential 

The total maximum grant (the sum of all of the individual grants the project is 
eligible for) is the lesser of: (1) the sum of the individual grants, AND (2) 33% of the 
applicant’s total investment where the investment is less than $100,000, OR 25% of 
the applicant’s total investment where the investment is greater than $100,000. Total 



 
 18 

investment is measured at the time the project is completed, and is subject to 
verification by the City. 
 
The chart also shows the minimum required investment by a property owner for 
consideration of a SIZ grant. 
 

6. SIZ Incentive Zones; Eligible Property.  To be eligible for a SIZ incentive grant 
under subsection 5 above, the applicant must be the owner or a lessee of property lying 
within the boundaries of one of the City’s SIZ Incentive Zones. The current SIZ 
Incentive Zones are: 
 
 South 1st SIZ incentive area (Boundary Map—attached as Exhibit “S1”) 
 Avenue G/H SIZ incentive area (Boundary Map—attached as Exhibit “S2”) 
 North 3rd SIZ incentive area (Parts A & B) (Boundary Map—attached as Exhibit 

“S3”) 
 Martin Luther King SIZ incentive area (Boundary Map—attached as Exhibit “S4”) 

 
7. Application Form. To be eligible for the grants described in Part C an applicant 
must submit an application and receive approval from the City prior to commencing the 
work for which a grant or assistance by the City is sought. Applications must be 
submitted on a form provided by the City, be fully and accurately completed, and 
signed by the owner(s) [and the lessee(s), where applicable] of the property. Forms are 
available in the City Manager’s Office (c/o Assistant City Manager) and in the office 
of Keep Temple Beautiful, 100 West Adams, Suite 302, Temple, TX 76501, and must 
be submitted to the City Manager’s office for review and potential approval by the City. 
A completed application must contain a rendering of all proposed improvements and a 
written description of the same. Where the proposed scope of work requires 
professional work by an engineer or architect, the plans must be sealed by an engineer 
or architect prior to the issuance of building permits, as applicable. 

 
8. Evaluation of Applications. In evaluating whether to recommend an application for 
a grant under Part C for consideration by the City Council, the Staff will review and 
evaluate all SIZ incentive applications using the following criteria: 
 
(a) the extent to which the property for which a grant is sought is blighted or fails to 
meet City codes or regulations in one or more aspects (20 points) 
(b) whether the proposed redevelopment is at a higher level than which exists on other 
properties in the SIZ incentive corridor in which the property is situated (15 points);  
(c) whether the applicant has the financial resources to complete the improvements 
described in the application (10 points);  
(d) whether the property is unlikely to redevelop without an incentive by the City (20 
points);  
(e) whether the proposed use of the property is in keeping with the future uses of 
property identified in the City’s Comprehensive Plan or a master plan adopted by the 
City Council (8 points);  
(f) whether the development is in an overlay that requires higher standards than in other 
parts of the City (5 points); 



 
 19 

(g) whether the development remedies deteriorated existing city infrastructure (10 
points);  
(h) whether the development implements elements of the City Master Plan including 
sidewalk, trail, or parks master plan (7 points); and  
(i) whether there is a known occupant/tenant for the proposed development (5 points).  
 
Applications receiving a score of less than 75 points will not be recommended by the 
Staff for approval by the City Council. Where the amounts being requested in any 
quarter exceed the amount of uncommitted funds available for SIZ incentive grants, the 
City Council may take the rating system into consideration when deciding which 
applications, if any, to approve. 
 
9. Evaluation of application. Upon receipt of an application for a grant under Part 
3(a), the City Manager shall cause the application to be evaluated using the criteria 
established in Part 8 above, and submit the application and the Staff’s recommendation 
to approve or deny the request, in whole or part, to the City Council for their 
consideration. 

 
10. Approval of grants; duration of approval. The City Council may approve a 
request for a grant under Part C in whole or in part, or deny the same. Provided that the 
City Manager is authorized to approve Chapter 380 agreements providing SIZ incentive 
grants as provided in Part III(B) of this ordinance. 

 
11.  No Vested Right to Receive a Grant. The existence of the grant program 
established in Section C does not create any vested rights to receive a grant or convey a 
property interest to any person to receive a grant. The award or denial of a grant under 
this Ordinance shall be at the sole discretion of the City Council. The City Council shall 
annually appropriate funds for the administration of the grant program in this ordinance, 
and the granting of funds under the programs established by this ordinance are subject 
to the availability of funds appropriated for that purpose in any given fiscal year. 

 
12. Compliance with Terms of a Grant; payment to recipient. A recipient of a grant 
from the City must enter into a Chapter 380 development agreement with the City prior 
to receiving any grant funds or in-kind services by the City. The agreement shall 
provide that the applicant agrees to: (1) complete the work described in the application 
in a timely fashion; (2) give the City the right to inspect the work described in the 
development agreement and the financial records associated with the same during 
reasonable business hours; (3) perform all of the work described in the grant application 
in accordance with all applicable City codes and regulations; and (4) to maintain those 
improvements in the future. The failure by an applicant for a grant to satisfy all of the 
terms and conditions of the development agreement shall relieve the City of any 
obligation to provide grant funds under this Ordinance or as described in the 
development agreement. The Staff is authorized to grant extensions of up to ninety (90) 
days in the completion date. 
 
Payment to grantees shall be made within thirty (30) days of the work described in the 
development agreement being completed, inspected and a certificate of occupancy 
issued by the City. When the recipient of a SIZ grant fails to complete a project by the 



 
 20 

date provided for completion in his Chapter 380 agreement with the City, inclusive of 
any extension approved by the Staff (up to ninety days), the amount of the grant 
provided for in the Chapter 380 agreement shall be reduced by 5% for each thirty days 
that the project lacks completion. Completion under this section means the inspection 
and acceptance of any public improvements by the City and the issuance of a certificate 
of occupancy (where applicable) by the City. 
 

D.  Additional economic incentives in Downtown Development Area. 
 

1. Pursuant to authority delegated by the Legislature to cities under Chapter 380 of the 
Local Government Code, and as authorized by Article 3, Section 52-a of the Texas 
Constitution, the City will consider making loans or grants of public funds or property, or the 
selling or leasing City property at or below the fair market value of said property, to promote 
State or local economic development and to stimulate business and commercial activity in the 
Downtown Development Area (as shown on Exhibit "A"). 
 

2. Upon application, the City of Temple will consider one or more of the following 
economic tools to encourage economic development in the Downtown Development Area: 
 

(a) The City may purchase tracts of land in the Downtown Development Area to encourage 
economic development if it determines that assembly of smaller tracts into larger tracts will 
promote the sale or development of property over the long term. The City may also purchase 
land to sell or lease to a qualified business in the Downtown Development Area, if it 
determines that a qualified business meets the minimum requirements for additional incentives 
set out below. 
 

(b) The City may sell or lease City-owned property to private developers, if the City Council 
determines that the property is not needed for any other public purpose, and that sale of the 
property to a private developer will result in capital improvements or the creation of new jobs 
in the Downtown Development Area. The City will generally sell or lease public property at its 
fair market value, but will consider making a one-time grant to an applicant, or selling or 
leasing property at less than fair market value, according to the following formula: 
 

 
Additional Incentives in the Downtown Development Area 
 

 
Value of grant, or 
value of reduction 
in lease payments 

or sale price or 
surplus property 

To qualify for additional incentive, a qualified business 
must agree to the following minimum investment in either 

improvements to real property (new construction or 
expansion of existing facility) or the creation of new jobs 
(25% of the holders of which must be residents of zone or 

economically disadvantaged). 
 

Not to exceed 
$6,000 

Not less than $70,000  Not less than 3 new jobs 

 
Not to exceed 

$8,000 
Not less than $100,000 Not less than 5 new jobs 

 
Not to exceed 

$10,000 
Not less than $175,000 Not less than 10 new jobs 

 



 
 21 

Not to exceed 
$15,000 

Not less than $225,000 Not less than 15 new jobs 

 
Not to exceed 

$18,000 
Not less than $300,000 Not less than 20 new jobs 

 
3. In order for a proposal to be considered for the Additional Incentives under this 

subsection, an applicant is required to submit a business plan detailing sufficient information to 
evaluate the development and the opportunities for success. A development agreement will 
provide clauses that insure the return of monetary or real incentives granted for a project in the 
event that the project is not undertaken within a specified time. 
 

Part 2: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of 
the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this 
end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 3: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of 
December, 2013. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second and Final Reading on the 19th day of December, 
2013. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

         
DANIEL A. DUNN Mayor 

  ATTEST:              APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    _____                    
Lacy Borgeson              Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary               City Attorney 



 
 

 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

 
12/05/13 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
             Page 1 of 4 

 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Mark Baker, Planner 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  P-FY-13-38: Consider adopting a resolution approving the Preliminary Plat of 
Carriage House Trails, a 60.31 ± acres, 195 lot,  residential subdivision, with a developer requested 
exception to the Design Criteria – Residential Subdivision Entrances, related to temporary emergency 
vehicle access and a developer requested exception to Section 8.3.1A of the Unified Development 
Code related to the payment of required park fees located along the east side of Carriage House 
Drive, east of Oak Hills Drive & Trailridge Drive. 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At its November 4, 2013 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 6 to 0 for the following: 
 
1. Approve the Preliminary Plat, as recommended by staff, 
2. Approve the requested Exception to the Design Criteria – Residential Subdivision Entrances 

related to Temporary Emergency Access and, 
3. Approve the Exception to UDC Section 8.3.1 related to the payment of park fees as 

recommended by staff. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. The proposed trail within the 100’ Brazos Electric easement is labeled as a private trail if found 

acceptable by Brazos Electric for private use and trail alignment and if not acceptable, the 
label is to be removed and, 

 
Staff recommends approval of the requested exception to the Design Criteria – Residential 
Subdivision Entrances for Carriage House Trails and, 
 
Based on past practice within the City of Temple, Staff is recommending approval to the exception to 
UDC Section 8.3.1 subject to the provisions shown in the attached letter / request for exception 
provided by the developer, provided all expressed private improvements are made prior to the 
acceptance of infrastructure for Phase II of this development. 
 



 
 

12/05/13 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
             Page 2 of 4 

 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The Development Review Committee reviewed the Preliminary Plat for Carriage 
House Trails subdivision on October 22, 2013. The plat was deemed administratively complete on 
November 14, 2013, pending submittal of revised restrictive covenants. 
    
The Preliminary Plat for Carriage House Trails, a 195-lot, 3-phase, residential subdivision is located 
along the east side of Carriage House Drive, east of Oak Hills Drive & Trailridge Drive. The developer 
is proposing development in 3 phases consisting of 82 lots in Phase 1, 64 lots in Phase 2 and 49 lots 
in Phase 3. 
 
The subdivision proposes extension of two local streets: Oak Hills Drive and Carriage Drive, 2 local 
streets, and proposes ten new local streets: 
 
1. Broken Shoe Trail, 
2. Thicket Trail, 
3. Rustic Manor Drive, 
4. Gun Grove Drive, 
5. Split Trail Cove, 
6. Salt Mill Hollow, 
7. Wagon Gap Road, 
8. Cross Timber Cove, 
9. Briar Hollow Drive and, 
10. Gristmill Drive. 
 
Per the Design Criteria – Residential Subdivision Entrances, since the subdivision proposes more 
than 150 lots, a third entrance is required.  The extensions of Oak Hills and Carriage House Drive do 
not effectively function as two separate entrances and therefore a third entrance was requested by 
staff as a stub connection at Briar Hollow Drive for future connection to Poison Oak Road.  The 
alignment of the connection from Briar Hollow Drive to Poison Oak has not been designed. 
 
A 6” wastewater line and an 8” water line are available to serve the property from the west in Carriage 
House Drive.  Both are anticipated to be extended as an 8” wastewater and an 8” water line to serve 
the proposed subdivision. 
 
Temporary Emergency Access Point: The developer has requested an exception to the Design 
Criteria Residential Subdivision Entrance / Access Design Standards.  The request is specific to the 
alternate allowed design which is a needed temporary emergency access point when more than 2 
local street entrance points are needed.  All proposed access points are feeding into local streets 
from other local streets. 
 
The subdivision is shown to take direct access from Oak Hills Drive, Carriage House Drive and Salt 
Mill Hollow Drive. The adopted Residential Subdivision Entrance / Access Design Standards require 
three points of access where more than 151 lots are proposed.  The UDC, as well as other City 
codes, does not clearly define how many lots an access point must serve to be defined as an access 
point. The entrance points at Oaks Hills Drive and Carriage House Drive feed through one roadway 
into two and effectively functions as one access since it serves only 5 lots for traffic exiting the 
subdivision. 



 
 

12/05/13 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
             Page 3 of 4 

 
Based on this interpretation, at staff’s direction to meet the 3 required access points, the applicant 
has provided a future stub connection at the end of Briar Hollow Drive. By doing so, the applicant 
fulfilled the requirement for an access point occurring every 1,000 feet as required by Section 
8.2.D4b.  Although this stub partially meets the requirements for a third entrance, it does not meet the 
functionality for a temporary emergency access point, which is part of the overall subdivision access 
requirements.  No provisions for the development of the proposed stub have been made either with 
the private property owner, subdivision developer or the City to provide a street connection to Poison 
Oak Road from this point. 
 
While the proposed stub does not completely meet the requirements for the additional entrance, due 
in part to the applicant making a significant effort to meet the entry requirements and the ambiguity of 
the Code, Staff therefore is recommending approval of the requested exception. 
 
Park Fees: The developer has requested an exception to UDC Section 8.3.1 - Requirements for Park 
Land Dedication. 
 
According to the Parks and Leisure Services Department, the plat would require a minimum 3 acres 
of public park land or payment of a $43,650 public park development / acquisition fee without an 
approved exception.  However, the UDC further expresses that a minimum of 1 acre be provided for 
every 133 homes even when exceptions are considered.  Therefore, a minimum 1.5 acres of useable 
park land should be provided for park use in this 195 lot subdivision. 
 
The preliminary plat is proposed with 7 open space tracts to be maintained by a private homeowners 
association which will include a developed private park within Tract C, private trails as shown on the 
plat and a public trail easement. The City will construct a trail in the easement adjacent to and within 
the Hog Pen Creek floodplain as funds are available to meet the needs of the Citywide Trails Master 
Plan.  
 
Additionally, the plat shows private trail alignment within the existing 100’ Brazos Electric easement 
which transects the subdivision. The electric easement would incorporate a portion of the rear yard of 
all lots abutting the easement and the private trail.  No formal approval from Brazos Electric has been 
received by staff or the developer.   Therefore, these uses (trail / fences) within the easement may not 
be allowed by Brazos Electric.  If these approvals cannot be achieved, any uses not allowed in the 
easement must be removed from the plat. 
 
The applicant has indicated that approximately 1½ acres outside the floodplain on Tract C will contain 
a sport court, pavilion, landscaping and park facilities.  These amenities are to be constructed prior to 
the acceptance of Phase 2, see Letter of Exception, within the + 6.38 acre Tract “C”. This proposal 
has been found to be acceptable to the Parks and Leisure Services Department. 
 
Based on past practice within the City of Temple, Staff is recommending approval to the exception to 
UDC Section 8.3.1 subject the provisions shown in the attached letter / request for exception provided 
by the developer, provided all expressed private improvements are made prior to the acceptance of 
infrastructure for Phase II of this development. 
 
 
 



 
 

12/05/13 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
             Page 4 of 4 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Final Plat 
Utility Plan 
Requested Exception Letter 
PZ Excerpts 
Resolution 
 



2013-08-01

DEVELOPMENT STATISTICS:

DEVELOPER:

REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER:

BSP ENGINEERS, INC.

ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC.

CAROTHERS EXECUTIVE HOMES

REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR:

60.31 Acres

195

TOTAL DEVELOPED AREA:

TOTAL DEVELOPED RESIDENTIAL LOTS:

62'x120'
AVERAGE LOT SIZE

Chairperson

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF BELL

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR IN THE

STATE OF TEXAS, HEREBY CERTIFY, TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND

BELIEF, THAT THIS PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PLAT IS TRUE AND CORRECT.,

THAT IT WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF THE PROPERTY MADE

UNDER MY SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND, AND THAT ALL NECESSARY

SURVEY MONUMENTS ARE CORRECTLY SHOWN THEREON.

CHARLES C. LUCKO, R.P.L.S.

REGISTRATION NUMBER 4636

DATE SURVEYED:  ___________

THIS PLAT HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO AND CONSIDERED BY THE PLANNING &

ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, AND IS HEREBY

APPROVED BY SUCH COMMISSION.

DATED THIS ___ DAY OF ___________, 2013.

City Engineer DATE

Approved for Preparation of Final Plat:

Revisions

Remarks:Date:

Project No:

F
-
7
5
8
7

C
A

R
R

I
A

G
E

 
H

O
U

S
E

 
T

R
A

I
L
S

P
H

A
S

E
S

 
1

,
 
2

 
&

 
3

T
e
m

p
l
e
,
 
T

e
x
a
s

122057.00

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

T

C1

0

SCALE IN FEET

HORIZ 100 100

SF-2DEVELOPMENT ZONING:

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF BELL

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER IN THE STATE

OF TEXAS, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT PROPER ENGINEERING CONSIDERATION HAS

BEEN GIVEN THIS PLAT.

PHASE 1, 82 LOTS

LEGEND:

PHASE 2, 64 LOTS

HOA TRACTS

TRACT A

T

R

A

C

T

 

B

TRACT C

TRACT D

TRACT E

TRACT F

TRACT H

(15' D.E.)

PHASE 3, 49 LOTS

Secretary to the Planning and Zoning Commission

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF BELL

BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, ON THIS DAY PERSONALLY APPEARED

______________ KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE

FOREGOING INSTRUMENT, AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME

FOR THE PURPOSES AND CONSIDERATION THEREIN STATED.

GIVEN UNDER MAY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE THIS THE _____ DAY OF _________ 2013.

Notary Public, State of Texas

60' ROW

60' ROW

6
0
'
 
R

O
W

T

H

I

C

K

E

T

 

T

R

A

I

L

5

0

'

 

R

O

W

 

(

3

1

'

 

B

O

C

-

B

O

C

)

B

R

O

K

E

N

 

S

H

O

E

 

T

R

A

I

L

5

0

'

 

R

O

W

 

(

3

1

'

 

B

O

C

-

B

O

C

)

R

U

S

T

I

C

 

M

A

N

O

R

 

D

R

I

V

E

5

0

'

 

R

O

W

 

(

3

1

'

 

B

O

C

-

B

O

C

)

R

U

S

T

I

C

 

M

A

N

O

R

 

D

R

I

V

E

5

0

'

 

R

O

W

 

(

3

1

'

 

B

O

C

-

B

O

C

)

C

R

O

S

S

 

T

I

M

B

E

R

 

C

O

V

E

5

0

'

 

R

O

W

 

(

3

1

'

 

B

O

C

-

B

O

C

)

B

R

I

A

R

 

H

O

L

L

O

W

 

D

R

I

V

E

5

0

'

 

R

O

W

 

(

3

1

'

 

B

O

C

-

B

O

C

)

B
R

I
A

R
 
H

O
L
L
O

W
 
D

R
I
V

E

5
0
'
 
R

O
W

 
(
3
1
'
 
B

O
C

-
B

O
C

)

B

R

O

K

E

N

 

S

H

O

E

 

T

R

A

I

L

5

0

'

 

R

O

W

 

(

3

1

'

 

B

O

C

-

B

O

C

)

SALT MILL HOLLOW DRIVE

50' ROW (31' BOC-BOC)

SPLIT TRAIL COVE

50' ROW (31' BOC-BOC)

W
A

G
O

N
 
G

A
P

 
R

O
A

D

5
0
'
 
R

O
W

 
(
3
1

'
 
B

O
C

-
B

O
C

)

GRISTMILL LANE

50' ROW (31' BOC-BOC)

TRACT I

T

H

I

C

K

E

T

 

T

R

A

I

L

5

0

'

 

R

O

W

 

(

3

1

'

 

B

O

C

-

B

O

C

)

45' U.E.

15' U.E.

PROPOSED TRAIL SYSTEM

20' OFF-SITE SEWER EASEMENT

BY SEPARATE INSTRUMENT

25' TRAIL EASEMENT

25' TRAIL EASEMENT

25' TRAIL EASEMENT

20' OFF-SITE SEWER EASEMENT

BY SEPARATE INSTRUMENT

9TOTAL BLOCKS:

7TOTAL TRACTS:



0

SCALE IN FEET

HORIZ 100 100

T
O

P
O

 
U

T
I
L
I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

C2

Revisions

Remarks:Date:

Project No:

F
-
7
5
8
7

10/24/2013

C
A

R
R

I
A

G
E

 
H

O
U

S
E

 
T

R
A

I
L
S

P
H

A
S

E
 
1

,
 
2

 
&

 
3

T
e
m

p
l
e
,
 
T

e
x
a
s

122057.00

OAK HILLS DRIVE

60' ROW

TRAILRIDGE  DRIVE

(60' ROW)

C
A

R
R

I
A

G
E

 
H

O
U

S
E

 
D

R
,
 
6
0
'
 
R

O
W

20' SEWER ESMT.

18" RCP

CONCRETE HEADWALL

WITH WING WALLS

CONCRETE HEADWALL

WITH WING WALLS

CONCRETE

HEADWALL

WITH

WINGWALLS

CONCRETE

HEADWALL

WITH

WINGWALLS

CONCRETE

HEADWALL

WITH

WINGWALLS

15' STORM

SEWER

INLET

FURNISH AND INSTALL

1-CONNECTION TO

EXISTING 15" SANITARY

SEWER

FURNISH AND INSTALL

1-CONNECTION TO

EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN

FURNISH AND INSTALL

1-CONNECTION TO

EXISTING 2" WATER MAIN

FURNISH AND INSTALL

1-CONNECTION TO

EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN

FURNISH AND INSTALL

1-CONNECTION TO

EXISTING 8" SANITARY SEWER

OFF-SITE EASEMENT

BY SEPARATE INSTRUMENT

OFF-SITE EASEMENT

BY SEPARATE INSTRUMENT



OCTOBER 23, 2013 

Mark Baker, Planner 

City of Temple 

2 North Main Street 

Temple, Texas 76502 

Dear Mr. Baker, 

In response to our DRC Meeting yesterday we would like to request the following exceptions to the UDC. 

1. Required – 3 Entrances to subdivision.   We are asking for an exception to the temporary emergency 

access due to the fact that there is no current access to the subdivision or feasible access further than the 

2 entrances shown on plat.  We will keep a stub at Briar Hollow on the south side of development for 

possible future use. 

2. Park Fees.  We are requesting an exception to UDC 8.3.1A.  We are constructing a sport court and park 

facilities on approximately 1.5 acres outside flood plain of Tract C (±6.38 acres).   The cost of the sport 

court is $30,000.   The pavilion, landscaping, and irrigation installation will cost $28,000.  In addition to 

these park amenities we are constructing trails through the subdivision as shown on the plat.  Park 

construction will be completed prior to the commencement of work on Phase II. 

Thank you again for your time this week, and please let me know if you have any further questions or needs from me. 

Sincerely, 

Jason Carothers 

PRESIDENT 

Carothers Properties 

50 South Wheat Road 

Belton, Texas 76513 

Tel 254-939-5100 Fax 254-939-5122 

 
 

 



EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2013 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 2: P-FY-13-38 – Consider and recommend action on the Preliminary Plat of Carriage 

House Trails, a 60.31 ± acres, 195 lot, residential subdivision, with a developer 
requested exception to the Design Criteria – Residential Subdivision Entrances, 
related to temporary emergency vehicle access and a developer requested exception 
to Section 8.3.1A of the Unified Development Code related to the payment of required 
park fees, located along the east side of Carriage House Drive, east of Oak Hills Drive 
& Trailridge Drive. (Applicant: Jason Carothers) 

Mr. Mark Baker, Planner, stated City Council was the final authority on this plat since the 
applicant has requested an exception to the park fees. City Council first reading would be held 
on December 5, 2013. 

DRC deemed this plat complete on October 22, 2013. The plat proposes 195 lots developed 
through three phases and seven tracts. Approximately 25 acres within the plat were recently 
before the Commission for rezoning and approved by City Council on October 7th. 

Water is available through an eight-inch water line in Carriage House Drive. Wastewater 
service is available through a six-inch sewer line in Carriage House Drive. Utilities are 
proposed to be extended through an eight-inch line to fully serve the subdivision. 

The subdivision entrance will be taken from three points: Carriage House Drive, Oak Hills 
Drive, and Salt Mill Hollow Drive. All proposed local streets will meet the 50 foot wide right-of-
way and 31 foot pavement width requirements. No sidewalks are required on local streets.  
Hopi Trail is perimeter and an access point only not within the boundary. 

The plat proposes ten new local streets and extensions to two existing local streets: 
 1. Oak Hills  Drive (Extension), 
 2. Carriage House Drive (Extension),  
 3. Broken Shoe Trail, 
 4. Thicket Trail, 
 5. Rustic Manor Drive, 
 6. Gun Grove Drive, 
 7. Split Trail Cove, 
 8. Salt Mill Hollow Drive, 
 9. Wagon Gap Road, 
` 10. Briar Hollow Drive, 
 11. Cross Timber Cove and,  
 12. Gristmill Drive 

The applicant has requested a waiver to the Design Criteria Residential Subdivision Entrance / 
Access Design Standards. While the developer has provided the third access point to meet the 
1,000 foot spacing requirement and number of access points required by the UDC, the 



connection does not meet the requirements for a temporary emergency access point and 
requires the waiver. The waiver is not being supported by Staff since this temporary 
emergency access cannot meet the standards since it is not currently planned to connect to 
Poison Oak Road and no plans have been finalized to developer it as a through connection. 

Applicant has submitted a Letter of Exception for the waiver of park fees which has been found 
acceptable to the Parks and Leisure Services Department. Developer is proposing private park 
land, a 25’ trail easement, and park facilities. Private Trail within 100’ Brazos Electric 
Easement. Private park amenities are being proposed in lieu of public park dedication and 
payment of park fees. 

Staff has not received formal approval to use the easement for use – if approval is given, the 
trail needs to be labeled private and if it is not approved would need to be removed from the 
plat altogether.  The applicant is in agreement with this. 

This private park would be within Tract C and would contain a sport court, pavilion, 
landscaping, and park facilities and the amenities are to be constructed prior to the acceptance 
of Phase 2. A 25 foot trail easement is also being provided which the City would build a trail 
meeting the needs of the City Wide Trails Master Plan when funding is available. 

Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat for Carriage House Trails, subject to the 
following conditions: 

The proposed trail within the 100’ Brazos Electric Easement is labeled as a private trail 
if found acceptable by Brazos Electric for private use and trail alignment and if not 
acceptable, the label is to be removed. 

Staff recommends disapproval of the requested exception to the Design Criteria - Residential 
Subdivision Entrances for the following reason: 

The stub connection does not meet the requirements for an emergency access point 
and, 

Based on past practice within the City of Temple, staff is recommending approval to the 
exception to UDC Section 8.3.1 subject to the provisions shown in the attached letter / request 
for exception provided by the developer, provided all expressed private improvements are 
made prior to the acceptance of infrastructure for Phase II of this development. 

Commissioner Jones asked to hear from the Fire Department representative. Mr. Eddie 
Mitchell, 210 N. Third Street, Temple, Texas, stated he was appearing on behalf of the Fire 
Marshall and the third exit did not meet the standards as a temporary emergency access point. 
Mr. Mitchell also stated it was not just getting into the area, but also if residents could get out. 

Some discussion about the three access points and if they met standards. 

Mr. Steven Kirkpatrick of BSP Engineers, 15 W. Central, Temple, Texas, stated the distance 
was approximately 800 to 1,000 feet and he did not know about any acquisition of the private 
property or the development of the proposed connection through the private property.  



Mr. Jared Bryan, Jason Carothers representative, 50 S. Belt Road, Belton, Texas, stated Mike 
Pilkington owns the property and would only grant temporary access. Since everything is 
platted out, there is no other choice for a third access. 

Vice-Chair Rhoads made a motion to approve Item 2, P-FY-13-38, as presented and 
Commissioner Staats made a second. 

Motion passed: (6:0) 
Commissioners Magańa and Crisp absent 



 
 RESOLUTION NO.   
 

(PLANNING NO. P-FY-13-38) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT OF CARRIAGE HOUSE TRAILS, AN 
APPROXIMATE 60.31 ACRE, 195-LOT, RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION WITH A 
REQUESTED EXCEPTION TO THE DESIGN CRITERIA – RESIDENTIAL 
SUBDIVISION ENTRANCES, RELATED TO TEMPORARY EMERGENCY 
VEHICLE ACCESS AND A REQUESTED EXCEPTION TO SECTION 8.3.1A OF THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE RELATED TO THE PAYMENT OF REQUIRED 
PARK FEES, LOCATED ALONG THE EAST SIDE OF CARRIAGE HOUSE DRIVE, 
EAST OF OAK HILLS DRIVE AND TRAILRIDGE DRIVE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, on November 4, 2013, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 
the Preliminary Plat of Carriage House Trails, an approximate 60.31 acre, 195-lot, residential subdivision 
with a requested exception to the Design Criteria – Residential Subdivision Entrances, related to 
temporary emergency vehicle access and a requested exception to Section 8.3.1A of the Unified 
Development Code related to the payment of required park fees located along the east side of Carriage 
House Drive, east of Oak Hills Drive and Trailridge Drive; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to approve 
the Preliminary Plat of Carriage House Trails, with requested exceptions. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves the Preliminary Plat of Carriage House Trails, an approximate 
60.31 acre, 195-lot, residential subdivision with a requested exception to the Design Criteria – Residential 
Subdivision Entrances, related to temporary emergency vehicle access and a requested exception to 
Section 8.3.1A of the Unified Development Code related to the payment of required park fees located 
along the east side of Carriage House Drive, east of Oak Hills Drive and Trailridge Drive. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution is 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of December, 2013. 
  
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
  
              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 


	Z-FY-13-33 Attachments.pdf
	Revised Site Plan
	Z-FY-13-33 Attachments1
	Attachment Photos
	zoning map
	Map_5_Future_Land_Use
	Buffermap
	doc00032420131028083516


	Z-FY-14-03 Attachments.pdf
	Attachments
	Attachment Photos
	Attachment Aerial
	Attachment Floor Plan
	Attachment Buffer Map
	doc00032520131028083552
	doc00043920131029124319

	doc00202520131112121407




